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References in this announcement 1o Electra Private Equity PLC and i1s subsidiaries have been abbreviated w Eleciea or the Company References
10 Electra Partners LLP have been abbreviated (o Electra Partners or the Manager




About Electra Private Equity PLC

Electra Private Equity PLC ("Electra”or the "Group”) Is & private eguity nvestment trust
which has been listed on the London Stock Exchange since 1976 As at 30 September
2014115 net assets were £1 2 bilhion or 3,174p per share fully-diluted

Electra’s business and affairs are managed on an exclusive and fully discretionary basis
by Electra Partners LLP, an independent private equity fund manager with over 25 years’
expertence in the mid-market and a supernior performance record Electra is overseen by
a board of independent non-executive Directars

Electra’s objective 1s to achieve a return on equity of between 10% and 15% per year over
the long term by investing in a portfolio of private equity assets

Perfarmance s in line with this objective for the 10 years to 30 September 2014 Electra’s
return on equity was 14% per year Electra’s performance has been consistently superior
to that of the Morningstar Private Equity Index and the FTSE All-Share Index

Private equity benefits from

m an active approach based on a high level of engagement between the fund manager
and the management teams of investee comganies both before and after an
Investment I1s made,

m the aignment of Interests between managers and investors through economic
incentives, and

w an ownership framework which facilitates long-term decision-making

Electra offers shareholders differentiated, duect access to private equity through a flexible
Iisted vehicle
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Financial Highlights

As at 30 September 2014

Total portfolio return of 25% i the year

£246m

Investment portfolio equivalent to 106% of net assets

£1,272m

Liguid resources net of bank borrowings

£166m

Diuted NAV per share up 15%

3,174p

Diluted NAV per share, including dividends, increase aver ten years

262%

Annualised return on equity over 10 years

14%

Share price up 19%

2,650p

Share price total return over ten years

248%

Performance (Total Return)

One year Three years Five years Ten years
Electra NAV per share (diluted) 15% 43% 84% 262%
Morningstar PE Index NAV per share return® 1% 26% 55% 56%
Electra share price 19% 85% 17% 248%
Morningstar PE Index share price return* 7% 76% 72% 41%
FTSE All-Share Index 6% 48% 59% 120%

Performance calculated on a total return basis with dividends reinvested

* The above index, prepared by Morrungstar UK Limited reflects the performance of 19 private equity vehicles excluding Electra Iisted on the

Londen Stock Exchange
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Long-term Performance

Share price vs. NAV per share (diluted} vs. FTSE All-Share {Total Return) %
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Historic NAY, Share price and Return on Equity

10-year annualised
Year ended Total NAY Diluted NAV per share Ordinary share price return on equity
30 September £m p p %
1995 749 440 368 i3
1996 886 522 413 12
1997 1,083 640 483 9
1958 1,145 676 512 "
1999 987 951 836 12
2000 874 1,085 1,034 16
2001 541 830 651 12
2002 488 764 463 13
2003 495 760 634 10
2004 427 913 794 10
2005 521 1,197 1,113 12
2006 598 1,545 1,371 12
2007 746 2,001 1,680 13
2008 641 1,801 1,235 n
2009 608 1,720 1,224 7
2010 725 2,050 1,368 7
2011 821 2,225 1,360 11
2012 916 2473 1,770 13
2013 1,030 2,764 2,230 14
2014 1,195 3,174 2,650 14

Please note*

N 1999 Electra ceased to make new investrments and was placed inte a realisation phase Between 1999 and 2006 Electra
returned a total of £1 2 bilhon to sharehelders through a mixture of share buybacks and tender offers Electra returned to full
investment in October 2006
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Chairman’s Statement

"Blectra has had an excellent year, with another record level of new investment and strong perfarmance from
its Investment portfolio

"The performance from some of the recent investments in the pertfolic 1s extremely encouraging and
perfectly demonstrates the investment selection and value creation skills of Electra Partners

"The 15% NAV per share total return over the year was again at the upper end of Electra’s long-term target
range of between 10% and 15% per year Electra 1s well positioned to continue to deliver outstanding returns
forits shareholders”

Overview

The year 1o Septerber 2014 has been a successful one and am pleased 1o report
another year of strong performance achieved 1n the face of considerable distraction
Excellent progress has been made in terms of investment actity, with capital deployed
in new nvestments again reaching a record level The portfolio continues to perform
strongly with, in particular, a significant contribution from investments made in the last
three years The encouraging trading within the underlying portfelio companies augurs
well for the future

Results

At 30 September 2014, Electra’s diluted net asset value per share was 3,174p compared
0 2,764p a year earlier, an increase of 15% Electra’s share price increased from 2,230p to
2,650p over this period representing a return of 19%, comparea to 2 total return on the
FTSE All-Share of 6%

Qver the 10 years to 30 September 2014, Electra’s diluted net asset value per share
including dwidends has increased by 262% This 1s equivalent te a 10-year annualised
return on equity of 14% Electra's share price also performed well in this penod
generating a total return of 248%, also equivalent to an annualised total return of 14%
This compares ta a 10-year total return for the FTSE All-Share of 120%, equivalent to an
annualised return of 8%

Three quarters of the performance in the year came from the direct unlisted portfolio,

in particular from three investrments (AXIO, Park Resorts and South Lakeland) All three
are recentinvestments, made within the last three years It is alsc pleasing to see strong
performance in the histed portfolio, especially from Zensar Technologies which increased
by £40 million or 163% over the year

Investment Activity

Over the year Electra invested £410 mullion, compared to £337 millionin 2013 In
aggregate £747 rmillion has been invested over the last two years representing 86% of
the opening vaiue of the investment pertfolic at the beginning of that penod

Sherborne Investors

During the early part of 2014 Sherborne Investors (Guernsey) B Limited ("SIGB™) began
acquiring shares in Electra, eventually reaching a position whereby 1t controlled
approximately 20% of the ordinary share capital On 21 August 2014, SIGB requisitioned
a General Meeting to appoint two nominees to the Board and to remove an existing
Director, Geoffrey Cullinan SIGB announced that it expected its two nominees, If
appointed, 1o lead a strategic review of Electra

Despite requests for an explanation of the need for, or benefits of, a strategic review, SIGB

did not provide one On 17 September 2014, SIGB sent a letter to Electra shareholders [
making, for the first ime, 2 number of critical points concerning performance, investment |
management, Investment expenses and balance sheet structure Electra published its
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response to these criticisms on 22 September 2014 At the General Meeting of the
Company held on 6 October 2014 shareholders voied aganst alt the resoluuions
proposed by SIGB

The Board of Electra has always been open to constructive dialogue with its shareholders
and seeks always to act in shareholders best interests Accordingly, we believe it 1s
paramount that Electra should continue to have an independent Board compnsed of
indwvicuals with the appropriate mixture of skills and expenience so that Electra’s future
strategy and direction will continue to serve the best interests of shareholders as a whole

Following the General Meeting and as a result of discussions with shareholders, the
Board 15 conducting a review of Electra’s fee arrangements with Electra Partners and
of its capital structure and distribution policy We intend to announce the result of this
review shortly

Balance Sheet Over the year Electra

At 30 September 2014 Electra had net liguid resources of £166 million compared 10 invested £410 million,

£294 million at September 2013 Twelve months age liquidity levels were higher than compared to £337 million

usual as a result of the recard level of realisations dunng the year Liquidity 1s now at an In 2013 in aggregate

optimal operating level, where there s sufficient cash together with bank facilities to £747 million has been

cover new Investments and meet ongoing costs and commitments invested over the last
two years

Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive (“AIFMD”)

The AIFMD came into effect durning the period under review and Electra, as an Alternative
Investment Fund, became sufyject to the Directive from 11 July 2014 As previously
reported, Electra Partners LLP received approval from the Financial Conduct Authonty
("FCA™) 1o vary 1ts status and act as Electra’s Alternative Investment Fund Manager ("AIFM”)
under the AIFMD regulatrons

The Board continues to be of the view that complance with the AIFMD regulatuons will
not matenally affect Electra’s business

Outlook

This 1s another strong set of results and it is particularly encouraging that the recent
invesiments in the portfolio are already delivering substantial value These investments
were made by exploiting Electra’s flexible investment strategy and robust balance sheet
Therr performance follows several years of high investment activity and excellent value
creation work by the Electra Partners team

Electra’s balance sheet 1s now more efficiently deployed as a result of the high levels of
investment over the last two years

The Board believes that Electra 1s well posiuoned 1o build on and strengthen s tugh
qualty pertfclio and continue to deliver outstanding returns for Electra’s shareholders

() \l"‘”‘“‘

Roger Yates
Charman
26 November 2014
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Console Group
Audio mixing console manufacturer
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Strategic Report

The Strategic Report provides a review of the Company's business, strategy
and performance dunng the year 10 30 September 2014, and a description of
the pnnapal nsks and uncertainties facing the Company References to other
sections of this Report and Accounts are provided where appropriate

Business Model

Electra

Electra 1s an approved Investment Trust with effect from 1 Qctober 2012 and will
continue 1© be exernpt from capital gains tax provided 1t continues to meet the eligibility
conditiens of Section 1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and of the ongoing
requirements for approved companies in the Investment Trust (Approved Company) (Tax)
Requlations 2011

Electra’s business and affairs are managed by an exclusive and fully discretonary
Manager Electra Partners LLP was appointed as the Manager in 2006 and manages the
Company's assets and investments In accordance with guidelines determined by the
Directors and as specified in imited partrership and in management and mvestment
guideline agreements

The Manager

Electra Partners 1s an independent private equity fund manager with over 25 years'
expernience in the mid-market Electra Partners’ investment performance is (n the top third
when compared with similar fund sizes, strategies and vintages Electra Partners has
successfully delivered consistently strong returns Fer the ten years to 30 September 2014
Electra’s annualised return on eguity was 14% Further information abeut Electra Partners
15 to be found in"The Manager” section on pages 1410 19

Fee Arrangements

Electra Partners receives a prionty profit share of 1 5% per annum on the gross value of
the Cornpany’s investment portfolio including cash The partners of Electia Partners
participate in co-investment and carried interest schemes which are explained in mere
detail 1in Notes 22 and 23 of the Notes to the Financial Statements

Alignment of Interests

The alignment of interests between investors and managers through economic
incentives Is a critical feature of the private equity model It contrnibutes to the
outperformance of private equity compared to other asset classes

When Elecira invests in a buyout or co-investment, it 1s normal for the management
team of the underlying company to make a meaningful investment in the equity of that
company alengside Electra This serves 1o align each portfolic company management
team’s interests with Electra’s in making decisiens relating to that company

Equally, the partners of Electra Partners are obliged to invest pari passu in each
investment which Electra makes These individuals also benefit from carned interest
schemes whereby they share in realised investment profits relaung to certain investment
peals, subject te a minimum annual return for Electra and after deducting the relevant
part of the prionty profit share paid to Electra Partners These arrangements, which
reward only realised returns and take into account the time value of money, ensure that
Electra Partners 15 incentivised to canstruct a portfolio of attractive investments and to
realise each investment at the optimum time

These arrangements are descnibed in more detail in Notes 22 and 23 of the Notes to the
Financial Statements

tlectra Private Equity PLC | Report and Accourts 2014
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8

Objective and Strategy

Objective
Electra’s objective 1s to achieve a rate of return on equity of between 10% and 15% per
year over the long term by investing in a portfolio of private equity assets

Strategy

Under the investment strategy approved by shareholders in October 2006, all of Electra’s
capital resources are available for Investment in private equity Electra actively manages
Its geartng and capital position in ight of prevailing market conditions

Electra’s strategy, along with the performance of the Manager, s kept under active review
by the Board

Investment Strategy

Electra has one of the most flexible mandates in the private equity sector This means that
it invests across the full range of private equity opportunities, in any sector and across the
capral structure

This flexibihity allows Electra Partners to tailor its investment strategy to suit changing
market condimons, thereby deploying capital where 1t sees the best relative value for
shareholders Elecira Partners focuses on the following types of investment buyouts and
co-Investments, secondaries and debt investments

Electra’s structure means Electra can provide long-term capital to portfolio businesses
As it invests directly rather than through a fund structure, its investment herizons are
not influenced by fund investment periods or fund-raising cycles This means that 1t can
SUPPOoIT Its nvestee companies with a long-term strategy and access to capital Exits are
sought only when returns can be maximised for sharehelders

Electra Partners manages Electra’s business and affairs on an exclusive and fully
discretionary basis Further information on Electra Partners and its imvestment strategy
can be found on pages 141019

Asset Management

Electra Partners employs a nigorous investment process which ensures disaiphined
investment selection and portfolio management In constructing and managing Electra’s
Investment portfolio, Electra Partners takes into consideration not only the speafic
circumsiances of each individual investment but also the profile of the portfolio as a whole

The portfolio 1s managed 1 avoid cONCentrauion In any one sector or asset Al the ime
of investment, not more than 15% of Electra’s total assets will be invested in any single
investment If Electra acquires a portfolic of assets in a single ransacuon, this imitation
shall be applied indiwvdually to each of the underlying assets and not to the portfolio as
a whaole The largest investment made by Electra durning the year was Hotter Shoes which
represented 8% of its total assets at the ume of investment

Gearing and Capital Management
Electra has a policy to maintain totat geanng below 40% of its total assets At 30 Seprember
2014 gearing stood at 20% of total assets

An appropriate level of lguidity 1s maintained to ensure that Electra can participate in all
investments arranged by Electra Partners, suppaort its portfolio with follow-on investment
as required and meet ongoing costs and commitments At 30 September 2014 net Iiguid
resources (being cash less borrowings under the multi-currency revolving credit facility)
were £166 million
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The Company makes use of borrowings to provide investment capacity and to hedge
currency risk The capital position and levels of geaning are managed in ight of prevailing
economic conditions

Further information on Electras borrowings 1s provided in Note 16 on page 73

Costs
Electra’s ongcing charges ratio for the year to 30 September 2014 was 23% (2013 2 39%)

Commitments

Unlike many other listed private eguity companies, Electra for the most part invests
directly in transactions arranged by Electra Partners rather than through a imited
partnership fund which may be managed in the interests of a number of invesiors

This means that Electras interests are clearly and independently taken into account by
Electra Partners, which can moderate or accelerate the pace of investment to suit Electra’s
net iquid resocurces As a result, there is a low risk of Electra becoming over-committed

A130 September 2014 Electra had commitments outstanding to private equity funds
of £77 million, of which £51 mullion was to funds stll in their investment period

Dividend Policy
It1s the current policy of the Directors not to pay a dvidend unless required to do so to
maintain Electra's investment trust status

Electra’s portfolio 1s therefore structured to deliver capiial growth rather than yield
The policy of the Directors 15 to reinvest the proceeds of realisations with the benefit
of Electra’s flexible mandate in order for Electra Partners investment performance to
continue 1o grow Electra while at the same time allowing Electra Partners to focus on
investment activity without the distraction of fund raising

Discount Management
The Board actively considers discount control mechanisms, including dividends, share
buybacks, share splits and improved or ad hoc disclosure

In evaluaung dividends, share buybacks or other returns of capital to sharehoiders, the
Board takes intc account the discount at which Electra’s shares trade relative 1o therr net
asset value, the prospective returns available from investment epportunities as well as
other compeung calls on the Company’s capital

The Directors intend to continue to seek shareholder authonty on an annual basis to
enable them to purchase shares for cancellation when they believe it wili be in the best
interests of shareholders

Shareholder Engagement

Electra places great importance on communication with its shareholders Working
together with Electra Partners, it endeavours to provide valuable information and insight
on the Company and its performance to shareholders Representatives of the Board hold
meetings with principal shareholders to discuss relevant issues as they anse Electra
Partners maintains a regular and proactive dialogue wath institutional shareholders and
analysts, markets Electra’s shares to potential shareholders, maintains relationships with
Journalists, trade bodies and other industry commentatars, and 15 responsive 1o enquines
from any shareholder or potential shareholder Electra Partners' investor relations team
regularly reports to the Board on its activities

Electra Private Equity PLC | Report and Accounts 2014
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Principal Risks and Risk Management

Risk Management

The appointment of Electra Partners as AlFM of the Company under the AIFMD means
that 1t 15 now responsible for risk management and the ongoing process of identifying,
evaluating, monitonng and managing the nisks facing the Company In accordance with
the requirements of the AIFMD The Board keeps Electra Partners’ performance of these
responsibilities under review as part of its overall responsibility for the Company’s internal
controls The Board and Electra Partners consider that the following are the principal risks
facing the Company along with the nisks detalled in Note 19 of the Noies to the Financral
Statements

Macroeconomic Risks

The performance of the Company’s investrment portfclio 1s matenally influenced by
economic conditons These may affect demand for products or services supplied by
nvestee companies, foreign exchange rates, the price of commodiues or other input
costs, Interest rates, debt and equity capital markets and the nurber of active trade and
financial buyers All of these factors have an impact on the Company’s ability to realise its
investment portfolio and the levet of return realisable

Gearning Risks

One of the prncipal nsks of gearing 15 that it can cause both gains and fosses in the asset
value of a company to be magnified Another significant nsk associated with gearng 1s
the potentally severe operauonal impact on the Cormpany of a breach of 1ts banking
covenants Secondary risks relate to whether the cost of gearning 15 too high and whether
the length of the gearing 1s apprepriate The Board and Electra Partners regularly monitor
the headroem avallable under banking covenants and review the iImpact of the vanous
forms of gearing and their cost to the Company

The Company uses gearing in a numper of forms, through its multi-currency revolving
credit facihity, its Subordinated Convertible Bonds and Zero Dividend Preference Shares
(“ZDP Shares")

Gearing s also used across the Campany’s investment portfolio Each investment in
which geanng 1s empleyed presents the same risks as are faced by Electra Electra
Partners actively monitors gearing across the investment portfolio, including working
closely with management teams to ensure that the terms of any borrowing facilities
are being observed and maintaining relationships with the ienders who make
faciities avallable

Foreign Currency Risks

A proportion of the Company's investment portfolio, comprising investrments in the
USA, Continenta! Europe and Asia, 1s dencminated in currencies other than Sterling
Movernents in foreign exchange rates may therefore affect the Company’s net assets

The foreign investments held are principalty held in the USA, Conunental Europe and Asia

Dunng the year, the Company held leans dencminated in US Dollars and Euros, which
parually offset foreign currency nisk on foreign investments The ratio of loans held in US
Dollars and Euro s under regular review by Electra Partners in order to parually hedge as
efficiently as possible
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Long-term Strategic Risks
The Company 1s subject to the risk that its long-term strategv and 1ts level of performance
fall to meet the expectations of 1ts shareholders

The Board reguiarly reviews the Objective and Investment Poiicy, which can be found
on page 106, in light of prevailing investor sentiment to ensure the Company remains
attractive 1o 11s shareholders

Investment Risks

The Company operates in a highly competitive market The supply of investment
cpporiuniues relative 10 that of Investment capital, as wek as the abihty of Electra
Partners to access investment opportunities, could have a significant effect on the
Company's competitive pesition and on the sustainability of returns

In order to source and execute good guality invesiments the Company 15 primarily
dependent on Electra Partners having the ability 1o attract and retain executives with
the requisite iInvestment expenience and whose compensation 1s in line with the
Company’s objectives

The performance of the Company’s portfolio s influenced by a number of factors These
include but are not hmited te (1) the guality of the inrwal investment decision, (1) the
quality of the management team of each underlying portfolio company as well as

the ability of that team successfully to implement its business strategy, and {in) the
macroeconomic risks described above Any one of these factors could have an impact
an the valuation of an investment and on the Company’s ability to realise the investment
In a profitable and umely manner

Electra Partners has in place a ngorous investment process which ensures disciplined
investment selection and portfolio management This includes detalled due diligence,
regular portfolio reviews and In many cases an active engagement with portfolio
companies including by way of board representation

The Board regularly reviews both the performance of Electra Partners and its incentive
arrangements in order to ensure that both remain appropnate 1o the Company's
abjectives

Valuation Risk
The valuation of investments 1n accordance with 1AS 39 and IFRS 13 requires considerable
Judgement and 1s explained on pages 92 to 94

Operational Risk

The Company’s Investrment management, custody of assets and many administrative
systems are provided or arranged by Electra Partners The Company 1s thus exposed to
arange of operational nsks including these relating to human resources, legal and
regulatory matters, information technology systems, business disruption or shortcomings
N nternal controls

The Company s system of internal control mainly comprises the monitaring of the
services provided by Electra Partners, including the operating controls established by
them to ensure they meet the Company’s business objectives Further information is
included in the Corporate Governance Statement on pages 11910 123
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Community, Social, Employee, Human Rights and
Environmental Issues

In carrying out 1ts activities and in 1ts relationshups with the community, the Company
aims to conduct itself responsibly, ethically and farrly, including in relation to social and
human nghts 1ssues

The Company has no employees and the Board 1s composed entirely of non-executive
Directors As an investment trust, the Company has no direct impact on the environment
However the Company believes that high standards of corpeorate social responsibility
("C5R") make good business sense and have the potential to protect and enhance
investment returns Consequently, Electra Partners’ investment process 1s encouraged 10
take social, environmental and ethical 1ssues into account when these have a materia!
impacton either investment risk or return

Electra recognises and supperts the view that social, environmental and ethical best
practice should be encouraged

Board Diversity
There are currently three female and three male Directors on the Board and there have
been at least two female Directors on the Board since 2007

The Company aims to have a balance of relevant skills, expenence and background
amongst the Directors on the Beard and believes that all Board appointments should

be made on merit and with due regard to the benefits of diversity, including gender

The Board's aim 1s to continue te maintain a diverse Board and, subject to appointing the
best candidates avallable when current Directors retire, to have a proportion of at least
one third female Board representation

Apart from the main Board Directors all mine non-executive Directors of the Company's
consolidated subsidiaries, all of which are investrment holding or finance vehicles,
are mate

Electra 1s an investment trust which has no employees other than the non-executive
Directors of its main Board and therefore has no disclosures 1o make 1n this regard
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Performance and Prospects

Performance
A number of Key Performance Indicators (*KPls*) are considered by the Board and Electra
Partners in assessing the Company s success in achieving its objectives These KPIs are

Return on equity over the long term

a The Company’s objective 1s 1o achieve a return on equity of between 10% and 15%
per year over the long term Over the 10 years to 30 September 2014 the Company's
annualised diluted NAV per share return was 14% per year

The movement in net asset value per ordinary share

m The increase in the Company’s diluted net asset value per share was 15% over the
twelve months and 262% over the ten years to 30 September 2014 These increases
compared with 11% and 56% respectively by the Morningstar Private Equity Index

The movement in share price

m Theincrease in the Company's share price was 19% over the twelve months and 248%
over the ten years to 30 September 2014 These increases compared with 7% and 41%
respectively by the Morningstar Private Equity Index and 6% and 120% respectively by
the FTSE All-Share Index

Further details on the KPIs are shown on pages 2 to 3 of this Annual Repert fFurther
informauon on the Company's performance 1s given in the Chairman’s Statement, the
investment Highlights and Portfolio Review and the Financial Review on pages 4 to 5,
20 10 30, and 58 10 59 respectively

Prospects

The Company's current position and prospects are described in the Chairman’s
Statement, the Investment Highlights and Portfoho Review, the Market Review and
the Financial Review sections of this Annual Report, on pages 4 to 5, 20 to 31 and
5810 59 respectively

ru\|.,_u.

Roger Yates
Charrman
26 November 2014
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The Manager

About Electra Partners
Electra Partners 1s an independent private equity fund manager with over 25 years’
expernence In the mid-market

During this time, the Electra Partners team has invested in excess of £4 4 bilion in more
than 200 deals and realised £6 3 billion, with a consistent focus on mid-market
companies This track record of investing through numerous ecenomic cycles gives
Electra Partners both broad and deep experience across sectors, geographies and
business models

At 30 September 2014 Electra Partners had funds under management of over £1 6 billion
including capital available for investment of circa £300 million Electra accounts for more
than 90% of Electra Partners' funds under management, the balance 1s managed on
behalf of US and Eurcpean pensicn funds, asset managers and family offices

Superior Performance

Over the last ten years Electra, which 1s managed on an exclusive and fully discretionary
basis by Electra Partners, has seen diluted NAV per share grow by 262% This 1s nearly five
tumes the NAV per share return of the Morningstar Private Equity Index This is equivalent
1o a ten-year annualised return of 14%, at the upper end of Electra’s target range of
10-15% over the leng-term

Over the past 25 years, the Electra Partners team has dehvered investrent performance
in the top third when compared with similar fund sizes, strategies and vintages

The Electra Difference - Flexible Capital
Electra’s investment strategy and structure 1s different from that of almost every cther
private equity fund This has two key implications

First, Electra Partners 1s able to invest across the full range of private equity opportunities
control and minonty, equity and debt, direct and indirect This means that it can tallor its
Investiment strategy to suit changing market conditions and invest where many others
cannot

Second, Electra Partners 1s able to provide stable long-term capital [t doesn't face
expiring Investment penods or exit pressure driven by fund-raising cycles This means
that 1t can fully support investee comparnies with a long-term strategy and access to
capital, and exit when returns are maximised for shareholders
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Investment Strategy

Throughout its history, Electra Partners has focused on invesung for profits growih by
backing the nght managemant teams, comprising talented and experienced people
with a credible strategy Electra’s flexible capital allows Electra Partners to invest across
al! forms of private equity situations, which 1t categerises into three groups

1 Buyouts and Co-investments direct investment in high-quality, well-managed
businesses that have the potental for profits growth - through organic growth,
cperational improvement or acquisition As lead investor, Electra Partners typically
targets investments of £40 million to £120 million in UK-centric companies with an
enterpnse value of up to £300 millon Electra Partners also co-invests £20 milion to
£60 million in minenity positions In UK or internatienal companies alongside
founders, other private equity firms, corporates or the pubhic markets

2 Secondanes secondary purchases of existing investors’ positions i either individual
or porifolios of private equity funds, as well as acquisitions of portfolios of
businesses, known as “secondary directs”

3 Debt secondary purchases from existing lenders of individuzl or portfolios of either
performing or stretched loans, wherte “streiched” refers to debt in good businesses
with bad balance sheets where Electra Partners can take a role in the restructuning
cf the capnal structure

Electra Partners applies the disciplines of buyout investing 1o its appraisal and
management of investments 1n all three of these groups
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Growth Themes

Electra Partners’ invesiment strategy targets businesses driven by one or more macro growth themes, including

Descniption

Example

Austenty/Value

Consumers and businesses are
increasingly focused on saving money
through scale, technaology or value
propositions

The UK’ largest operator of holiday parks Demand
is supported by the value proposition of static
caravan parks to consumers looking for second
homes or holidays

Regulation

increasing regulation drives growth
opportunities for compliance
products/services and market
consclidation

Aleading supplier of amimal idenufication products
Growth 1s driven by increased regulation of the foed
chain to ensure food safety

Dermographic change

Changes in population structure and
profile create demand for specialist
products and services

The UK's largest shoe manufacturer Demand for
Hotter's cushioned and supportive footwear 1s
growing due to population ageing

International
The internaticnalisation of business
offers domestic or regional companies

OppOrtUNILIes to enter new geographic

markets using a range of strategies

Aleading supplier of professional audio equipment
Growth 1s based on an inCreasing number of live
events In developed and developing markets

Cigital economy

Processing and communication
technology development creates
cpportunities for new products and
S@IVICES

An international group of Informauon services
businesses New software applications are creating
further opportunities to sell or integrate information
into customers workflow

16 Electra Private Equity PLC | Report and Accounits 2014




Investment Model

Electra Partners’investment tearn 1s managed by Chief Investment Partner Alex Fortescue and reports 1o the Investment
Adwisory Committee and the Invesiment Commitments Committee Electra Partners operates 2 ngorous and disaplined

investment maodel, as described below
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2 = investment:

Managing networks of intermedianies, industry
experts and other introducers, thematic and secter
analysis to identify interesting areas and businesses,
developing relationships with target company
management teams and vendors

m 404 investment opportunities considered during
year to 30 September 2014

m 89% of completed UK buyout deals in Electra’s
space seen

Evaluauon and pnang of investment opportunities,
in-house and third-party due diligence, raising debt
from specialist capital markets, developing 100-day
and business plans with management teams,

winning deals, structuring, negotiation and closing

u 10 direct unlisted transactions completed
in the year to 30 September 2014
m Over £300 million of new debt raised

Putting 1n place the nght management team 1o
drive profits growth and cash generavon, working
closely with the team to develop strategy. set
targets, measure and manage performance, making
use of M&A and financing, and dealing with
problems and opportunities

m 5 bolt-on transactions completed in the year
0 30 September 2014

B 21% profits growth in direct unlisted portfaho
In the year 1o 30 September 2014

Identifying sirategic/inancial acguirers (iming
the exit, creating buyer appetite and competitive
tension, supplementing M&A with refinancings

a £352 million of capital realised in the year
a Over £45 mullion of cash returned from
repayment of loans in the year to
30 September 2014

*Excluding investrnents held for less than twelve rmonths
and property investments
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Investment Team

Electra Partners' senior management team s one of the most experenced teams i
the industry and has an average 24 years' experience in private equity The investment
team has an average of 19 years expenence in private equity and 1s supported by
ateam experienced in comphance, finance, investor relations and marketing For more
information about Electra Partners please visit www electrapartners com

Hugh Mumford Alex Fortescue Tim Syder

Managing Partner Chief Investment Partner Deputy Manaqing Partner
Years in private equity 33 Years in private equity 20 Years in private equity 29
David Symondson Alex Cooper-Evans Rhian Davies

Deputy Managmng Partner Partner Partner

Years \n private equity 30 Years In private equity 20 Years in private equity 21

Steve Ozin
Partner
Years in private equity 25

Bill Priestley
Partner
Yearsin private equity 17
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Charles Elkington
Investment Partner
Years in private equity 20

Nigel Elsley

Property Investment Partner

Years In ptivate equity 26

Chrnis Hanna
Investment Partner
Years in private equity 16

Sarah Wilhams
Investment Director
Years in private equity 12

Owen Wilson
Investment Director
Years in private equity 14

lan Wood
Investment Director
Years in private equity 12

Nicola Gray
Investment Manager
Years in private equity 5

Oliver Huntsman
Portfoho Manager
Years in private equity 32

Shakira Adigun-Boaye
Investment Associate
Years In private equity 3

Tom Stenhouse
Investment AssogQiate
Years in private equity 3
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Investment Highlights

“The 2014 financial year was a record year for new investrment derncnstrating the benefit of Electra’s flexible

Investment mancdate

“Trading conditions across the portfoiio as a whole have strengthened allowing 1ts prospects to be viewed

with confidence

“The 25% total return from the investment portfolio over the year reflects the quality and pricing of the deals
done over recent years as well as the success of our strategies for generating returns

“The 15% NAV per share total return over the year was again at the upper end of Electra’s long term target
range of between 10% and 15% per annum Over the past ten years Electra’s return on eguity has been 14%

perannum”

Performance for the Year

Buning the vear, Electra’s share price increased by 19% compared to a 6% total return for
the FTSE All-Share and a 7% total return for the Morningstar Private Equity Index over the
same pericd

Electra’s diluted net asset value ("NAV") per share alsc continued to grow strongly,
increasing by 15% to 3,174p at the end of the financial year compared to an 11% NAV
per share increase for the Morningstar Private Equity Index

The total return from the investment portfolio over the year amounted to £246 million
or 25% Further information regarding the effect of this strong investment performance
on Electra’s net asset value 1s included in the Financial Review on pages 58 to 59

Long-Term Performance

Over the last ten years, Electra’s shares have delivered a total return of 248% This
compares favourably to the total return over the same period of both the FTSE All-Share
(120%) and the Morningstar Private Equity Index (41%)

Qver the last ten years, Electras NAV per share wtal return has been 262% This again
compares favourably to the NAY per share total return over the same penod for the
Morningstar Private Equity Index of 56%

Investment Activity

New investment for the year tatalled £410 million, a record level for Electra compared
to £337 mullion in the previous year, itself a record year The direct unlisted portfolio
accounted for £392 rmillion of this investment where new investments were made N
buyouts, co-investments and bolt-cn transactions, all at attractive pricing levels

Realisations from the portfolio durning the year reached £352 million, compared te
£459 million in the previous year Realsations from the direct unhisted portfehe fell
as a result of the high level of realisations in the last two years However, £58 million
was realised by the sale of listed secunties and £60 million was realised from funds
and secondarnes
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Outlook

The year 10 30 September 2014 has been a year of excellent progress for Electra The
combination of a high level of new investment and strong value growth has increased
the investment portfolio to £1 3 billion This has resulted in Electra's balance sheet being
mere effectively deployed with an investment portfolio amounting to 106% of the net
asset value

Electra’s existing capital 1s invested in a diversified portfolio of investrnents which have
been acquired at attractive entry multiples The trading performance of many of these
Investments has been strong over the past year and they are well posiioned for further
growth QOur investment strategy remains to use Electra’s flexsble invesiment mandate
1o build and create further returns from the addition of appropriate private equity
assets We will continue to implement this strategy with patience and discipline in

a competitive market
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Portfolio Overview

AT 30 September 2014, Electra’s investment portfolio was valued at £1,272 milion The
investment portfolio consists of direct unlisted investments, secondanes, listed securnties
and funds The top 10 and 20 Investments account for 2% and 85% respectively of the
investment portfolio

Portfolio Breakdown

2014 2013 2012
Investment Portfolio £m fm £m
Direct unlisted 996 662 612
Secondaries 105 126 34
Listed 63 55 68
Core investment portfolio 1,164 843 714
Other listed 28 32 37
Funds 80 93 17
Investment portfolio 1,272 968 868

Direct Unhisted Investments (79% of portfolio)

Direct unlisted investments form the major part (79% compared to 68% at 30 September
2013) of Electra’s portfolio and consist of investments in 30 private companies with an
aggregate value of £996 milhon The 10 largest investments account for 729 of the direct
unlisted investment portfolio at 30 September 2014

Secondary Investments (8% of portfolio)

Secondary investments consist of imited partnership interests in third party private
equity funds purchased from investors exiting their pesitions prior to the end of the
fund's life As a sesult of their relative maturity, secondary investments typically produce
faster cash returns than direct unhisted investments At 30 September 2014 Electra held
investments in five secondary portfolios with an aggregate value of £105 million

Listed Investments (7% of portfolio)

Electra held seven listed investrnents with an aggregate value of £91 million at
30 September 2014 The largest Iisted investrment was Zensar Technologies with

a valuation of £63 millien Zensar is iIncluded within the core investment portfoho,
the remaining six Investments with a value of £28 million were outside the core
investment portfolio

Core investment portfoho (92% of portfolic)

The core investment portfchio includes investments where we have an active role in
originating, evaluating, negotiating and/or managing the investment The core investment
portfolic accounts for 92% of the Investment porifolio at 30 September 2014

Fund Investments (6% of portfolic)

Fund investments consist of imited partnership interests 1in third party private equity funds
where Electra made primary commitments to that fund New prmary commitments o
funds are no lenger a core part of Elecira’s invesiment strategy In 1otal, Electra held
investments In 18 funds with an aggregate value of £80 million at 30 September 2014
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Investment Portfolio - Sector Breakdown
30 September 2014 (30 September 201 3)

Direct Unhisted Investments - Age Analysis
{by last refinancing date)
30 September 2014 (30 September 2013)

Direct Unlisted Investments - Valuation Basis
30 September 2014 (30 September 2013)

Investment Portfolio - Geographic Breakdown*
30 Septernber 2014 (30 September 2013)

*Based on the location of the investee
compary s head office
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Construcnion and matenals

House leisure and
personal goods

Industrial general and
transportatian

Medha

Real estate

Priva.e equity funds
Secondanes
Support services

Technology hardware
and equipment

Travel and leisure
Orher

Less than 1 year old
1-2 years

2-3 years

Qver 3 years

Earnings basis

Recent ransaction
or market value

3% (6%)
15% (9%}

8% (7%)
119 (11%6)
4% (8%)
89 (11%)
8% (13%)
1896 {11%)

556 (4%)
15% (1156)
5% (9%)

359 (419)
27% (2496)
20% (1056}
18% (25%)

62% (69%)

29% (13%)

Redemption and exitvalue 0% {6%)

Net assets basis

UK

Continental Europe
UsA

Asia and elsewnere

9% (7%)

79% (64%)
1% (2093
5% (13%)
5% (3%)
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Portfolio Review

Portfolio Movement

Electra’s investment portfolio increased from £968 million 1o £1,272 millon dunng the
twelve months to 30 Sepiember 2014 The increase of £304 milhon resulted from the
acquisition of £410 million of new investments together with the portfoho return of
£246 million, offset by realisations of £352 milhon

2014 2013 2012 201 2010
Year ended 30 September fm £m fm £m £m
Openng investment portfolio 968 868 883 766 576
Investments 410 337 150 136 183
Realisations (352) {459) (301 (137) (149)
Total return 246 222 136 118 156
Closing investment pertfolic 1,272 968 868 883 766
Total return on opening pertfolic 25% 26% 15% 15% 27%

New Investments
Total new investment for the penod reached £410 milkon compared to £337 million n
the previcus year

New Investments

£410m

"Total new investment for the
percd reached £410 million
campared to £337 million
the previous year”

investment Type fm
W CALAGroup Co investment  £18m
Calrec (Allen & Heath) Buyout £15m
B Console Gioup Buyout £64m
O Ehan tformerly Gguer

fiduciary Services) Buyout £8im
& Garwyn (Daves Group)  Buyou: £3m
B Happy Child Nursenes

{Treetops) Buyout £5m
M Hotter Shoes Buyout £84m
O Innowia Group Co wwestment  £33m
W Southview and

Manor Park Buyout £20m
@ The Cniginal Bowling

Company Buyout £50m
B Oiher - £37m

The most significant indmvidual new investments were in respect of Hotter Shoes, Elian,
Console Group, The Qriginal Bowhng Company, Innowvia and the Southview and Manor
Park holiday parks

in January 2014 Electra nvested £84 million 1n the buyout of Hotter Shoes (*Hotter”)

Hotter 1s Britain's largest shoe manufacturer and sells over two miliion pairs of shoes each
year in the UK and internationally in stores, in catalogues and online s cusiomers comprise
those whose age, health or lifestyle require more cushioned and supportive footwear
Hotter more than doubled its sales in the four years prior to Electra’s investment as a result
of its UK store opening programme and its entry Into the US market Furthermore, the
company benefits from a strong brand and favourable demographic trends This growth
trend will be continued with new product development, further UK store operings and
opperiuniues in international markets
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Elian, formerly known as Ogier Fiducizry Services, s a leading provider of offshore trust, fund
and company administration services The company I1s headquartered in Jersey, 1s present in
a number of other offshore centres and serves 3,000 corporate, private and investment fund
clients worldwide Thne business exhibits a number of charactenstics which are attractive,
including a high level of recumng revenues and strong cash generation Moreover 1ts
fragmented, globat market benefits from high barners to entry and fundamental growth
drivers in the form of the increasing regulation and internationalisaticn of its corporate and
Investment management markets The intention 1s to cantinue the company’s growth trend
by developing 1ts international office netwark, expanding the team and through acquisiion
Electra invested £81 million in the buyout of Elian in June 2014

The strategy for Allen & Heath includes growth through acquisiions in the fragmented
professional audio sector In March Electra invested £15 million in Allen & Heath to
finance the acquisition of Calrec In August, Allen & Heath was merged with DiaiCo to
create a new professional audio group known as the Console Group This transaction
took the form of a realisatien of Electra’s interest in Allen & Heath followed by a

£64 million investment in the newly formed Console Group

In Septernber 2014 Electra invested £50 million 1n the buyout of The Oniginal Bowling
Company (“TOBC") TOBC 15 the UK’ largest ten-pin bowling operator with 43 bowling
centres cperating under the Hollywood Bowl and AMF brands The company specialises
in large, high-quaiity bowling centres, predominantly lacated in leisure or retail parks,
which offer a complete family entertainment experience with restaurants, licenced bars
and state-of-the-art family games arcades TOBC benefits from a well-invested estate
which has allowed 11 10 grow ahead of its market This growth trend will be continued
with close management of the existing estate as well as new openings and acquisitions

Innovia Group 1s a leading global preducer of speciality high performance films used in
the packaging industry, where the company occupies leadership positions in niche
markets and enjoys long-term customer relationships Innowvia is also an established
manufacturer of polymer banknote substrate for central banks Poiymer banknotes have
numerous advantages over paper notes including securnty, durability, impermeability
and cleanliness but today account for only a small share of all banknotes in circulation
The company’s strategy Is to grow 1ts packaging films business through product
innovation and capacity expansion, while developing its banknote substrate business
as ceniral banks areund the world increasingly choose to benefit from the advantages
of polymer over paper banknotes In April 2014 Electra invested €40 mullion (£33 mullion)
alongside Arle Caprtal in the buyout of Innovia

In August 2014, Electra made a £20 million investment in the acquisition of the
Southview and Manor Park holiday parks ("SVMP") These are large and established
holiday parks which together comprise more than 2,000 pitches, 2 9 hole golf course
and a four-star hotel The acguisition has been made i partnershup with Elecira’s
existing portfolic company, Park Resorts, which has managed both parks since 2010
and continues to de so Operating together, Park Resorts, South Lakeland Parks and
SYMP consutute the largest operator by number of sites in the fragmented and resilient
UK holiday parks sector The acquisiiion brings Electra’s investment in the holiday parks
sector to over £100 milhon
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In addition to the investrnents described above, Electra invested a further £18 muiilion in
CALA Group 10 finance land purchases and the acquisition of Banner Homes, £5 million
in Treetops 1o finance the acguisiuon of 15 nursery schoels from the Happy Child Group
and £3 milhion in Davies Group In respect of the acgursiion of Garwyn A further

£18 million was drawn down by private equity funds in which Electra 1s a limited partner
Commitments outstanding to private equity funds fell to £77 millton at 30 September
2014, compared to £94 million a year eatlier

New Investments and Reabisations (£m) - Year 1o 30 September
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2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
B New investments E Realisations

Realisations

Total realisations for the year came to £352 million compared to £459 million i the previous
year The reduction in the level of disposals was anticipated as a consequence of the very
high levels of realisations expenenced in the two years to September 2013

Realisations in penod

@ Allen & Heath £74m

AXIQ Data Group £22m

[ BOR Thermea £20m

£ 3 5 2 m [F EP) Secondary Portfolio  £28m

B Lil-lets Group £37m

B LondonMetnc Proper y  £36m

“Total realisations for the year B Nuare £16m
came to £352 milhon compared O Premier Assel

\ Management £20m

to £459 million in the previous year O Povate Equity Funds £26m

W Other £73m

The most significant realisations dunng the year were in respect of Allen & Heath, bi-lets
Group, LondonMetric Property, the EP1 Secondary Pertfolio, AXIO Data Group, BDR Thermea
and Premier Asset Management

As mentioned previously Allen & Heath was merged with DIGICo to form the Console Group

i August 2014 The transaction generated total proceeds of £74 million in cash and in
secuntes in the Console Group
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In Novemnber 2013 Electra sold its interest in Lil-lets Group, the ferminine hygiene brand, to
Premier Foods (Pty) Limited, a major South African manufacturer and distributor of fast-
maving consumer goads, receving proceeds of £37 million

Electra sold its entire holding in LondonMetric Property duning the year, realising total
proceeds of £36 million Electra sold a further six holdings from its isted portfolio during
the year, realising further proceeds of £20 million excluding deidends

During the course of the year Electra received total distnbuuions from the EP1 Secondary
Portfolio of £28 million The investment in the EP1 Secondary Portfolic has to date produced
a return of over 40% on onginal investment cost in less than twa years

Electra recerved £22 milion of loan repayments and interest from AXIO Data Group
Strong cash generation has resulted from profits, a reduction in working capital and
disposals of non-core assets This cash generation has allowed the return of 30% of the
onginal investrment cost of £91 million in less than eighteen months

In January 2014, Electra received the final instalment of £20 million in respect of deferred
consideration from the sale of BDR Thermea, bringing this investment to a successful
conclusien

In August 2014 Electra announced that it had agreed to sell a majonty shareholding In
Prermier Asset Management to Elcot Capital Management Electra received total proceeds
of £20 milhon cash and £26 million of preference shares, while retaining an equity Interest
of 25% This represents a £10 rilhon increase in the valuation over the year and compares
0 an onginal cost of £56 million The transaction has enabled Electra to crystallise some
of the benefit of Premier's recent strong trading performance while retaining structured
equity exposure to a pure-play retail asset management business growing at more than
30% per annum

Other realisation proceeds receved by Electra were £16 millicn of lcan repayments from
the refinancing of Nuawe and a further £26 million from private equity funds in which
Electra held a limited partnership interest

Performance
During the year to 30 September 2014 Electra’s investment portfolio generated a total
return of £246 miltion, an increase of 25% on the opening portfolio of £968 million

The performance arose principally from the direct unlisted portfolio which generated a
total return of £182 millien, representing an increase of 27% Excluding invesiments held
for less than twelve months and property iInvestments, earnings 1n partfolic companies
grew by 21% year on year Listed investments produced a return of £56 million or 64%,
mainly due to an increase In the share price of Zensar Technologies The secondaries
portfolio contributed £12 million to the total retum Private equity funds have produced
a negative return over the past three years, but returns are expected to improve as more
of these funds move Into a realisation period
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2014 2013 2012
Year ended 30 September £m im £m
Crrect Unhsted 182 199 19
Listed 56 7 20
Secondanes 12 33 8
Funds (4} (3) (1
Total return 246 222 136

The total return of £182 miltion from the direct unlisted portfolio included £35 mullion
of realised gains with the halance being unrealised Unrealised appreciation included
£125 miflion of valuation grewth resulting from profit Increases, £17 million i respect
of debt repayment by portfclio companies and £5 million as a result of changes in
multiples used for valuation

Analysis of Gains (Dwrect Unlisted Portfolio) £m

200

150

50

Eamings
growth

35 182

Debt Muluple Realised Total
repayment changes profits/income return

AL 30 September 2014 direct unhsted investments valued on an earnings basis reflected
a weighted average EVEBITDA ratic of 8 2x

Valuation Changes

In respect of direct uniisted investments retained at the end of the year, the most
significant increases In valuation arose In respect of AXIO Data Group, Park Resorts,
South Lakeland Parks and Nuaire

The investment strategy far AXIO Data Group included measures identified durning due
diligence to improve profit and cash performance through a focus on ¢osts and working
capital In 2013 the company implemented operating and capital efficiency programmes
across the group and the positive effects of these have continued inte the current year
The group has continued to simplify its portfolio by disposing of non-core assets and has
acquired complementary businesses (n order to strengthen its strategic pasition in selected
markets Further progress has been made in strengthening divisional management teams
while implementing performance improvement and growth initiatives across the group
The combination of iIncreased profitability, cash generation and an increase in the multple
used 10 value the company resulted in the vatuation of Electra’s investment 1n AXIO Data
Group Increasing by £57 million The valuation of this invesiment at the end of September
was 1 9x ornginal cost
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In line with our business plan for Park Rescrts following the company’s consensual debt
restructuring 1n August 2013, the winter of 2013/14 was spent investing n new capacity
and growth Together with strong trading conditions, this investment programme has
led to profits increasing by 22% to £40 million this year The performance resulted in the
valuation of Electra’s investment in Park Resorts increasing by £51 million The valuation
of this investment at the end of September was 1 9x onginal cost Further investment 1s
planned for the forthcoming winter season

Recognising that Park Resorts was an excellent platform for acquisiion-led growth, we
have made two further acquisitions in the holiday parks sector, South Lakeland Parks in
September 2013 and Southview and Mancr Park in August 2014 The management of
South Lakeland Parks was taken over by Park Resorts on acquisition, cost synergies and
performance iImprovement Infatives implemented since have resulted in profits growth
substantially ahead of plan and the valuation of Electra’s iInvestment increasing by

£22 million The valuation of South Lakeland Parks at the end of September was 2 1x
original cost

The valuation of Nuaire was increased by £18 million as a result of strong profits growth

and an increase in the multiple used to value the investment Under Electra’s ownership

the company maintained its Invesiment in product development and manufacturing
capabilities throughout the recession and 1s now well positioned to benefit from the
recovery in the construction cycle During the year the company refinanced its borrowings,
returning £15 million to Electra The total return on this investment at the end of September
was 2 4x ornginal cost

The largest decreases in valuation, all of which were unrealised dunng the year, were 1n
respect of Hotter Shoes, Promontoria and Sentinel Performance Solutions

The valuation of Electra’s investment in Hotter Shoes was reduced by £10 million The
management team has successfully achieved a number of strategic abjectives this year,
including further UK store openings, entening the German home shopping market and
broadening the product range and price architecture for the Autumn/Winter 2014/15
range A number of key appeintments have been made to strengthen the senior
management team However, a provision was made 1o reflect the difficult trading
environments 1n the UK and the US which have held back profits growth

Following a portfalio review, Promontonz reduced the valuanon of its real estate holdings
This review combined with negative currency movements reduced the valuation of
Electras investment in Promontoria by £7 million The total return on this investment at
the end of September was 19x ongnal cost

Sentinel’s trading environment has weakened this year for a number of reasons An early
start to spring and 2 warm autumn have reduced demand This has been compounded
by the competitive environment and seme customer destocking A number of
improvernents have been made to the sales function in response The valuation of
Electra’s investment however has reduced by £4 mithen The valuauon of this investment
at the end of September was 0 6x onginal cost
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Direct Unhisted Investments - Valuation Changes

The tabte below shows the valuaticn changes in respect of Electra’s largest direct unhsted
investments over the course of the year The remaining direct unlisted investments were
increased In value by £1 mililon in aggregate

Direct Unhsted Investments — Valuation Changes

AXIO Data Group

Park Resorts

South Lakeland Parks

Nuaire

Allen & Heath

Premier Asset Management
PINE

Cawvies Group

Peverel Group

CALA Group

Treetops Nurseries

Ehan formerly Ogeer Fiducary Serices)
Daler Rowney

The Onginal Bowling Company
Allflex Corporation

Southview and Manor Park
Console Group

Innovia Group

<alle

Labco

Senunel Performance Soluuons
Promontoria

Hotier Shoes

(LD (25%)

(£10m) EePa]

Hugh Mumford
Managing Pariner
Electra Partners LLP
26 November 2014
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Market Review

“Electra Partners continues to be able to find value by executing proprietary and off market deals at
attractive entry prices, not only in tradiional buyouts, but also through pertfolio company bolt-ons and
co-Investments

"We remain extremely selective and we will continue to concentrate on buying the nght assets at the
nght price”

This has been another record year of new investment (n which we have mamtained pricing
discipline despite the backdrop of a competitive market We have focused investment in
three areas first in growth businesses playing to our key investrnent themes, second in
stable, cash-generative businesses which appear to be relatvely undervalued by the market
at the moment, and thurd in beit-on acguisaions 1 which synergies and frequently imited
competition allow us to deploy capital at favourable prices

Market deal volumes

Deal volumes are stable but not buoyant In the year to 30 September 2014 there have
been 36 private equity deals in the UKin the £75 to £300 million range This 1s a slight
improvernent on the 34 deals last year, but still a long way below the pre-recession peak
Volumes ihis year were held back by IPO market conditions in the first quarter, which
diverted deal flow from the private equity market

Quarterly UK deal volumes (£75m - £300m)
25
20
15 b
7
e
4 2.
10 N <
s
R @ "
s AP 7 )
) L Pty
7 A5 WA s ) ' ¢
0 he 7 7 9\ N g?“u ‘A AN Wk 2 Y
Y/E305ept  Y/E30Sept  Y/E30Sept  Y/E3DSept  Y/E30Sept  Y/E30Sept  Y/E30Sept  Y/E30Sept  Y/E30Sept
2006 2007 2008 2005 2010 2011 2012 2013 014

Source MergerMarket (completed deals when EV is provided)

We see the vast majonty of appropnate deals in Electra’s size range Of the 36 deals
completed in the UK for the year t¢ 30 September 2014, we considered 32 of them (85%)
and completed three

Deal Pricing

Deal pncing has continued to nse In the year to 30 September 2014 the average entry
multiple for UK buyouts valued at more than £10 million was 10 6x EBITDA compared 1o
105x1n 2013 and 9 0x 1N 2012 {(source CMBOR) We are and should be prepared to pay

a full pnce for a high-quality asset However, by deploying the focus described abave, we
have successfully achieved a sigrificantly lower average entry multiple than the market,
transacting at a weighted average 7 5x EBITDA We expect this to continue

Alex Fortescue

Chief Investrnent Partner
Electra Partners LLP

26 November 2014
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Key New Investments & Realisations

HOTTER SHOES

New Investment

Date of imtial investment  Jan 2014

Type of deal Buyout
Growth themes International,
Demographic Change

Equity ownership 61%
Cost £84 million
Valuation £72 million
Valuation Based on multiple
of earnings

Location International
Website www hotter com
Management Peter Taylor, CEQ

Alan White, Charrman

In January 2014 Electra invested £84 million in equity In the management
buyout of Hotter Shoes (“Hotter™ from Stewart Houlgrave, the company’s
founder, and Gresham LLP

Estabhshed in 1959, Hotter (s Britain's largest shoe manufacturer and sells over
two million pairs of shoes each year in the UK and internauenally in stores, 1n
catalogues and onltne The company, with a strong focus on comfort and
service, serves customers whose age, health or lifestyle are such that they
require more cushioned and supportive footwear

Hotter is a growth business whese sales had mare than doutled in the four
years prtor to the buyout, driven by demograghic change, in paruicular
populauon ageing, and internaticnal growth opportunities in the US and
South Africa

The company’s growth strategy 15 built on a continued store opening
programme In the UK, on further growth in international markets threugh
distance selling channels, on increasing online sales, and on range
development and extension to broaden the target market

Since completion of the investment, Alan White, farmerly CEC of N Brown
Group PLC, has joined the company as non-executive Chairman We have
started the implementation of the growth plan by strengthening the senior
management team through key appointments 1n marketing and operations
A number of successes have been achieved, including UK store openings,
enterning the German market and upgrading the web platform in the UK and
US However, revenue growth has slowed this year due to difficut trading
condiions In the UK and US, and profits have declined as the investment in
growth has been maintained
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ELIAN

New Investment

Date of imtial investment  Jun 2014

Type of deal Buyout
Growth themes International,

Regulation
Equity ownership 60%
Cost £81 milhion
Valuation £81 milhon
Valuation Based on price of

recent transaction

Location International
Website www elian com
Management Paul Willing, CEQ

John Connelly, Chairman

In June 2014 Electra made an £81 million equity investment in the £180 muliion
management buyout of Elian, formerly Ogier Fiduciary Services, from Ogier LLP

Ehan is a leading provider of offshore trust, fund and company administration
services employing over 400 people it s headguartered in Jersey and has
operations in Cayman, Luxembourg, Guernsey, BV, Bahramn, Hong Kong and
London The company serves 3,000 corperate, private and investment fund
chents worldwide

The business enjoys a high level of recurring revenue and strong cash
generation [t has a blue chip chient base and strong relationships with its
regulators Its fragmented, global market enefits from high barriers to entry
aswell as a number of growth drivers demand 15 driven not only by legislation
and regulation which favour larger players, but also by the increasing levels of
Internaticnal trade and investment which reguire corporate or fund structures
to be established and administered

The intention 15 to continue the company’s histeric growth trend by developing
its international office network, expanding the team and through acquisition

Since completing the investment, we have appeinted John Connolly, formerly
Global Chairman of Deloitte LLP and currently Chairman of Amec Foster
Wheeler PLC and G45 PLC, as non-executive Chairman We have now largely
completed the separation of the business from its former owners and are
working closely with the management team to accelerate organic and
acquisition-led growth The companys financial performance since completion
has been ahead of expectations
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CONSOLE GROUP

New Investment

Date of initial iInvestment  Aug 2014
Type of deal Buyout
Growth themes International
Equity ownershup 58%
Cost £64 milhion
Valuation £64 milion
Valuation Based on price of
recent transaction

Location UK
Website www allen-heath com,
www calrec com,

www digico biz

Management  James Goerdon, CEQ

Malcolm Milier, Chairman

In 2013 Electra invested £42 millien in the acquisruon of Allen & Heath In
March 2014 Electra invested a further £15 million in Allen & Heath for the
acquisition of Calrec In August 2014 Allen & Heath was merged with DiGiICo to
create a new professional audio group The financing of the acquisition of
contrel by Electra was provided by Electra out of its own funds and bank
financing arranged by Electra Partners LLP Electra retained a 58% interest in
the new group at a cost of £64 million

Allen & Heath, Calrec and DiGiCo all design and manufacture audio mixing
consoles used to manage live sound In setiings ranging from concert venues
or houses of worship to live television broadcasts All three businesses have
strong premium brands, well-regarded products and a history of product
innovaticn The global market for professional audic products 1s growing,
fuelled by an increasing number of live events In both developed and
developing markets

The intention 1s to continue to gan market share by optirmising new product
development and sales and marketing activities across the brand portfolio
Further opportunities to consolidate the fragmented professional audio
market through acquisiion will also be considered

Since the date of Electra's anginal investment the company has sumulated
growth by nvesting in new product develcpment as well as sales and
marketing, and has improved margins with a reorganisation of its
manufacturing operations The financial performance of the group since
the DiGiICo transaction has been in line with expectations
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New investment

Date of imitial iInvestment  Sep 2014

Type of deal Buyout
Growth themes n/a
Equity ownership 85%
Cost £50 million
Valuation £50 million
Valuation Based on price of

recent transaction

Location UK

Website  www amf-bowling co uk,
www hollywoodbowl co uk

Management Steve Burns, CEO
Peter Boddy, Chairman

THE ORIGINAL BOWLING COMPANY

In September 2014 Electra made a £50 millicn equity investment in the

£91 million management buyout of The Onginal Bowling Campany {"TOBC”),
from CBPE Capital The financing of the acquisitien of control by Electra was
provided by Electra out of its own funds and bank financing arranged by
Electra Partners LLP

TOBC 15 the UK's largest ten-pin bowling business with 44 bowling centres
operating under the Hollywood Bowl and AMF brands TOBC specialises
in large, high-guality bowling centres, predominantly located in leisure or
retall parks, which offer a complete farmily entertainment experience with
restaurants, hcenced bars and state-of-the-art family games arcades

Ten-pin bowling 1s a robust and growing part of the UK leisure sector offering
opportunities for further expansion through new openings TOBC has grown
ahead of 1ts market thanks to its leading management team and history of
investment-backed growth, as a result of which its estate 1s well-positicned
10 make further advances

TOBC’s historical growth trend 1s expected to continue with close management
of the existing estate i order to optirmise yield and return on capital The
business plan also anticipates a number of openings of new bowling centres
aswell as acquisiion-led growth

At completion of the transaction Peter Boddy was appointed as non-executive
Charman Peter has significant experience of the leisure sector having been
CEO of Megabowl Group, a large ten-pin bowling operator, UK Managing
Director of Fitness First during the company’s growth and CEQ of Maxinutrition,
Europe’s feading sports nutrstion company The companys first new site under
Electra’s ownership, 1n Cheltenham, opened in November 2014 The company’s
financial performance since completion has been ahead of expectations
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SOUTHVIEW AND MANOR PARK

In August 2014 Electra made a £20 mullion eguity investment in the £49 million
New Investment acquisition of Southview and Manor Park holiday parks from Bluebird Partners
and a European bank The financing of the acquisition of control by Electra was
provided by Electre out of its own funds and bank financing arranged by

Date of initial investment  Aug 2014

Type of deal Buyout Electra Partners LLP
Growth themes Austenty/Value, Southview and Manor Park ("SYMP") are large and established holiday parks
Demaographic Change - Southview In Skegness, Lincolnshire and Manor Park in Hunstanton, Norfolk

Together the parks comprise more than 2,000 pitches, & 9 hole golf course as

Equity ownership 80% well as the four-star Southview Park Hotel

Cost £20 milhion
This 1s the second bolt-on transaction for Park Resorts, the first being South

Valuation £20 million Lakeland Parks which was completed 1n September 2013, and takes Electra’s
investment in the UK holiday parks sector ta over £100 milien Each of
these investments benefits from a resilent market supported by customer
recent transaction demographics and strong value propositions, high barriers to entry, a
cash-generative business model, and growth potential SYMP's large and

Valuation Based on price of

Location UK well-invested sites offer growth potential through the development of
Website www park-resorts com new pitches
Management David Boden, CEO Electra’s existing portfolio company, Park Resorts, has managed both parks
Alan Parker, Chairman since 2010 and continues to do so Operating tegether, Park Resorts, South
Lakeland Parks and SYMP constitute the largest operator of holiday parks in
the UK

The company's financial performance since completion 1in August 1son plan
Management 1s embarking on a major development plan at Southview to
expand capacity cver the next two seasons
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INNOVIA GROUP

New Investment

Date of imtial Investment  Apr 2014

Type of 1eal Co-investment
Growth themes International
Equity ownership 24%
Cost £33 million
Valuation £33 milhon
Valuation Based on price of

recent transaction
Location International
Website www innoviafilms com,

WWW INNOVIAseCcUnty com

Management David Beeby, CEOQ
Malcolm Fallen, Chairman

In April 2014 Electra made a €40 milhon (£33 mullion) equity investment in the
€498 milhon buyout of Innovia Group from the Candover 2001 Fund

The greup 1s headquartered in Cumbrnia and operates five manufacturing sites
worldwide innovia’s Films division s a leading global producer of speciality
high performance films prnimarily used in packaging applications for the food
and tobacco industries Innovia Films benefits from high barniers to entry and
steadily growing demand It occupies leading positions In mature niche
markets and enjoys long-term customer relationships

inncvia’s Secunty division is the leading manufacturer of polymer bankncte
substrate for central banks Polymer banknotes have numerous advantages
over paper notes including security, durability and cleanliness, yet today
account for only a small share of ali banknotes in crculation innovia Secunity
benefits from a strong intellectual property portfolio and a 20-vear track
record producing substrate for 36 central banks

The group’s strategy 15 to continue to grow its packaging films business
through praduct innovation and capacity expansion, while developing its
banknote substrate business as central banks around the world increasingly
choose to benefit from the advantages of polymer over paper banknotes

In early 2014 Innovia Secunty announced a new contract with the Bank of
England for the supply of polymer substrate for the next generation £5 and
£10 notes The group's financial performance since completion 1s behind
expectations as a result of the lumpy nature of orders from customers of
Innovia Secunty
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Realisations

LIL-LETS GROUP

Realisation

Date of inthial investment  Dec 2006

Date of realisation Nov 2013
Type of deal Buyout
Growth themes International
Cost £28 million
Proceeds £37 million
Multiple 1 3x
IRR 6%
Location UK and South Africa
Website www Il-lets com

Management

Martin Frost, CEOQ
Ken Pringle, Chairman

In 2006 Electra made a £26 million equity Investment in the management
buyout of Lil-lets from Accantia Group Having previously seen the return of
£5 millon, Electra made a further £7 milhion equity investment 1n 201210
order to support growth

Li-lets 1s a leading branded ferminine hygiene business and offers a complete
portfolio of feminine hygiene products under one brand The business
occupies leadership positions in both the mature UK and growing African
markets, supported by a trusted brand and an innovative approach to new
product development

In the UK, growth has been stimulated through brand investment In Africe, the
business has been expanded through geographic extension and performance
Improvement

In Novernber 2013 Lil-lets was sold to Premier Foods (Pty) Limited, a major
South African manufacturer and distributor of fast-moving consumer goods
Electia received gross proceeds of £37 million
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LONDONMETRIC PROPERTY

Realisation

Date of imtial investment  Nov 2007

Date of realisation June 20714
Type of deal Listed
Growth themes n/a
Cost £30 million
Proceeds £49 million
Multiple 16x
IRR 10%
Location UK

Website www londonmetnic com

Management Andrew Jones, CEQ
Patrick Vaughan, Charman

In 2007 Electra invested £20 milion in commercial property fund London &
Stamford Property PLC's £285 mullion listing on AlM A further investment of
£10 miihon was made in 2009 In 2013 the company merged with Metric
Property Investments PLC and was renamed LondonMetnic Property

LondonMetric invests across the UK, primanly in out-of-town retail and
distribution assets but with some expasure to office and London residential
property The company employs an active asset management approach in
order to improve both rental values and the secunty and longevity of income

In 2007 LondonMetnc's senior management team, led by Raymond Mould
and Patrick Vaughan, anticipated that depressed valuations in the commercial
property market would create the opportunity for a cash-rich fund 1o make

a number of well-pnced acquisitions Electra had previcusly backed Raymond
and Patrick in successful investments in Arington and Pillar

Since the merger with Metric, LondonMetric has rebalanced its portfolio
by selling the majority of the residential property assets and buying retail
distribution sites to benefit from the growth of internet shopping This has
had the added benefit of improving the iIncome generaticn capacity of the
portfolio to service a growing dividend yield

Between October 2013 and June 2014, following a strong rise in LondonMetnc’s
share price, Electra sold its interest in the company Over the seven years of its
Investment, Electra received total proceeds, including dividends, of £49 million
This equates te & return of 1 6x cost and an iRR of 10%
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PREMIER ASSET MANAGEMENT

Realisation
Date of initial iInvestment  Sep 2007
Type of deal Buyout
Growth themes Regulation
Equity ownership 25%
Cost £36 milhon
Proceeds £20 million
Valuation £26 millien
Valuation Based on price of
recent transaction
Multiple 09x
IRR n/a
Location UK
Website  www premierfunds co uk
Management Mike O'Shea, CEQ
Mike Vogel, Chairman

In 2007 Electra made a £33 million minority equity and debt investment
In the take-privale of Premier In 2009 Electra made a further £24 million
equity investment to support the acguisition of two OEICs from Aberdeen
Asset Management

Premier is a retail asset manager, with the bulk of its assets under management
("AUM") 1n branded retall funds, of which the largest franchises are in mulu-
asset, UK equities, global equities and fixed income

The retall investment market displays growth drivers including demographic
and regulatory change from which Premier 1s well placed to benefit due to its
strong product portfolio and investment performance The intention remains
to accelerate growth by mvesting in sales and marketing and by exploring
other opportunities to extend the scope of the business

In 2013 the company Increased 1ts marketing investment 1n order to take
advantage of strong fund performance as well as 2 favourable demand
environment Fellowing the success of this iImtiative, In 2014 the company
extended its marketing investment programme Net sales of investment
products have improved and AUM now stand at £3 1 billion, 20% ahead of
the prior year Financial performance is strong, with sales and profits growth
of 15% and 30% respectively

In September 2014 Electra sold a majornity shareholding in Premier to Efcot
Capital Management On completion Electra received total proceeds of

£20 mullion cash and £26 milhon of preference shares, while retairming an
equity interest of 25% This represents a £10 million increase in the vzluation
over the year and compares to an onginal cost of £56 milion
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Hotter Shoes

Shoe, designer, manufacturer and retail




Key tnvestments

Direct Unlisted and Secondary Investments
Fair Value Net Fair Value Caost
of holding at payments/ Performance of holding at of holding at
30 Sept 2013 {receipts) n penod 305Sept 2014 30 5ept 2014
fm fm fm £m im
AXI0 DATA GROUP 105 (22) 57 140 69
B2B information services
PARK RESORTS 87 (3) 51 135 70
Holiday parks operator
EP1 SECONDARY PORTFOLIO 106 {28) 8 86 45
Secondary private equity funds
ELIAN - 79 2 81 81
Fiduciary services
HOTTER SHOES - 82 (i0) 72 84
Shoe designer, manufacturer and retailer
CONSOLE GROUP - 63 1 64 64
Audio miang console manufacturer
ALLFLEX CORPORATION 33 - 1 54 57
Arumal dentfication systems
THE CRIGINAL BOWLING COMPANY - 49 1 50 50
Ten-pin bowling cperator
PEVEREL GROUP 40 - 4 44 22
Property management services
SOUTH LAKELAND PARKS 21 2) 22 41 19
Holiday parks operator
CALA GROUP 16 18 4 38 32
National house builder
NUAIRE 35 {15) 18 38 14
Ventlation systems manufacturer
INNOVIA GROUP - 33 — 33 33
Speciality films manufacturer
DALER-ROWNEY 28 - 1 29 17
Fine art materials supplier
PREMIER ASSET MANAGEMENT 36 (20) 10 26 30
investment management
PINE 18 m 7 24 14
Property holding company
DAVIES GROUP 15 3 5 23 39
Insurance claims management
SOUTHVIEW AND MANOR PARK - 18 1 20 20
Holiday parks operator
PROMONTORIA 27 (2) (7) 18 12
Property holding company
TREETOPS NURSERIES g 5 2 16 12
Nursery schools operaior
LABCO 16 4} (2) 13 25
Med cal diagnostics
Sub total 612 257 176 1,045 809
Qther investments 176 (138) 18 56
Total Direct Unlisted and Secondary Investments 788 119 194 1,101
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Listed Investments
Fair Vaiue Net Fair Value Cost
of holding at payments/ Performance of holding at of holding at
30 Sept 2013 (receipts) n penod 30 Sept 2014 30 Sept 2014
fm £m im £m im
ZENSAR TECHNOLOGIES 24 (m 40 63 4
Software
DINAMIA 8 m 3 10 14
Spanish private equity
32 (2) 43 73 18
Other investments 55 50 i3 18
Total Listed Investments 87 (52) 56 N
Fund Investments
Fair Value Net Fair Value Cost
of holding at payments/ Performance of holding at of holding at
30 Sept 2013 {receipts} In penod 30Sept 2014 30 Sept 2014
fm fm fm im fm
Funds 93 (9} 4) 80 127

The three largest funds were Gaja Capital, Motion Equity Partners, and TCR Capital, which accounted for 38% of the total value
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Large Private Equity Investments

AXIO DATA GROUP

Date of initial Investment ~ Apr 2013

Type of deal Buyout

Growth themes {nternational,

Digital Economy

Equity ownership 69%
Cost £69 million
Valuation £140 rulion
Valuation Based on multiple

of earnings
Multiple 19x
Location International
Website WWW axiogroup net

Management Henry Elkington, CEQ
Hans Gieskes, Chairman

In 2013 Electra invested £91 million in debt and equity to finance the
£148 million acquisition of UBM plc’s Data Services division, since renamed
AXIO Data Group

AXIO comprises seven Information businesses serving a range of sectors in
over 25 countries healthcare, intellectual property licensing, containenised
trade and breakbulk services, aviation and forest products

AXIO's businesses are defensive by virtue of their industry and geographic
dwersity Its strong brands occupy leadership positions in niche markets and
it1s robust and cash-generative The strategy Is to grow profits through growth
in revenues from digital products, performance iImprovement and acquisition,
and te realise multple arbirage by selling the portfolio's components 1o
strateqic acquirers

In 2013 the group implemented operating and working capial efficiency
programmes across Its portfolio and the positive effects of these have
conunued inte the current year The group has acquired complementary
businesses, for example FOEX Indices in Finland, In order to strengthen its
position in selected markets, and 1t has continued to simplhify its portfalio by
disposing of non-cere assets such as Medical Observer and A Cargo World
Further progress has been made in strengthening divisional management
teams while imglementing business iImprovement and growth initiatives
across the group

Financial performance 1s strong with profits increasing by 15% compared to
prior year on flat sales In November 2014 it was anncunced that AXIO had
agreed to sell one of its seven businesses, JOC Group, to IHS Inc
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PARK RESORTS

Date of iniial investment  Dec 2012

Type of deal Debt

Growth themes Austenty/Value,
Demographic Change

Equity ownership 49%
Cost £70 million
Valuation £135 million
Valuation Based on multiple

of earmings
Multiple 19x
Location UK
Website www park-resorts com
Management Dawvid Boden, CEQ

Alan Parker, Chairman

1n 2012 Electra acquired senicr delzt in Park Resorts for £70 million at a significant
discount to face value, making Eiectra the largest iender to the group

Park Resorts 1s a feading UK operator of caravan holiday parks The company
has a strong management team and a leading position m a defensive,
fragmented sector that has performed strongly throughout the recession
as a result of its customer demographic and value proposition

While the iInvestment case produced attractive returns in the event of the debt
position being held 1o matunity, the strategy was o take an equity position in
Park Resorts through a restructuning of the company’s debt and thereafter to
grow the business both organically and through acguisition

The restructunng of Park Resorts debt was completed in August 2013 when
funds managed or adwvised by Electra Partners became the majorty
shareholders, and a significant amount of capiial was rmade avallable to
improve park facilities

Following this restructuring, the winter of 2013/4 was spent implementing a

£4 million growth capital expenditure programme, with new investment in hire
fleet, pitches and park faalities Together with strong trading conditions, this
programme has led to sales and profits growth of 6% and 22% respectively

In November 2014 the appointment of Alan Parker CBE, formerly Chief
Executive of Whitbread plc and currently Chairman of Darty plc and
Mathercare plc, as non-executive Chairman of Park Resorts was announced
Alan joins the business as it embarks on another growth investment
programme, with a further £4 million of capital expenditure approved to
dnve future growth
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ALLFLEX CORPORATION

Date of initial iInvestment Jul 2013

Type of deal Co-investment

Growth themes Regulation,
International

Equity ownership 15%
Cost £57 million
Valuation £54 million
Valuation Based on multiple

of earnings
Multiple 10x
Location International
Website www allflex-group com

Management  Jacques Martin, CEO
Jean-Baptiste Wautier, Chairman

In 1998 Electra invested £23 mullion in the US$160 miliion buyout of Allflex

In 2013 Electra sold its Investment in Allflex generating a return of 15x onginal
cost and an IRR of 28% Electra made a new equity investment of £57 miliion
for a minonty stake in Allflex alongside the private eguity buyer

Allflex 1s the world's leading manufacturer and distributor of visual and electronic
animal identification tags Headguartered in the US and with operations in key
global livestock markets, ncluding Brazil, France and China, Allflex sells mare
than 200 million tags each year in over 60 countries worldwide

The company has seen strong growth driven by not only greater regulation
of the food chain to ensure food safety, but also increasingly sophisticated
farm management techniques Since 1998, the company has expanded
geographically, developed new products tc address a wider range cf animal
specles, invested in new technclogies such as electronic identfication and
genetic tags, and acquired a number of smaller competitors Increasing
requirements for food chain secunity create strong long-term growth
prospects for Allfex

Following a slow year in 2013 as a result of severe drought conditions in
Australia and a cold spring in northern Europe, the company has returned to
growth in 2014 Performance 1n Australia s improving and Allflex has enjoyed
strong growth 1n the Amencas and mast European markets Sales and prefits
growth are now satisfactory at 8% and 10% respectively As a US Dollars-
denominated investment, the sterling valuation has been negatively impacted
by currency mcvements since the date of Electra’s investment
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PEVEREL GROUP

Date of inttial investment  Mar 2012

Type of deal Buyout
Growth themes Austerity/Value,
Demographic Change

Equity ownership 49%
Cost £22 mullion
Valuation £44 milhon
Valuation Based on muttiple
of earnings

Muluple 20x
Location UK
Website www peverel co uk

Management  Janet Entwistle, CEO
Paul Lester CBE, Chairman

In 2012 Electra made a £22 million equity investment in the £62 rmillion
acquisition of Peverel, the UK's leading praperty management services group,
from 1ts administrators

Peverel s one of the UK's leading property services businesses The company
provides general management services 10 almaost 4,000 retirement and other
resrdential developments across the UK The company also provides telecare and
telehealth monitoring services that allow people to live iIndependently In their
own homes

The business i1s the leader in a robust market, and offers the cpportunity to grow
not only as a result of demaographic change but also by taking advantage of its
nationwide coverage and economies of scale The intention 1s to Invest In service
improvernent Initiatives and bustness development capabilities in order to
enable the business to salidify its market leadership positicn and then grow its
customer base

The company has continued to improve customer service by redesigning
business processes These initatives are being complemented with 2
substantial investment in IT across the business, in enterprise systems and
hand-held technology in the field, as well as 1n new product development
Further investment currently underway in bustness development resources
and strategies 15 mtended to enable the business to accelerate its growth rate

Revenues and profits are growing at 7% and 5% respecuvely compared to
prior year
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SOUTH LAKELAND PARKS

Date of initial investment  Sep 2013

Type of deal Buyout
Growth themes Austerity/Value,
Demographic Change
Equity ownership 71%
Cost E19 milion
Valuation £41 million
Valuation Based on multiple
of earnings
Muluple 2%
Location UK
Website

www southlakelandparks co uk

Management David Boden, CEOQ
Alan Parker, Chairman

In September 2013 Electra invested £21 rmillion in equity in the £47 million
rmanagement buyout of South Lakeland Parks from White Ocean Leisure and
its lenders Of this investment, £2 million was subsequently syndicated to

a Co-nvestor

South Lakeland owns and operates nine freehcld heliday parks in the English
Lake District and Morecambe Bay area The parks have 2,500 pitches with
around 90% being occupied by caravan or lodge ewners Since acquisiion
these parks have been managed by Park Resorts

The holiday park sector is defensive and fragmented and has performed
strongly throughout the recession as a result of its customer demographic
and value proposition South Lakeland's estate of high-quality parks fits well
with the existing Park Resorts portfolio

The intention is to deliver operational iImprovements and profits growth in
the South Lakeland portfolio through improved management ¢f the estate
Investment in the infrastructure and faciities of the halday parks will

further enhance therr appeal to both caravan owners and holiday-makers
Opportunities 1o further develop the exising South Lakeland estate will also
be considered

Since completion of the transaction In September 2013, a £2 million
infrastructure investment programme at several parks has been compieted
and a number of revenue and cost optimisation projects have also been
implemented Financial performance is strong with sales and profits growth
of 35% and 50% respectvely Further growth will result from the £2 milhon
investment planned for the upcoming winter season
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CALA GROUP

Date of inial investment  Mar 2013

Type of deal Co-investment
Growth themes n/a
Equity ownership 11%
Cost £32 mulhion
Valuation £38 million
Valuation Based on net assets
Multple 12x
Location UK
Website www cala co uk/group
Management Alan Brown, CEQ

Anthony Fry, Chairman

in 2013 Electra made an equity investment of £13 milkon alongside Patron
Capital Partners and Legal & General in the £210 million acquisition of CALA
Group from Lloyds Banking Group During 2014 Electra increased its investment
to £32 million to support land purchases and the acquisition of Banner Homes
In March

CALA Group 1s a national house bullder which provides high quality homes

in Scotland, the Midlands and South East England Banner Homes'focus on
premium hormes in the South East represents a strong strategic fit for CALA
and accelerates its strategy to double in size by 2017 Following the acquisition,
CALA 15 one of the ten largest housebuilders in the UK

The UK currently expeniences a significant undersupply of new houses
Laosening planning reguiations, measures o improve mortgage availability and
an improving macroeconomic environment have created favourable condtions
for an investment In the house bullding sector

The investment strategy Is to develop the land bank, much of which was
acquired at attractive prices following the global financial ¢risis, while supporting
the company with further capital for either land or corporate acquisiions

CALAS financial performance 1s strong, with higher selling prices and increased
volume contributing te revenue and profits growth of 22% and 76% respectively
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NUAIRE

Date of imtial investment  Apr 2007

Type of deal Buyout
Growth themes Regulation
Equity ownership 49%
Cost £14 million
Valuation £38 mulion
Valuation Based on multiple

of earnings
Multiple 2 4x
Location UK
Website www nuaire co uk

Management Mark Huxtable, CEQ
Kevin Sargeant, Chairman

In 2007 Electra invested £23 million in the £83 million management buyout
of Nuaire from ECl Partners

Headquartered in Caerphully, Nuaire 15 a leading UK-based manufacturer
and distributor of ventilation equiprnent for infrastructure, commeraial and
residenual applications The company’s innovative products help clients
reduce ther energy consumption and carben emissions

The company 1s benefiting from increasing demand for inteligent ventilation
systerns to comply with more stringent UK building regulations and energy
efficiency requirements Nuaire's strategy s to capitalise on this demand
dynamic by offering innovative and high-quality products supported by
SUPEFION service

Nuatre has continued to broaden its addressable market through new product
development and this year has seen the launch of products including the
XBOXER XBC commercial heat recovery range which was named “Energy
Saving Product of the Year" by the Chartered Institution of Bullding Services
Engineers This development reflects Nuaire's continued investment 1n product
development and manufactunng during the recession In the last three years,
the company has invested £4 million in capital equipment including
upgrading manufacturing capacity

At the same time the company has achieved efficiency savings across the
business Meanwhile construction markets have continued to recover with the
Construction Products Association forecasting further growth 1 the next three
years Financial performance 1s strong with revenues and profits growth of 15%
and 25% respectively
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DALER-ROWNEY

Date of iniuial investment  Mar 2011

Type of deal Buyout
Growth themes Internaticnal
Equity ownership 41%
Cost £17 rmillion
Valuation £29 mithon
Valuation Based on multiple

of earnings
Multiple 17x
Location International

Website www daler-rowney co uk

Management Patnick Giraud, CEQ
Luis Bach, Chairman

N 2011 Electra made a £17 million equity investment in support of the buyout of
Daler-Rowney from private shareholders

Daler-Rowney 1s one of the largest suppliers of fine art matenals in the world
with a comprehensive product range including artists’paints, brushes, papers
and canvases which meet the needs of arusts from beginners to professionals
The company manufactures its products in the UK, the Domintcan Republic
and Germany and sells in more than ninety countrnes worldwide

The company occupies a leading position in a stable, niche market benefiting
from high barners to entry created by products, brands and supply chain
complexity The Intention Is 10 continue to Invest in product development and
in sales and marketing 1n order to grow market share, and at the sare tme to
undertake further geographic expansion

Daler-Rewney has continued to expand its manufacturing platform in the
Dominican Republic, not only to accommodate expansion elsewhere In the
group but aiso to manufacture new products, such as canvas paneis Sales
synergies between Daler-Rowney and Schoenfeld, which was acquired at the
beginning of 2013, have been ¢reated, and the company has built and
strengthened relatienships with a number of retaill multiples

Financial performance s satisfactory with sales growth of 4% and underlying

profits, which have been held back by currency movements, at the same level
asin the previcus year
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PINE

Date of imitial investment  Jun 2005

Type of deal Co-investment
Growth themes n/a
Equity ownership 99%
Cost £14 milion
Valuation £24 milicn
Valuation Denved from property

investment value

Multiple 16x%
Location UK
Website www thepinefund com

Managerment Harry Hyman, CEQ
(Nexus Group)

Electra first invested in PINE in 2005 as a start-up to exploit an idenufied
opportunity to create a new institutionally acceptable property asset class
in conjunction with an expernienced progerty specialist and 2 nursery
school operator

PINE inmally comprised a sale and leaseback property investrent portfolio of
nursery schoois let on index-linked leases to nursery schoo! operators, as well
as a nursery schocl operating business [n 2012 Treetops Nursenes was spun
out of PINE as part cf a refinancing and 1s now a standalone investment in
Electra’s portfolio, valued at £16 million at 30 September 2014

PINE's property portfolio 1s cash positive after debt servicing and has
maintained its value in a difficult non-prime commercial property market
through a combination of rental growth and general market appetite for
index-linked rental income
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DAVIES GROUP

Date of initial nvestment  Sep 2011

Type of deal Buyout
Growth themes Austenty/Value
Equity ownership 57%
Cost £39 milion
Valuatton £23 million
Valuation Based on multiple

of earnings
Location UK
Website www davies-group com
Management Dan Saulter, CEO

Adnan Hill, Chairman

In 2011 Electra invested £36 million in equity in the £60 mdlion management
buyout of Davies Group from LDC A further £3 mithon was invested in
December 2013 1o fund the acguisiion of Garwyn

Davies 1s a leading insurance claims service provider It employs 580 people
across the UK and Republic of Ireland and offers a full spectrum of validation
and fulfilment services including claims management, loss adjusting, restoration
and repair Davies's focus is on servicing claims relating tc residential property,
commercial and specialist hability policies The business handies aver 120,000
claims each year and manages more than £600 million of Indemnity spend

The claims management sector benefits from barners to entry built on the scale
and systems required to dehver service guality in an area of critical importance
to insurers

Following disappointing initial trading, the financiai and operational
performance of Davies has been transformed There have been four main
components to this transformation Firstly, management was strengthened
with the appointment of a new chairman, CEQ and CFO Secondly, we
undertack a significant cost programme with more than £8 million removed
from the operating cost base Trirdly, the foundations for future growth were
laid with major investment in systems, traming/culture, business development
and operating mode! Finally, we made the transfarmative acquisiton of
Garwyn, a leader in the liability space

Davies has returned to growth with profits increasing fourfold in the year to

July 2014 and with an exciiing pipeline of both organic and acquisitive
growth opportunities
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PROMONTORIA

Date of inmhial investment  Oct 2007

Type of deal Buyout
Growth themes n/a
Equity ownership MN%
Cost £12 millien
Valuation £18 milhon
Valuation Based on net assets
Multiple 19x
Location Germany
Website n/a

Management n/a as holding company

In 2002 Electra provided acquisition funding to a new company to allow it
to undertake the sale and leaseback of certain German retall property assets
The company was itself acquired 1in 2007 by Promontorna, an unleveraged
Iinvestment company, for which Electra received consideration in the form
of ordinary shares and loan stock

Today Promontoria owns 91 retall properties situated throughout Germany
Of these, 79 are leased to the German discount chain Woclworth, which
underwent a financial restructuring n 2010 The business strategy 15 to
continue to develop the portfolio and iImprove the tenant mix Properties
will be sold when attractive and deliverable offers are receved

Over the past two years, 14 stores have been redeveloped for a total
investrnent of €30 million and leased to a range of high street names including
Woolworths, C&A, TK Maxx and H&M A new €5 million redevelopment has
recently commenced in Frankfurt for completion in late 2015 Over the past
seven years, 18 steres have been sold by Promontona for aggregate proceeds
tn excess of €185 million These funds have been distnbuted to shareholders,
with Electra receiving €19 miliicn
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TREETOPS NURSERIES

Date of imbial investment  Feb 2012

Type of deal Buyout
Growth themes Demographic
Change

Equity ownership 79%
Cost £12 mallion
Valuation £16 milion
Valuation Based on multiple
of earnings

Multiple 13x
Location UK

Website www treetopsnursenes co uk

Management Charles Eggleston, CEO
Stephen Booty, Charman

In 2012 Treetops Nurseries was spun out of PINE as part of a refinancing and

1s ncw a standalone investrment in Electra’s portfolio Electia invested a further
£2 mihion 1n 2013 te finance the acquisition of Toyhax {four freehold sites in
Bedfardshire) and a further £5 millicn in 2014 to fund the acquisition of Hapoy
Chiid (15 nurseries)

Headquartered in Derby, Treetops is the sixth-targest nursery school operator in
the UK, operating 50 nurseres (30 freehold, 20 leasehold) predominantly in the
Midlands and South East and with over 3,300 registered places Around 90% of
the company’s nursenes are rated Good or Qutstanding by OFSTED

Treetops was separated from PINE in order to allow it to benefit from dedicated
rmanagement focus and access to growth capital Treetops expects 1O grow
organically, in particulzar through improved marketing and investment In the sites,
designed to improve occupancy Opportunities to grow through acquisition of
cther operators in the highly fragmented nursery market are also being actively
pursued The cash generative nature of the business model creates capacity ¢
finance acquisiions Internally

Since 2012, the company has built a senior management team expernenced
1n acquisition-led growth Treetops has made a number of acquisitions which
have more than doubled profitability, bringing the company greater scale and
a more significant presence 1n the attractive London and Scuth East markets
Operational improvement and site enhancement programmes have been
implemented in acquired sites Financial performance 1s strong with sales and
profits growth of 27% and 22% respectvely
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LABCO

Date of initial investment Jul 2008

Type of deal Co-investment
Growth themes Demographic
Change

Equity ownership 5%
Cost £25 mithon
Valuation £13 million
Valuation Based on multiple
of earmings

Multiple 0 5x
Location International
Website www labco eu

Management Philippe Charner, CEQ
Andreas Gaddum, Chairman

In 2008 Electra invested €30 million in a minonity equity position in Labco

Labco i1s a leading pan-European clinical laboratory services group The
company Is the market ieader in France, Spain and Portugal and also occupies
leading positions in ltaly and Belgium It operates over 200 laboratories in
which 1ts 500 senior chemists and doctors perform 500,000 tests per day for
more than 15 million patients each year

The company operates in fragmented markets in which overall demand 15
growing due to demographic change, medical advances and an increased
propensity 1o test preventatively At the same tume, regulatory changes and
public spending pressure are expected to lead to market consalidation
favouring larger players

The straiegy has been 1o support Labco in 1ts acquisition of smaller laboratory
groups, with the company’s scale and infrastructure subsequently being used
to improve the acquired businesses Electras investment was used to fund
acquisibons in Spain, Germany, France and laly

Following the sale of 1ts sub-scale German business for €76 million in 2013,
the company has continued to make acquisitions In 1ts core markets Sales
and profits growth are both 2%, reflecting both organic growth and the effect
of acquisiticns
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Large Listed Investment

ZENSAR TECHNOLOGIES

Date of imtial Investment  Sep 1997

Type of deal Co-investment
Equity ownership 24%
Cost £4 millien
Valuation £63 million
Multiple 17 0x
Lacation International
Website WWW zensar com

Management Ganesh Natarajan, CEO
Harsh Goenka, Chairman

In 1997 Electra invested US59 millon 1n the equity of an unguoted subsidiary

of listed parent, Zensar Technologies In 2001 the listed parent closed down its
operations and the unlisted subsidiary performed a reverse merger This resutted
in Elecira owning shares in the listed enuty

Zensar 1s a provider of software development services to large corporates,
offening both an onsite and offsite service Onsite services constst of contracts,
whereby Zensar provides software engineers to work on customers’ premises
{mainly the US and UK) whereas for the offshore business the work s undertaken
by Zensar's software professionals located in its software development centres

N India

As an early entrant to the software services market and having established strong
customer relationships and a good reputation, Zensar was well positioned 1o be
able to grow In the sector

Today the company employs over 6,800 pecple at 22 locations arcund the
globe The company has a giobal reach operating 1n the US, Europe, Africa,
Middle East, Singapore and Australia regions and has delivery centres in
India (Pune, Hyderabad and Bangalore), China, the UK, Amsterdam and the
USA (Westborough)

The company has an acquisiion strategy to add niche capabiliies and to bulk up

TJodate, USS10 mullion has been returned to Electra by way of dvidends and
sales of shares
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Financial Review

“The Company's diluted NAV per share increased by 15% during the year to 3,174p as a result of a strong
performance from the total portfolic which delivered gains of £246 million”

Analysis of Movement in Net Asset Value per share

The Consolidated Income Statement on page 61 shows the total return for the penod which,
together with the )impact of Bond conversions, provides an analysis of the movement in NAY
Performance from the investment partfolio contnbuted £6 15 per share, Just over 22% of the
opening NAV Foreign currency maovemnents on the lcan used for hedging contributed a further
15p From this, finance, operating cosis and tax were 75p The prionty profit share paid (o Electra
Partners for managing the portfolio was 62p per share and the charge for ncentive schermes
was 90p Lastly, a bond conversion Increased NAY by 7p The above net costs together with the
investrnent performance result in an iNcrease to net assets of £4 10 per share, a total return of 15%

Analysis of Movement in Net Asset Value per share (p)
0 35 (50)
600 EEEEIEETIN mQS) (62}
500 {90
7 410
400
300
0
100
0
10ct 2013 Net gains on FX Finance Expenses Prignty profit Incentive Bond 305ept2014
Cpening NAV  investments Costs and tax share schemes conversion  Closing NAV
per share per share
2764p 317ap

Incentive Schemes

The incentive arrangements (alternatively referred to as "carned interest”, which are similar to
arrangements found elsewhere in the private equity industry, are designed 1o align Electra
Partners’interests with Electras shareholders This 1s achieved by hnking the incentive
arrangements to cash realisations and taking into account the time value of money The provision
for incentives made dunng the year s a reflection of the strang investmeni returns which Electra
Partners has generated over the past five yvears [t will remain a provision, subject to future
performance, until such tme as cash realisations are sufficient for Electra 1o have receved back
the cost of its Investment and related management fees together with a prionty return

£36 million, equivalent to 90p per share, was provided in the year to 30 September 2014, being
15% of the gains on the investment portfalio This figure 15 less than 18% because Zensar, which
contributed £40 million (169% of the total gains on investments), is contained within an incentive
scheme set up N 1995 which accrues carried interest at 8% on a deal by deal basis, rather than
the 18% on a pooled basis in the post 2006 incentive arrangements

The provision for incentives in the year 1o 30 September 2013, of £63 millien, amounted to 28% of
the nvestment returns in that penod This amount exceeded 18% because the realisation of Allflex
tniggered a first ime pravision in the 2006 pool Previously, realisations together with the fair value

of remaining investments were insufficient for the profits on the poel to exceed the compound

8% hurdle that Electra Partners needs 1o achieve in each pool, some £160 million at 30 September
2013 The sale of Allflex, which produced a return of £113 milionin 2013, pushed the total pool

profits well above the hurdle tniggenng a prowsion of £45 mitlion in relation 1o that pool

The carned interest 1s described in more detail In Note 22 on pages 87 o 89

Net Liqund Resources

The Consolidated Cash Flow Statement on page 66 analyses the movemnent in the Groups cash
for the year Whilst cash at bank was largely unchanged in the penod, the cash held in liguidity
funds was substantially reduced - falling by 50% over the penod to £120 million As a result net
liquidity stood at £166 million compared to £294 million last year Record levels of realisations over
the last three perods with total proceeds exceeding £1 1 bilion led to unusually high kquidity,
particularly fast year However, investment activity, with £900 million invested over this same periad,
has reduced cash 1o a leve! necessary 1o cover ongoing (nvestment activity and operating costs
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Finance Costs
Finance costs of 50p per share or £20 million are made up as follows

Cost

£m

Bank facility 7
Cenvertible Bond 9
Zero Dividend Preference Share 4
20

The costs of the bank facility are LIBOR plus a margin of 3%, which was equivalent 1o an
average 4 7% during the period The Convertible Bond pays a coupon of 5% amounting to
£5 million in the period Additionally a further amount was accrued 1o represent the cost

of the embedded dervative of the conversion option In total the accrual rate adopted I1s
99% adding an additional £4 million to this charge The Zero Dividend Preference share 1s
accounted for by accruing at the compound yield of 6 5% which is the yield to maturity
based on its redemption value The amount charged In this penod was £4 millon which was
charged to the capital colurnn in the Consclidated Income Statement reflecting the way in
which this instrument will be eventually repaid The weighted average cost of debt for the
year was 6 7%

Operating Costs

Expenses were £6 millon during the year to 30 September 2014 compared to £2 million

in 2013 £3 million of this Increase refates 1o the exceptional costs of advisory and legal fees

in relation to Circulars to Shareholders and the General Meeting held in October 2014
Additionally, there were some one off costs in relation to advisory work undertaken in relation
1o centain regulatory changes, In particlilar AIFMD and FATCA

Borrowings

Electra has a £195 millian mulu-currency revolving credit facility which 1s repayable 1n
December 2017 Electras policy 1s to use its credit facility to partially hedge against US Dollars
and Euro movements for investments held in these currencies

Elactra raised £46 million of ZDPs 1n 2009 and £100 mithon of Subardinated Convertible Bonds
in 2010 The ZDPs are repayable in 2016, while the Subordinated Convertible Bands are
repayable in 2017 if they have not been converted into ordinary shares

Steve Ozin
Partner

Electra Partners LLP
26 November 2014
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Consolidated Income Statement

2014 2013
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
Note For the year ended 30 Septermber £m im im im £m £m
Profit on investments
2 Investment iIncome/net gain 71 176 247 33 194 227
Profit/(loss) on revaluation of
foreign currencies - 6 6 - 4 (4)
n 182 253 33 190 223
Other income 1 - 1 1 - !
23 Incentive schemes - (36) (36) - (63) (63)
22 Prionty profit share (23) - {25) (22) - (22)
4 Income reversal (n - (1) {4) - (4)
3 Other expenses (6) - (6) (2) - (2)
Net Profit before Finance Costs
and Taxation 40 146 186 6 127 133
Fair value movement of denvatives - - - 1 - 1
7 Finance costs (16) (4) (20 (16) (4) (20)
Profit/{loss} on Ordinary Activities
before Taxation 24 142 166 (9) 123 114
8  Taxation expenses (4) - {4) - - -
Profit/{loss) on Ordinary Activities
after Taxation attributable to
owners of the parent 20 142 162 () 123 114
11 Basic Earnings per Ordinary
Share (pence} 56 55 401 1 457 66 (2539) 34695 32156
11 Diluted Earnings per Ordinary
Share (pence} 6642 35271 41913 (657) 304 90 298 33

The Total calumns of this statement represent the Group's Income Statement prepared in accordance with Internauonal

Financial Reporting Standards adopted by the EU (“IFRS") The supplementary Revenue and Capiial columns are both

prepared under guidance published by the Association of Investment Companies This is further explained in the Basis

of Accounting and Significant Accounting Policies in Note 24

The amounts dealt with in the Consolidated Income Statement are ali denved from continuing activities

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

2014 2013
Far the year ended 30 September £m Em
Profit for the year 162 114
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 162 i14
Total Comprehensive Income attnbutable to owners of the parent 162 114
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 September 2014 for the Group

Capital Unrealised Total
Called-up redemp- Realised capital share-
share Share plion Qther Translation capital profits/ Revenue  holders
capstal  premium reserve  reserves reserve prefits (losses)  reserves equity
Note tm fm £m fm fm £m £m im im
Opening balance
at 1 October 2013 9 24 34 23 (4) 1,059 (127) 12 1,030
Net revenue profit added
to the reserves - - - - - - - 20 20
Net profits on realisation of
investments dunng the year - - - - - 18 - - 18
7 Financing costs - - - - - {4) - - 4
Increase in value of
non-current investments - - - - - - 157 - 157
23 Increase in incentive
provisions - - - - - - (36) - (36}
Profit on foreign currencies - - - - - 6 - - 6
Investments sold during
the year - - - - - (74} 74 - -
18 Conversion of
Convertible Bond - 4 - (1 - - - 1 4
At 30 September 2014 9 28 34 22 (4 1,005 68 33 1,195
For the year ended 30 September 2013 for the Graup
Capial Total
Called up redemp Realsed Unrealsed share-
share Share non Other Translation capital capital  Revenue  holders
capital  premum reserve  reserves reserve profts loss  reserves equity
Note £m £m im £m £m fm fm fm £m
Opening balance at
1 Cctober 2012 9 24 34 23 (4) 853 {44) 21 916
Net revenue loss deducted
from reserves - - - - - - - 9 ]
Net profits on realisation of
investrnents during the year - - - - - 148 - - 148
7 Financing costs - - - - - (4) - - 4)
increase in value of non-current
Investments - - - - - - 45 - 45
23 Increase inINgentive provisions - - - - - - (63) - 63}
Losses on foreign currencies - - - - - (1 2) - (3}
Investments sold during the year - - - - - 63 63) - -
At 30 September 2013 9 24 34 23 4 1,059 {127) 12 1,030
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 September 2014 for the Company

Capital Unrealised Total
Called-up redemp- Realised capital share
share Share tion Other capital profits/ Revenue  holders
capital  premium reserve  reserves profits (losses)  reserves equity
Note £m £m £fm fm fm £m im fm
Opening balance at
1 October 2013 9 24 34 23 1,113 {(115) (58 1,030
Net revenue profit added
to reserves - - - - - - 2 2
Net profits on realisation of
investments dunng the year - - - - i3 - - 13
Increase in value of non-current
investments - - - - - 166 - 166
23 Increase Inincentive provisions - - - - - (36) - (36)
Profit on foreign currencies - - - - 6 - - 6
Investments sold during the year - - - - (63) 63 - -
Revaluation of subsidiaries - - - - - 10 - 10
18  Conversion of Convertible Bond - 4 - ) - - 1 4
At 30 September 2014 9 28 34 22 1,069 88 (55) 1,195
For the year ended 30 September 2013 for the Cormpany
Capital Total
Called-up redemp Realsed Unrealised share
share Share ton Other capnal captal  Revenue holders’
capllal premium reserve reserves DfOﬁlS loss feserves equity
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m £m im
Opening balance at
1 October 2012 9 24 34 23 08 (39 (43) 916
Net revenue loss deducted
from reserves - - - - - - (15) {15)
Net profits on realisation of
investments during the year - - - - 147 - - 147
Increase In value of non-current
investrnents - - - - - 45 - 45
23 Increase In incentive provisions - - - - - {63) - 63)
Losses on forergn currencies - - - - (n 2) - (3)
irvestments sold dunng the year - - - - 56 (56) - -
Revaluation of subsidianes - - - - 3 - - 3
At 30 Septernber 2013 9 24 34 23 1,113 (115) (58) 1,030
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

2014 2013
Note  As at 30 September im fm £m £m
Non-Current Assets
Investments held at farr value
13 Unlsted and listed 1,272 968
13 Liguidity funds 120 245
1,392 1,213
Current Assets
14  Trade and other recevables 13 4
Current tax asset - 1
Cash and cash equivalents 198 207
211 212
Current Liabilities
15 Trade and other payabies 25 4
Denvative financial instrument 1 1
Net Current Assets 185 207
Total Assets less Current Liabihties 1,577 1,420
16 Bank loans 152 158
17 Zero Dividend Preference Shares 65 61
18  Convertible Bond 82 82
23 Prowisions for habilities and charges 83 89
Non-Current Liabilities 382 390
Net Assets 1,185 1,030
Equity
20 Called up share capital 9 S
Share premium 28 24
Capital redemption reserve 34 34
18  OQther reserves 22 23
Translation reserve 4 {4)
Realised capital profits 1.005 1,059
Unrealised capital profits/({losses) 68 (127)
Revenue reserve 33 i2
1,186 1,021
Total Equity Shareholders’ Funds 1,195 1,030
12 Basic Net Asset Value per Ordinary Share 3,36575p 2914 08p
12 Diluted Net Asset Value per Ordinary Share 3,174 34p 2,76361p
20 Ordinary Shares in1ssue at 30 September 35,507,751 35,342,292

The Notes on pages 68 to 97 are an integral part of the Financial Statements

The Accounts on pages 61 to 97 were approved by the Directors on 26 Novemnber 2014 and werte signed on their behalf by

Mr Roger Yates, Chairman Q{
Electra Private Equity PLC

Company Number 303062
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Company Balance Sheet

2013
2054 restaiec
Note As at 30 September im im fm fm
Non-Current Assets
Investrents held at fair value
13 Unlisted and hsted 151 285
13 Liguidity funds 120 245
13 Subsidiary undertakings 787 588
13 1,058 1,118
Current Assets
14 Trade and other recevables 129 9
Current tax asset - i
Cash and cash equivalents 198 206
327 215
Current Liabihities
Dervative financial instrurments 1 1
15  Trade and other payables 24 132
Net Current Assets 302 a3
Total Assets less Current Liabihties 1,360 1,201
18  Convertible Bond 82 82
23 Provisions for habilities and charges 83 89
Non-Current Liabilities 165 171
Net Assets 1,195 1,030
Equity
20  Called up share capital 9 9
Share premium 28 24
Capitai redemption reserve 34 34
18  Otherreserves 22 23
Realised capital profits 1,069 1,113
Unreahsed capital profit/{losses) 88 (115)
Revenue reserve (55} (58)
1,186 1,021
Total Equity Shareholders’ Funds 1,195 1,030

The Notes on pages 68 10 97 are an integral part of the Financial Statements

The Accounts on pages 61 to 97 wete approved by the Directors on 26 November 2014 and were signed on their behalf by

Mr Roger Yates, Chairman
Electra Private Equity PLC

Company Number 303062

P Nen

Electra Private Equity PLC | Report and Accounts 2014 65

Cverview

’ Strategic and business review ‘

Managers Review

Financial statements

Governance

Further information




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

2014 2013
For the year ended 30 September £m £m fm im
Operating activities
Purchase of investments {330) (340) ‘
Purchase of iquidity funds 1115) (280
Amounts paid under incentive schemes (25) (5)
Sales of investrments 219 436
Sales of iquidity funds 240 334
Dmdends and distrbutions received 4 10
Other investment income received 37 9
Other income receved 1 1
Expenses paid (29) (22)
Taxation paid - (2)
Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities 2 141
Financing Activities
Bank loans drawn - 60
Bank loans repaid - {59)
Finance costs (6) ()
Other finance costs - m
Converuble Bond Interest pard (5} (5)
Net Cash Outflow from Financing Activities Q1 (12)
Changes in cash and cash equivalents )] 126
Cash and cash eguivalents at 1 October 207 78
Cash and Cash Equivalents at 30 September 198 207
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Company Cash Flow Statement

204 23
For the year ended 30 September £m £m fm £m
Operating activities
Purchase of investments (79} (254)
Purchase of kquidity funds (115) (280)
Amounts paid under incentive schemes (25) (5)
Sales of investments 195 369
Sales of liguidity funds 240 334
Dwidends and distributions received 4 10
Other investment income receved 19 6
Interest iIncome received 1 -
Other income received - 1
Expenses paid (26} (19)
Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities 214 162
Financing Activities
Intercompany loans (217} (27)
Interest paid - m
Convertible Bond Interest paid (5} &)
Net Cash Outflow from Financing Activities (222) (33)
Changes in cash and cash equivalents (8) 129
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 October 206 77
Cash and Cash Equivalents at 30 September 198 206

Y
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Segmental Analysis

The chief operating decision-maker has been idenufied as Electra Partners Electra Partners reviews the Group's internal
reporting in order 1o assess performance and allocate resources Electra Partners has determined the operating segments
based on these reports Electra Partners considers the business as & single operating segment

2 Investment Income

2014 2013
For the year ended 30 September fm fm fm fm
Income
Cividend Income 16 12
Other Investment Income 55 21
71 33
3 Other Expenses
2014 2013
For the year ended 30 September £ 000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
Other Expenses
Administrative expenses 2,053 1,906
Oirecters’ remuneration (see Note 5) 315 302
Exceptional expenses* 3,323 -
Auditors remuneration 471 282
Total operating expenses 6,162 2490

*These include the costs of holding 2 General Meeting in Cctober 2014 and the preparation of two circulars to shareholders and refated

adwisor fees

Auditors' Remuneration

2014 2013
For the year ended 30 September £ 000 £000
Audit of group 162 153
Audit of subsidianes 55 49
217 202
Tax adwvisory services 125 -
Tax compliance services 110 67
Other non-audit services not covered above* 19 13
Auditors' Remuneration 471 282
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP services contracted by Electra Partners LLP
under its discretionary management contract**
Tax advisory services - 54
Corporate finance services and transaction services 43 85
Fees in relation to investment due diligence contracted by Electra Partners LLP 43 149

* These are professional services in relaton 10 agreed upon pracedures performed in respect of Electras Internal Controls Monitering

Report (ICMR) £19,000 (2013 £13,000 1n respect of ICMR}

“*PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have also been engaged by Electra Partners LLP the Manager under its discretionary management contract
to provide due diligence and adwviscry services In connection with investments and potential investments This work was awarded on

a compettive basis and where the costs have been borne by the Group the amounts have been disclosed in the table above
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3 Other Expenses continued

Non-audit services

1115 the Group's practice to employ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP on assignments addiuional 1o therr statutory audit duties
where therr expertse and experience with the Group are important, principally tax advice and comphiance matters, or
where they have been awarded assignments on a competitive basis These services are services that could be provided

by a number of firms Work s allocated to the auditers only if 1t does not impact upon the independence of the audit team

4 Income Reversals

This represents the reversal of accrued income recogmised 1n previous perods ansing from changes in valuation
of certain investments

5 Directors’ Remuneration

2014 2013
For the year ended 30 Septermnber £000 £000
Chairman's remuneration (Dr Colette Bowe) 45 100
Chairman's remuneranon (Mr Roger Yates) 71 -
Directors’ fees 199 202

315 302
Emecluments
Chairman and hughest paid Director 71 -

Dr Colette Bowe held the position of Chairman for the penod from 1 Octeber 2013 to reurement on 11 March 2014
at which date Mr Roger Yates was appointed Chairman

The Board of Directors are considered to be the Key Management Personnel For further detalls see the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 11410 118

No pension contributions were made in respect of any of the Dvectars and no Director will receive any pensian from
any company within the Group

During the year no Duector {2013 none) waived remuneration

6 Employees (Excluding Directors)

The Company has no emplcyees (2013 none)

7 Finance Costs

2014 2013

Revenue Capital Total Revenue {Capital Total

For the year ended 30 Septemnber Em £m Em £m £m £m
Loans Repayable After More Than One Year

Bank facility 7 - 7 8 - 8

Convertible Bond costs 9 - 9 8 - 8

Zero Dividend Preference Share costs - 4 - 4 4

16 4 20 16 4 20

During the year ended 30 September 2013 the repayment date of the £195,000,000 committed revalving credit facility was
extended to 28 December 2017 The interest remains payable at LIBOR rates plus a margin of 30%

Electra Private Equity PLC | Report and Accounts 2014 69

’ Overview

Strategic and business review

Managers Review

Governance Financial statements

Further information




8 Income Tax Expense

2014 2013

Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capiial Toral

For the year ended 30 September £m £m £m £m fm £m
Current tax

Current tax on profit/(loss) for the year 4 - 4 - - -

Income tax expense 4 - 4 - - -

The difference between the income tax expense shown above and the amount calculated by applying the effective rate of
UK corporation tax, currently 22 09 pro-rata (2013 23 5% pro-rata) 10 the profit before tax 15 as follows

20t4 2013

Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
For the year ended 30 September £m £m £m Em m im
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities
before taxation 24 142 166 ) 123 114
Profit/(loss) before tax multiplied by
the effective rate of
UK corporation tax of 22 0% pro-rata
(2073 23 5% pro-rata} 5 3 36 2) 29 27
Effects of
Dridend income {3) - (3) @ - 2
Disallowed expenses 1 - 1 - - -
Priority profit share of partnership
income appropriated by General Partner 5 (5) - 5 {(5) -
Unutihsed losses ansing in the year - - - 1 - !
Caprtal profits not chargeable due to
Investment Trust status - {26) (26) - (24) (24)
Non-taxable income (4) - (4) {2} ~ (2)
Tax Charge 4 - 4 -~ - -

Changes ta the UK corporation tax rates were substantively enacted as part of the finance bill 2013, on 2 July 2013
These include reductions to the main rate, reducing the rate 10 21% from 1 Apnl 214 and 209 from 1 April 2015

9 Dividends

Ne dividend was approved/paid during the year ended 30 September 2014 (30 September 2013 approved £nil, paid £mil}

10 Parent Company Profit

The profit after tax dezlt with 1n the Financial Statements of the Company was £167 815,000 (2013 £113 558,000)
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11 Earnings per Share

Far the year ended 30 September 2014 2013
Net revenue profit/{loss) attributable to ordinary shareholders (£m) 20 (S)
Net caprtal return attributable to ordinary shareholders (£Em) 142 123
Net revenue profit/(loss) on which diluted return per share calculated after adding back the

finance charge net of taxation of £6,716,276 (2013 £6,329,777) (£m) 27 (3)
Net capital return on which diluted return per share calculated (£m) 142 123
Totat Diluted Return {£m) 169 120
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue during the period on which the

undiluted prefit/(loss) per ordinary share was calculated 35,363,655 | 35,341,39%
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the period on which the

diluted profit/(loss) per ordinary share was calculated 40,216,732 | 40,216,732

Net revenue profit was £19,996,464 (2013 loss of £8,973,551) and net capiial return was £141,848,038 (2013 £1225618541)

Basic earnings per share Diluted earmings per share

2014 2013 2014 2013

P P p p

Revenue profit/lloss) per ordinary share 56 55 {25 39) 6642 {657)
Capital return per ordinary share 401 1 34685 35271 30490
Earnings per ordinary share 457 66 32156 41913 29833

12 Net Asset Value per Ordinary Share

On 29 December 2010 Electra ssued £100 milhon of 5% Subordinated Convertible Bonds at an 1ssue price of 100 per cent
and an iniual conversion price of 2050p Bondholders may convert their Bonds into ordinary shares of the Company from
7 February 2011 up to and including the date falling seven business days prior 10 29 December 2017 The Bond has been
treated as a compound financial instrurment containing both a liability and an equity companent

The basic Net Asset Value ("NAV7) per share s calculated by dividing NAY of £1,195,101,395 (2013 £1,029,902,175) by the
number of ordinary shares in 1ssue amounting to 35,507,751 (2013 35,342,292) The diluted NAV per share 1s calculated
by adding the liability component of the Convertible Bonds amounting to £81,516,423 (2013 £81,529,734) to NAY of
£1,195,101,385 (2013 £1,029,502,175) and then dividing by the number of ordinary shares amounting to 40,216,732
(2013 40,216,732) after taking into account dilutive potential shares
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13 Non-Current Assets

Investments Held at Fair Value

2013
2014 Company
Group Company Group restated
As at 30 September £m £m £m im
Unlisted at Far Value 1,181 151 881 273
Listed at Farr Value 91 - 87 12
Subsidiary Undertakings at Fair Value - 787 - 588
1,272 938 968 873
Liquidity funds 120 120 245 245
1,392 1,058 1,213 1,118
Investments Held at Fair Vatue
Group Company
Unhsted Liquidity Unhisted Liquichty
and Listed funds Total and Listed funds Total
£m £m £m £m £m im
Valuation
Valuation at 1 October 2013 968 245 1,213 883 245 1,128
Purchases 410 115 525 12 115 227
Disposals (352) {241) (593} (280} (241) {521)
Increase in valuation 246 1 247 223 1 224
Valuation at 30 September 2014 1,272 120 1,392 938 120 1,058
Group Company
Unlisted Liquichty Unlisted Liquidity restated
and Listed funds Total and Listed funds Total
£m im £m fm Em £m
Valuation
Valuation at 1 October 2012 B68 299 1,167 757 299 1,056
Purchases 337 280 617 297 280 577
Disposals (459) (335) (794) (375) (335) (710
Increase in valuation 222 1 223 194 1 195
Valuation at 30 September 2013 968 245 1,213 873 245 1,118

Prior-year restatement of the Company Balance Sheet

Investments held by certain imrted partnerships were included m uniisted investments in the pror year financial

statements These have been re-categonsed as investrments (n subsidianes 1 the current year The prior year numbers have
been amended for comparability on ihe face of the Company Balance Sheet and in the Notes to the Financial Statements

There 15 no effect on net assets and no iImpact on the Consolidated Financial Staterments

14 Trade and Other Receivables — Current

Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

As at 30 September £m im £m im
Prepayments 3 4 3 4
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 116 5
Sales for future settlement 10 - 10 -
13 4 129 9
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15 Trade and Other Payables - Current

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
As at 30 September £m fm £m im
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - - 129
Carried Interest payable | ¥4 1 17 1
Other payables 8 3 7 2
25 4 24 132
16 Bank Loans
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
As at 30 September £m fm fm £m
Bank Loans are repayable as follows
Due between one to five years 152 158 - -

A variable rate of interest 1s charged on the bank loan The bank loan relates to a £195,000,000 committed unsecured
multi-currency revolving credit facility and is repayable on 28 December 2017 Under the Facility Agreement the Group 1s
hable to pay interest at LIBOR rates plus a margin of 3% The weighted average effective interest rate for the year was 4 7%
(2013 47%) Interest rate swap and cap denvatives are utihsed 1o manage the nsk of interest rate fluctuation 1N interest
payable on the multi-currency facility

17 Zero Dividend Preference Shares

Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

As at 30 Septemnber £m £m fm fm
Zero Dividend Preference Shares 65 61 - -

Under the Companies Act 2006, the concept of authonsed share capital was abolished with effect from 1 Cetober 2009 for
cornpanies incorporated after that date Accordingly, the 60,000,000 Zerc Dividend Preference (*ZDP") shares stated in the

arucles of association of Electra Private Equity Investments PLC ("EPEIT 1s the maximum amount of ZDP shares that may be
allotted by EPEI unless otherwise authonsed by shareholders in general meeting

On 5 August 2008, EPEl 1ssued 43,000,000 ZDP shares at 100p each On 2 December 2009, 4,295,000 ZOP shares were 1ssued
at a price of 104p each Each share has a par value of 0 01p and a matunty price of 155 41p The far value of the ZDP shares
at 30 September 2014 was £68,578,000 (2013 £66,154,000) based on the quoted offer pnice of 145 00p (2013 139 88p) per
ZDP share

18 Convertible Bond
Finance Finance Bond

2013 charge charge paid conversion 2014
As at 30 September £m Em £m £m £m
Fair value of debt {debt cashflows discounted at 9 9%) 82 4 - 4 82
Fair value of equity component* 23 - - (1} 22
5% coupon payable** 1 5 (5) - 1
issue of ordinary shares - - - 4 4
Total Bond issue 106 9 (5} (1) 109

* Included in other reserves
**Included in trade and other payables
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18 Convertible Bond continued

finance Finance Bond

2012 charge charge pad conversion 2003
As at 30 September £m fm £m £m tm
Farr value of debt (debt cashflows discounted at G %) 79 3 - - 82
Fair value of equity component* 23 - - - 23
5% coupon payable** 1 5 o) - 1
lssue of ordmary shares - - - - -
Total Bond 1ssue 103 ) (5) -~ 106

* Included in other reserves
**Included in trade and other payables

On 29 December 2010, Electra 1ssued £100 millkon 5% Subordinated Convertible Bonds due 29 December 2017 at an issue
price of 100 per cent and with an initiat conversion prige of 2050p Bondholders may convert therr bonds into ordinary shares
of the Company from 7 February 2011 up to and including the date falling seven business days prior to 28 December 2017
The conversicn price of 2050p will be adjusted 1o deal with ceriain events which would otherwise dilute the conversion of
bondholders These events include dividends paid to ordinary sharehoiders, share rights and share related secunues issued to
shareholders, 1ssue of other secunties to shareholders, demergers and other events detailed 1n the Prospectus for the Bond

The number of 53 Suberdinated Convertible Bonds outstanding as at 30 Septerber 2014 was 96,534 (2013 99,926}
The fair value of the 5% Subardinated Convertible Bonds at this date was £125,011,530 (2013 £123,108,832)

More information can be found on page 135

19 Financial Instruments

(1t Management of Risk

As an investment trust, the Group's investment objective 1s to seck capital growth from a portiolio of secunuies drawn from
markets both within the UK and worldwide The holding of these financial instruments to meet this objective resuits in
certain risks

The Group's financial instrurments comprise

1 Securities in unlisted and histed companies, partnership interests, iguidity funds, trade recervables, trade payables
and cash

2 Aloan faclity, Zero Dividend Preference shares and Convertible Bonds, the purpose of which is the financing of new
investment and refinancing of existing debt, and to finance on-market purchases of shares, other share buy-backs and
tender offers

3 Interest rate Swaps and Caps in order to manage the nisk of interest rate fluctuation in nterest payable on the new
multi-currency loan facility

The main nsks ansing from the Group's and Cempany’s financial instruments are fluctuations 1n market price, Interest rate,
credit, hquidity, capital and foreign currency exchange rate nsk The policies for managing each of these nisks are
summansed below These policies have remained constant throughout the year under review and the preceding year
The financial nisks of the Company are aligned to the Group's financial nisks
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19 Financial Instruments continued

Market Price Risk

Market price nsk anises mainly from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments used in the Group's operations
It represents the potential loss the Group might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price movements,
mitigated by stock selection

Electra Partners has responsibility for monitoring the portfclio in accerdance with the Group's investment objectives and
seeks 1o ensure that individual stocks meet an acceptable risk reward profile

The Group 15 exposed to the risk of the change in value of its fund investments, fisted and unlisted equity and non-equity
shares and fixed income secunties For hsted investments and higuidity funds the market nsk vanable is deemed to be the
price iself The impact on profit or loss after tax and on shareholders equity, in absolute and percentage terms of those
figures, due to movements In these prices, I1s set out in part {i)) of this Note For unlisted equity and nen-equity shares
the market risk i1s deemed to be the price/earnings ratio or other appropnate valuation methodalogy as set out in the
accounting policy The impact on profit ar loss after tax and on shareholders' equity, In absolute and percentage terms
of those figures, due to movements in these variables, 1s set out in part (vi1) of this Note

Foreign Currency Risk

The Company’s total return and net assets are affected by foreign exchange translation movements as a significant
proportion of the investments held are denominated in or iImpacted by currencies cther than sterling The foreign
investments held are principally held 1n the USA, Continental Europe and Asia Duning the year, the Company held loans
denominated 1n US Dollars and Eure, which parually offset foreign currency risk on foreign currency investments The
rauo of loans held in US Dollars and £uro 1s under regular review in order 10 partizlly hedge as efficiently as possible

The impact on profit after tax and on sharehclders’equity of 10% increases and decreases in the value of US Dallars and
Euro, in absolute terms and as a percentage of those figures, are analysed 1n part () of this Note

Interest Rate Risk

The Group finances its operations through retained prefits including realised capital profits (n addinon, finanang is
abtained through the multi-currency facility, ZDP and Convertible Bonds During the year, a long-term mult-currency loan
facility was in existence The multi-currency facility has a floating rate of interest The Convertible Bonds have a fixed rate of
Interest Interest rate swap and cap denvatives are utilised to manage the nsk of interest rate fluctuation in interest payable
on the multi-currency facility

The cash balances held on deposit mitigate in part the interest rate rnisk

Interest rate nisk profiles for financial assets and habilities and the impact of the profit or loss after tax and on shareholders’
equity of a 10% increase or decrease in interest rates, In absolute terms and as a percentage of those figures, are shown in
part (iv) of this Note These profiles exclude short term receivables and payables

Liguidity Risk

The Group's assets comprise listed and unlisted equity and non-equity shares, fixed income secunties and hquidity funds
Whilst the unlisted equity 1s intentionally 1Ihquid, short-term flexitility 1s achieved through the revolving loan facility, and

hquidity funds which are relatively iquid and cash which 1s available on demand

The matunty of the Group's existing borrowings are set out in part (v) of this Note
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19 Financial Instruments continued

Credit Risk

The Group's exposure 1o credit risk principally anses from its investment in iguidity funds and its cash deposits Only major
banks {with market capitalisation above £20 billion) are used when making cash deposits and the level of cash 1s reviewed
on a reqular basis A well-diversified portfolio of iquidity funds 1s maintained with no more than 10% of gross assets held
with any ane institution The total Invested In liguidity funds was £120,000,000 with associated accrued income of £31,000
(2013 £244,800,000 with associated accrued income of £75,000) The cost of this investment was £120,000,000 (2013
£244,800,000) Cash held on deposit was principally with three UK banks (see table below) and totalled £198,271,000
(2013 £207,057,000)

Bank Credit Ratings at 30 Septernber 2014 Moody s
Royal Bank of Scotland A2
Barclays Al (Negative}
Lloyds Al

Capital Risk Management,

The Group's capital at 30 September comprised
30 5ep 2014 305ep 2013

£m £m Repayable
Debt
Borrowing under the Credit Facility 152 158 December 2017
Zero Dividend Preference Shares 65 61 August 2016
Convertible Bond 82 82 December 2017
299 301
Equity
Equity share caprtal 9 9
Retained earnings and other reserves 1,186 1,021
1,195 1,030
Total capital 1,494 1,33
Debt as a percentage of total capiial 20 0% 226%

The Group's objective In the management of capital risk 1s to safequard 1ts ability 16 continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for sharehotders and to maintain an optimal capital structure In doing so the Group may ad)just the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders (whilst remaining within the restrictions iImpased by (ts iInvestment trust status), return
capital to shareholders, change the level of borrowing in the £195,000,000 committed multi-currency revolving credit
facility or 1ssue new shares or debt Dunng the year the Group paid no dividend {2013 £nil)

The Group manages the levels of cash deposits held whilst maintaining sufficient hquidity for investments The Group has
an existing authority to iImplement an on-market share buy-back pregramme to generate shareholder value During the

year £ril (2013 £nil) was utihsed to repurchase shares for cancellation

The level of outstanding borrowings 1s reviewed on an on-going basis taking 1nto account the need to buy back shares,
future levels of investment and any foreign currency hedging concerns
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19 Financial Instruments continued

{(n) Market Price Exposure

2014 2013
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
in vanable In vanable invariable 11 vanable
£m £m £m £m
10% movement in price of listed investments
Impact on profit after tax 8 (8) 8 (8l
Impact as a percentage of profit after tax 5% {5)% 7% (7)%
irnpact on shareholders’ equity 8 (8) 8 8
Impact as a perceniage of shareholders’ equity 1% (1)% 1% (1)%
(1) Foreagn Currency Exposures
Currency
2014 2013
Sterling Sterling Sterling Sterfing
appreciation depreciation appreciaton depreciation
£m im £m £m
10% Movement in Euro
Impact on (loss)/profit after tax (8} 8 (10} 10
Impact as a percentage of (loss)/profit after tax (5)% 5% (9% 9%
Impact on shareholders equity (8) 8 (10) 10
Impact as a percentage of shareholders’ eguity (1)% 1% {1)% 1%
10% Movement in US Dollar
Impact on (loss)/profit after tax (7) 7 (12) 12
Impact as a percentage of {loss)/profit after tax (51% 5% (10)% 10%
Impact on shareholders’ equity (7) 7 (12} 12
impact as a percentage of sharehalders equity (1)% 1% {1)% 19

(iv) Interest Rate Risk Profile of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The financial instruments held by the Group include equity and non-eqguity shares as well as fixed interest securives
The financial instruments shown below are separated into the type of Income they generated as at 30 Septernber 2014

Financial

Instruments

Fixed rate  Floating rate on which

financial financial  nonterest 15

Total instruments nstrements  earned/pad

As at 30 September 2014 Em £fm £m im
Financial Assets 1,603 319 629 655
Financial Lizbilies (325) (148} (152) (25)
Total 1,278 171 477 630

Interest on floating rate financial assets 1s at prevaling market rates

Financial

Instruments

“ixed rate Floating rate on which

financial financial no Interest |5

Total INStrUMmerts instruments earned/pad

As at 30 September 2013 £m im fm £m
Financial Assets 1424 459 452 513
Financial Liabihities {(305) {143) (158) 4
Total e 316 264 509
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19 Financial Instruments continued

Fixed rate financal Fixed rate financial assets

assets weighted weighted average

average interest rate periad until matunty

Currency 2014 2013 2014 2013
As at 30 September % % years years
Sterling 74 79 5 5
US Dollar 81 81 4 5
Eurc 100 100 3 3

The fioating rate financial iabiliies comprnise a £195,000,000 cemmitted multi-currency revolving credit facility {refer to
Note 7) The weighted average effective interest rate for the year was 4 7% (2013 4 7%) Interest rate swap and cap
denvatives are used to manage the nsk of interest rate fluctuation in the interest payable on the mult-currency facility
The fixed rate financial labilines compnse £64,880,000 (2013 £60,684,000) Zero Dividend Preference shares and
£81,516,000 (2013 £81,530,000) Subordinated Convertible Bonds

2014 2013
Increase Decrease Increase Oecrease
Invanable in vanable invarable in variable
im £m £m £m

1% movement in interest rates
Impact on Interest income from cash 2 (2} 2 (2)
Impact on interest iIncome on quidity funds 1 (1} 3 (3
Impact on interest payable on credt facdity - - n i
Total impact on profit/(loss) after tax and shareholders equity 3 (3 4 (4)
Impact as a percentage of total profit/(loss) after tax 29% (2)% 4% {4)%
Impact as a percentage of shareholders’ equity 0% 0% 0% 0%

{v) Matunty of Financial Liabihties
The maturity profile of the Group’s undiscounted cash flow for financial liabilities as at 30 September was

2014 2013
As at 30 September £fm im
Between one and two years (2013 Between one and three years) 73 73
Over two years (2013 Over three years) 249 258

The financial hability between one and two years (2013 one and three years) relates 1o the 47,255,000 Zero Dividend
Preference Shares 43,000,000 1ssued on S August 2009 and 4,295,000 1ssued on 2 December 2009 These are redeemable

on 5 August 2016 The financial hability over two years relates to £100 million 5% Subordinated Convertible Bonds 1ssued

on 29 December 2010, convertitle on or before 29 December 2017 (see Note 18) It also includes a £195,000,000 committed
multicurrency revolving credit facility repayable on 28 December 2017
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19 Financial Instruments continued

{v1) Fair Values of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Carrying values of the financial assets are equal to the fair value

Farr Value FarrValue
2014 2013
As at 30 September £m fm
Primary Financial Assets Held
Equity shares 625 468
Non-equity shares 18 40
Fixed interest securities 629 460
Floating rate securities 120 245
Cash at bank and In hand 198 207
Primary Financiai Liabihties held to Finance the Group's Operations
Bankloans 152 158
Zero Dividend Preference Shares 59 66
Convertible Bond {including equity component) 125 123
Fair value of interest rate swaps and caps (1) (1

The unlisted financial assets held at fair value, are valued in accordance with the Principles of Valuation of Unlisted Equity
Investments as detailed within the Basis of Accounting (Note 24)

(vn) Fair Value Hierarchy
Fair value 1s the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled between knowledgeable willing parties
In an arm's length transaction

The Group has adepted [FRS 13.1n respect of disclosures about the degree of reliability of fair value measurements
This requires the Group to classify, for disclosure purposes, farr value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that
reflects the significance of the inputs used In making the measurements

The levels of fair value measurement bases are defined as foliows
Level 1 fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or hatuliues

Levet 2 fair values measured using valuation techmiques for all inputs significant to the measurement other than guoted
prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or hability, ether directly (1e as prices) or indirectly
(re denved from prices)

Level 3 fair values measured using valuation techniques for any input for the asset or ability significant to the
measurement that 1s not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ requires significant judgement by the Group The Group considers
cbservable data to be market data that 1s readily available regularly distnbuted or updated, relizble and venfiable, not
proprietary and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market

The following table represents the Group's assets by hierarchy fevels

All fair value measurements disclosed are recurring fair value measurements
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19 Financial Instruments continued

Financial assets and habilities at fair value through profit or loss

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

As at 30 September 2014 £m £m fm m
Unlisted and listed investments 1,272 91 - 1,181
Liguichty funds 120 120 - -
Interest rate swaps (1) - (1) -
1,391 211 (1) 1,181

Tatal Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

As at 30 Septernber 2013 £m £m £m Em
Unlisted and listed investrments 958 87 - 881
Liguidity funds 245 245 - -
Interest rate swaps (1 - (1) -
1,212 332 (1) 881

Investments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and are therefore classified within Level 1,
include active hsted eguities The Group does not adjust the quoted price for these instruments

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on quoted market
prices, dealer quotauions or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within Level 2 These
include over-the-counter dervatives

Investments classified within Level 3 make use of significant unobservable inputs in derving fair value, as they trade
infrequently As observable prices are not avallable far these securities, the Group has used valuation techriques o derive
the fair value Investrnents classified within Level 3 cansist of private equity direct investments and fund and secondary
pasitions

The main inputs into the Group's valuation models fer private equity Investments are EBITDA multples (based on the
budgeted EBITDA or most recent EBITDA achieved or a relling 12 months basis of the 1ssuer and equivalent corresponding
EBITDA multiples of comparable listed companies), quality of earnings assessments, assessments of third party external
debt, marketability discounts, cost of capital adjustments and prebabilities of default The Group also considers the ariginal
transaction prices, recent transactions in the same or similar instruments and completed third-party transactions in
comparable companes’ instruments and adjusts the model as deemed necessary

In determining the valuation recommended to the Directors for the Group’s eguity instruments, the Manager uses
comparable trading multipies in arriving at the valuation for private equity in accordance with the Group’s policy, the
Manager determines appropriate comparable public companies based on industry, size, developmental stage, revenue
generation and strategy The Manager then calculates a trading multiple for each comparable company identfied The
multiple 15 calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the comparable group by its EBITDA The trading muitiple 1s then
ad)usted for discounts/premiums with regards 1o such considerations as diguidity and other differences, advantages and
disadvantages between the Group's portfolio company and the comparable public companies based on company specific
facts and circumstances

The value of private equity funds is primarnly based on the latest available financial/capital account statement of the private
equity fund The Company may make adjustments to the value as set cut In Note 24

As at 30 September 2614 15% (2013 23%) of financial assets at farr value comprise investments In private equity funds that
have been valued in accerdance with the policies set cut in Note 24 The private equity funds are not publicly traded and
prior to maturity an exit can only be made by the Cornpany though a sale of its investment and commitment through a
secondary market The carrying values of the private equity funds may be significantly different from the values ulumately
realised on an exit via 3 secondary market sale
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19 Financial Instruments continued

The following table presents assets measured at fair value based on Level 3

2014 2013

fm Em

Opening balance 881 763
Purchases 410 337

Reailsations (294) (448)
Transfer to Level 1 (6} -
Increases in valuation 190 225
Closing balance as at 30 September 1,181 881

The tables belcw present those investments in portfolio companies whose fair values are recognised (in whole orin part
using valuation techniques based on assumptions that are not supported by prices or other Inputs from observable current
market transactions in the same Instrument and the effect of changing one or more of those assumpuons behind the

valuation techniques adopted based on reasonable possible alternative assumpiicns

Reasonable
Fair paossible shift Change in
value Weighted  +/-(absolute Valuation
Description 2014 £m Valuation Technique Unobservable Inputs Average lnput value/%) +/- £m
UK
Consumer goods 388 Comparable trading  EBITDA multiple 7 8x 1x 58/(66)
multivles  pyscount for lack of 138% 5% (5125
marketability
Property 28 Yield Yield % 7 5% 1% 4/(4)
Private equity funds 93 NAV valuation  NAV n/a 5% 5/(5)
Business services 450 Comparable trading  EBITDA multiple 76x 1x 69/(72)
multioles  piscount for lack of 225% 5% (2324
marketability
Continental Europe
Consumer goods 6 Comparable trading  EBITDA multiple 76x 1% 1/(1)
muluples  pyscount for lack of 27 0% 5% -
marketability
Private equity funds 63 NAV valuation  NAV n/a 5% 3/(3)
Business services 50 Comparable rading  EBITDA multiple 7 3x 1x 17/(19)
multiples  piscount for lack of 26 1% 5% (10/9
marketability
Property 18 Yield Yield % 7 5% 1% 2/(2)
USA
Business services 56  Comparable trading  EBITDA muluiple 11 8% [ 12/(11)
multiples  Discount for lack of 49% 5% (131
marketability
Private equity funds 19 NAY valuation  NAV n/a 5% /(1)
Asia and elsewhere
Private equity funds 10 NAVvaluation  NAV n/a 5% /-

1,181
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19 Financial Instruments continued

Reasonable
possible shift Change in
Far value weighted  +/ (absolute Valuation
Descnpuon 2013 £m Valuation Techmique  Unobservable Inputs Average Input value/9) +/- £m
UK
Consumer geods 235  Comparable rading  EBITDA muluple 71x 1x 38/(27)
multiples  piscount for lack of 90% 5% (717
marketability
Property 22 Yield  Yeld % 75% 1% 3/(3)
Private equity funds 114 NAVvaluation  NAV n/a 5% 5/(6)
Business services 269 Comparable trading  EBITDA multiple 6 7x 1% 42/(36)
multples  pyscount for lack of 195% 5% {1210
marketability
Continental Europe
Consumer goods 32 Comparable trading  EBITDA muluple 28x 1x 1/(1)
multiples  piscount for lack of 93% 5% G-
marketability
Private equity funds 77 NAV valuation  NAV n/a 5% 1/(1)
Property 27 Yield  Yield % 75% 1% 4/(4)
Business services 20 Comparable trading  EBITDA multple 84x 1% 4/(4)
multiples  piscount for lack of 127% 5% (22
marketability
Usa
Bustness services 56 NAV valuation  EBITDA muluple 128x 1% 10/(1Q)
Discount for lack of 0 0% (-)/-
marketability
Property 2 Yield Yield% 7 5% 1% /()
Private equity funds 19 NAV valuation  NAV n/a 5% /(1)
Asia and elsewhere
Private equity funds 8 NAV valuation  NAV n/a 5% /()
881

For the purposes of the above tables

m Consumer goods includes non-cychcal consurmer goods, travel & leisure and house leisure & personai goods
» Business services includes media, construction and matenals, indusinal general and ransportation, SUPPOIT SeTvices

and technology, hardware and equipment
m Private equity funds includes private equity funds and secondanes

The changes in valuations disclosed in the above table show the relative increase or decrease in the input vanables

deemed 1o be subject to the most judgement and the respective impact on the farr value presented in these Financial
Statements Increases in the EBITDA multiple would each lead to an increase in estimated value However, an Increase
in the discount for lack of marketability would lead to a decrease in value

No inter-relationships between unobservable inputs used in the Group’s valuation of its Leve! 3 equity investments have

heen identified
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19 Financial Instruments continued

The following table presents the transfers between levels for the year ended 30 September 2014

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Transfers between Level 1 and 3 £m £m £m
UK
Business services 6 - (6)

The equity secunities transferred out of Level 3 relate to ordinary shares of esure Group Plc which had previously been
subject to a sale restricticn The fair value 1s determined based on quoted market prices as descrived in Note 24

There were nc transfers between levels for the year ended 30 September 2013

The following table presents the movemnent in Level 3 instruments for the year ended 30 September 2014 by sector of
financial instrumenit

Consumer Business Fund
goods Property services positians Total
£m im fm £m £m
Opening balance at
1 October 2013 267 51 344 219 881
Purchases 189 - 203 18 410
Realsations (150) (5) (78) 61} (294)
Transfers to Level 1 - - (6) - {6)
Increase in valuation 88 - 93 9 190
Closing balance at
30 September 2014 394 46 556 185 1181
20 Called-up Share Capital
2014 2013
As at 30 September £m fm
Allotted, called-up and fully paid 35,507,751 (2013 35,342,292) ordinary shares of 25p each 9 9

During the year ended 30 September 2014, 3,392 Subordinated Convertble Bonds were converted into 165,459 ordinary
shares (2013 39 Convertible Bonds were converied into 1,901 ardinary shares) No shares were purchased by the Company
from shareholders duning the year ended 30 September 2014 {2013 nil)

21 Particulars of Holdings

Pnincipal Subsidiary Undertakings
All comparues are incorporated in Great Britain and registered in England and Wales unless otherwise stated All companies
operate In their country of Incorporation

The results and balances of the following significant subsidianes are included in the consclidated Financial Statements
of the Group

Albion (Electra) Lirited (trading partnership member)

4,995 ordinary shares of US$1 00 {par value) Paid-in capital US$11,565,002
incorporated in the Commonwealth of the Bahamas

The subsidiary 15 100% owned and held directly by the Company
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21 Particulars of Holdings continued

Electra Investments Limited (Investment Holding Company)
87,000 ordinary shares of £10 {par value) Paid-in capital £1,027,389
Incorporated in England and Wales

The subsidiary 1s 100% owned and held directly by the Company

Electra Private Equity Investments PLC (Zero Dividend Preference Share Holding Company)
50,000 ordinary shares of £1 00 (par value) Paid-in capital £50,000

Incorporated in England and Wales

The subsidiary 15 100% owned and held directly by the Company

Kingsway Equity Partners LP
Caprtal contrbutions of £10,705,000 Incorporated in Scotland
The subsidiary 15 99% owned and held directly by the Company

Electra Private Equity Partners 1995 LP
Capital contributions of £9,500 Incorporated in England and Waies
The subsidiary 1s 99% owned and held through Kingsway Equity Partners LP

Electra Quoted Partners 1995 LP
Caprtal contributions of £120,277,699 Incorporated in England and Wales
The subsidiary 15 99% cwned and held through Kingsway Equity Partners LP

EF Private Equity Partners {Amencas) LP
Caprtal contributions of $2,500 Incorparated in England and Wales
The subsidiary 15 99% owned and held through Kingsway Equity Partners LP

Electra Far East LP
Capital contributions of $5,640 Incorporated in England and Wales
The subsidiary 15 99% owned and held through Kingsway Equity Partners LP

Electra Private Equity Partners (Scotland)
Capital contributions of £17,500,000 Incorporated in Scotland
The subsichary 15 9% owned and held through Kingsway Equity Partners LP

Electra Private Equity Partners 2001 - 2006 Scottish LP
Capital contributions of £20 Incorporated in Scotland
The subsidiary 15 999 owned and held thiough Kingsway Equity Partners LP

Electra Private Equity Partners 2006 Scottish LP
Capnal contrnibutions of £20 Incorporated in Scotland
The subsidiary 1s 33% owned and held through Kingsway Equity Partners LP

Other Comparies Held as Investments at Fair Value

All companies are incorperated in Great Britain and registered 1n England and Wales unless otherwise stated All companies
operate In their country of incorparation
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21 Particulars of Holdings continued

Significant Interests in Investee Undertakings

The fair vaiue of the undertakings shown below each represent by value more than 1% of the non-current asset

investments of the Group

As at 30 September

2014
Carrying
value
£m

2014
Cost
fm

2013
Carrying
value
fm

ALLFLEX HOLDINGS Iv
Class ‘A'common stack 15 6%
Class ‘B2 common stock 5 3%

54

57

53

AXIO DATA SERVICES

G Ordinary shares 62 4%
Junior loan notes 42 3%
Crdinary shares

Senior lcan notes 78 0%

140

69

105

BARCLAYS GLOBAL INVESTMENTS
Liquidity fund 0 2%

40

40

59

CALA GROUP
Ordinary shares 105%
Unsecured foan 10 1%

38

32

CONSOLE GROUP
A Shares 57 6%
Loan notes 77 6%

64

DALER-ROWNEY

B Ordinary shares 41 1%

G Ordinary shares 100 0%

B Unsecured loan notes 65 2%

29

28

DAVIES GROUP

G Ordinary shares 57 1%

Warrants

Preference shares 58 5%

C1 Ordinary shares

C2 Ordinary shares

Senior unsecured loan notes 70 7%
Unsecured loan notes 70 2%

23

39

ELIAN
B Ordinary shares 59 6%
Preference shares 76 9%

81

81

GOLDMAN SACHS (FORMERLY RBS)
Liguidity fund 1 0%

40

40

45

HOTTER SHOES
A Ordinary shares (£0 10) 56 0%
10% Secured red PIK loan notes 2022 72 9%

72

84

INNOVIA

PEL

PEC

Crdinary shares 23 8%

33

33
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21 Particulars of Holdings continued

2014 2013

Carrying 2014 Carrying

value Cost value

As at 30 September £m £im £m
NUAIRE 38 14 35

‘A Ordinary shares 60 0%

"B’ Qrdinary shares 100 0%
Senes ‘A'loan notes 99 6%
Series ‘B'ioan notes 31 9%

PARK RESORTS 135 70 87
Ordinary shares 54 5%
Deferred shares

PIK note 91 3%
Preference shares 41 4%
Senior debt 30 4%

PEVEREL GROUP 44 22 40
Ordinary shares 49 4%

Senior loan notes 66 7%
Junior loan notes 55 8%

PINE 24 14 18
Income units 95 0%
Capital units 99 0%

PREMIER ASSET MANAGEMENT 26 30 36
Crdinary shares 24 7%

4 0% Preference shares 33 0%
8 0% Preference shares 100 0%

PROMONTORIA 18 12 27
‘B’ Ordinary shares 107%
Loan notes 10 4%

SCOTTISH WIDOWS 40 40 65
Liguidity fund 0 4%
SOUTH LAKELAND PARKS 41 19 21

B Ordinary shares 66 2%
PIK loan notes 86 4%

SOUTHVIEW AND MANOR PARK 20 20 -
B Shares 77 3%

Loan notes 98 6%

THE ORIGINAL BOWLING COMPANY 50 50 -

A Qrdinary shares 86 8%
Unsecured loan notes 99 5%
TREETOPS NURSERIES 16 12 g
Shares of 000012 79 2%

12% Unsecured loan notes 2017

ZENSAR TECHNOLOGIES 63 4 24
Ordinary shares 22 1%
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22 Related Party Transactions

Carned interest schemes
Certain members of Electra Partners (the “parucipants’} are entitled to benefit from carned interest schemes under the
terms of the imited partnerships through which Electra invests Details of these schemes are as follows

Long term incentive scheme (“LTI")

Under this scheme parucipants invested in every new investment made by Electra between 1955 and March 2006
in return, the participants are entitled 1o 2 percentage of the 1otal capital and revenue profits made on each such
investmeni The participants do not receve any profit unul Electra has received back its initial investment

199517

Participants are entitled to a percentage of the incremental value of uniisted investments held at 31 March 1695, subject
te Electra having recerved total proceeds equal to the valuation of those investments as at 31 March 1995 plus a
preferred return

The Initial Pool

Ths relates 1o 2 pool of investments valued at £160 million at 31 March 2006 (the “inital pool™ Under this arrangement
participants are entitled to 10% (the “carried interest™ of the aggregate realised profits of the initial pool The realised profits
are calculated as being the aggregate of income and sale proceeds received by Electra less the £160 million opening value,
less any addiiona! purchases and less priority profit share Carried interest is payable only once reahsed profits exceed a
preferred return of 15% compounded annually on the opening value of the inial peal plus the cost of further Investments
less realisations A full catch-up is payable once the realised profits of the inttial pool exceed the preferred return This
catch-up means that all proceeds above the cumulative preferred return accrue to participants until they have been paid
an amount equating to 10% of the total realised profits of the initial pool Thereafter proceeds are split 90% 10% between
Electra and the participants

2006, 2009 and 2012 Pools

In October 2006 new arrangements were entered INte in respect of iInvestments made over each consecutive three year
perod At the reporting date such arrangements are in operation in relation to the three year peniods from 2006 to 2009,
2009 to 2012 and 2012 to 2015 (investments being made In each such penod being referred to as a “poal”)

Under these arrangements participants are entitled to a carnied interest of 18% of the aggregate realised profits In relation
to direct investments In each pool The realised profits are calculated as being the aggregate of income and sale proceeds
received by Electra less the purchase costs of investments and less prionty profit share Carned interest 1s payable only once
realised profits exceed a preferred return of 8% compounded annually on the cost of investments less realisations A full
catch-up s payable once the realised profits exceed the preferred return This catch-up means that all proceeds abave

the cumulative preferred return accrue to participants until they have been paid an amount equating to 18% of the total
realised profits Thereafter proceeds are split 82% 18% between Electra and the participants

Similar arrangements are In place for indirect investmenits, the difference from the above arrangements being that the
carried interest 1s 9% over an 8% preferred return

No Drrectors of Electra participate in the above schemes
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22 Related Party Transactions continued

Summary of carned interest pools

fnikal 2006 2009 2012

Pool Pool Pool Pool

As at 30 September 2014 fm £fm fm fm
Amount invested (236} (452) (327) 631)
Amount realised 662 684 195 140
Valuation of remaining investrents 38 79 326 622

Pool profit 464 31 194 131
Prionity Prafit Share (7} (30} 3 (10}

Net profit 457 281 181 121
Multiple of cost 3 0x 17x 16x 12x
1995 Initial 2006 2009 2012

LTt m Pool Pool Pool Pool Total

As at 30 September 2014 £000 £000 £000 £ 000 £000 £'000 £'000
Prowvisional Entitlernent 10,509 - 3775 14,205 32,524 21,797 82,810
Outstanding Entitlement 1,016 63 782 15,496 - - 17,357
Total Amount Qutstanding 11,525 63 4,557 29,70 32,524 21,797 100,167
Amount Paid in Penod 1,992 - 2,700 21,000 - - 25,692

1995 Inial 2006 2009 2012

gl Tl Pool Poal Paol Pool Total

As at 30 Seplember 2013 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Provisicnal Entitlement G493 53 6,774 45,135 19,085 8,847 89,387
QOutstanding Entitlement 78 - 846 - - - 924

Total Amount Cutstanding 9,571 53 7620 45,135 19,085 8847 90,311
Amount Paid 1n Period 2,126 - 2,762 - - - 4,888

Electra Partners Club 2007 LP co-investment agreement

In November 2007, Electra entered into a co-investment agreement with Electza Partners Club 2007 LP ("Club”), a fund
managed by Electra Partners LLP The co-investment agreement required Electra to co-invest at the ratig of 2 11n all Electra
Partners investments in private equity opportunities in Western turope where the combined investment of Electra and the
Club would represent a controlling stake and where the combined equity investment 1s between £25 miltion to £75 rmillion
Both parties invested on the same terms and conditions The agreerment allowed for variations to these arrangements in
certain prescribed circumstances For example, where invesiment would compromise Electra’s ability to qualify as an
Investment Trust or where the Club would exceed certain concentration ratios Investments that anse from interests that
Electra already held prior 1o the establishment of the Club are unaffected by these shaning arrangements These

arrangements expired in May 2013

Electra Partners prionty profit share
Electra Partners 1s a related party and recerves a priority profit share of 1 5% per annum on the gross value of the Company’s
investment portfolio including cash (but excluding any amounts committed to funds established and managed by Electra
Partners) For the year ended 30 September 2014 this was an amount of £25,383,000 (2013 £22,041,000)

Participants Investment

Frem October 2006 the participants in the 2006, 2009 and 2012 pools are required to invest 1% of the cost of each
direct Investment on a paf passu basis with Electra In the year ended 30 September 2014 £3,914,000 was invested

{2013 £3,747,000)
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22 Related Party Transactions continued

Intragroup Transfers

Net Sales of Investments to Electra from Electra Investments Limited amounted to £16,244,000 for the year ended

30 September 2014 (2013 £45,366,000) Net toans advanced by Electra to Electra Investments Limited were £245,399,000
(2013 £20,501,600) Interest of £315,668 (2013 £1,423,000) was paid on these loans

Net loans for working capital and/or to clear intercompany balances were made from Albion (Electra) for £9,000 (2013
£10,000), from Electra Holdings Inc, for £1,649,000 (2013 £9,000), from Electra Property Inc, for £6,000 (2013 £7,000), from
Electra Private Equity Investments PLC for £1,756,000 (2013 £2,313,000), from Electra Secunties Ltd for £1,396 (2013 nil)

Remuneration Disclosure
The AIFMD reguires certain disciosures to be made in relation to remuneration paid to the Manager durning the financial year

Electra Partners LLP substanually recrganised its groug structure as part of its AIFMD vaniation of perrmission apphcation,
which took effect from 11 July 2014 As 2 consequence the partners and remuneration structures in place within Electra
Partners LLP prior to 11 July 2014 do not accurately reflect the partners and remuneration structures in place following
Electra Partners LLP's AIFMD reorganisation and we consider that any disclosure of the remuneration paic prior to that
date will not accurately reflect the steps taken to ensure AIFMD compliance

In line with the FCA's guidance on the AIFMD remuneration code, we consider that in this first year after the implementation
of Electra Partners LLP's AIFMD reorgamsztion it would be unhelpful to provide the complete remuneration disclosure for
the finangial year ended 30 September 2014 because 1t would not be maternatly relevant and would not be a proper basis
for comparison

However, Electra Partners LLP considers it appropriate 1o disclose that the total remuneration paid 1o 1ts partrers in the
period 11 July 2014 to 30 Septernber 2014 by Electra Partners LLP as an AIFM was £429,000 The remunerabion paid in
the penod was fixed remuneration with no vanable remuneration or carmed interest being paid and the number of
beneficiarnes was eight in the periad from 11 July 2014 to 30 September 2014

Remuneration Policy

Following the AIFMD recrganisation referred 10 above, Electra Partners LLP has reviewed 1ts remuneration pelicies and
procedures in order to ensure financial and non-financial cntena are considered when assessing the remuneration of all
the Manager's partners in order to ensure that incentives are aligned with the detalled requirements of the AIFMD
Electra Partners LLP s remuneration policy includes measures to avoid conflicts of interest such as

w The remuneration of all the Manager’s partners 1s 1in the form of fixed drawings of profit allocations determined by
a formula fixed in advance of any annual period in which remuneration s paid

m Novanable or performance related remuneration 1s paid to any member of the Manager's partners

The Manager will not pay remuneration for potential future revenues whose timing and hkehhood remain uncertan

m The only Individuals who receve remuneration are att equity partners of Electra Partners LLP and all are members of its
Management Committee
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23 Provision for Liabilities and Charges

2013

2014 restated

Incentive Scheme £m £m
At 1 October 89 32
Amounts paid (25} {5)
Amounts payabie (17) {1}
a7 26

Increase in provision 36 53
At 30 Septernber 83 89

Prior-year restatement of Company Balance Sheet

Provisions in certain subsidiary companies were recognised in Provision for Liabilities and Charges in the prior year

These have been re-categonsed 10 reduce investments in subsidiaries in the current year The prior year numbers have
been amended for comparability on the face of the Company Balance Sheet and in the Notes to the Financial Statements
There is no effect on net assets and no impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements

24 Basis of Accounting and Significant Accounting Policies

The Financial Statements for the year ended 30 September 2014 have heen prepared In accordance with the Companies Act
2006 and International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFR5") IFRS comprises standards and interpretations approved by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Cormmittee
("IFRIC*) as adopted in the European Union as at 30 September 2014

in order to reflect the actvities of an investrment trust company, supplementary information which analyses the Consolidated
Income Statement between items of a revenue and capital nature has been presented alongside the Consolidated Income
Staternent In analysing total Income between capital and revenue returns, the Directors have followed the guidance
contained n the Staterment of Recommended Practice for investment companies issued by the Associauon of Investment
Companies in January 2009 (the “SORP")

The recommendations of the SORP which have been followed include

® Realised and unrealised profits or losses ansing on the revaluation or disposal of investments classified as held at fair
value through profit or loss should be shown in the capital column of the Income Statement Realised gains are taken
1o the realised reserves In equity and unrealised gains are transferred 1o the unrealised reserves In eguity

m Returns on any share or debt security (whether in respect of dwidends, interest of otherwase) should be shown in the
revenue column of the income statement The total of the revenue column of the Income Statement Is taken to the
revenue reserve in equity

m The Board should determine whether the indirect costs of generatng capital gains should also be shown in the capital
column of the Income Statement

If the Board decides that this should be so, the management fee should be allocated between revenue and capital in
accordance with the Board's expected long term split of returns, and other expenses should be charged to capital only to
the extent that a clear connection with the maintenance or enhancement of the value of investments can be demonstrated
The Board has decided that the Company should continue to charge prionty profit share and finance costs, other than those
in refation to the Zero Dividend Preference shares, as revenue items for the year ended 30 September 2014

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and accordingly has not
presented a separate parent company INComMe statement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and under the historical cost basis of accounting,
modified to include the revaluation of certain assets at far value, as disclosed in the Principles of Valuation of Investments
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24 Basis of Accounting and Significant Accounting Policies continued

Apphcation of New Standards

The accounting policies used are censistent with those applied in the last annual financial statements, as amended to reflect
the adoption of new standards, amendments, and interpretations which became effective in the year Dunng 2013, the
following relevant standards, amendments and merpretations endorsed by the EU became effective for the first ume for the
Group’s 30 September 2014 year end

IFRS 7 Finanaial Instruments Disclosures {amendment),
IFRS 13 Farr Value Measurement,

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (amendment),
14512 Income Taxes (amendment), and

These have resulted in changes 1o presentation and disclosures only

New Standards to be applied
The following relevant standards have been 1ssued and adopted by the EU but are not effective untd 1 fanuary 2014 and
have not been adopted early

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements,

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangernents,

IFRS 12 Dusclosure of Interests in Other Entizies,

IAS 27 Separate Financial Statermnents (revised),

JAS 28 Investments in Assocrates and Joint Ventures (revised),

IAS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation (amendment),

IAS 36 Imparrment of Assets (amendment), and

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 {transition guidance)

None of the standards, amendments and interpretations are expected 1o have a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group These will result in changes to presentation or disclosure only

Other pronouncements are not expected 1o have 2 matenial impact on the financial statements, but may result in changes
10 presentation or disclosure

Additionally a number of standards have been issued but are not yet adopied by the EU and so are not avallable for early
adcpticn The mest significant of these 15 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments along with related arnendments to other IFRSs and
the impact en the Group 1s being reviewed

None of the standards, amendments and interpretations are presently expected to have a significant effect on the
consolidated Financial Staterments of the Group

Basis of Consohidation

The consohidated Financial Statements include the Company and its subsidiary undertakngs Where subsidraries are acquired
or sold dunng the year their results are included in the consolidated Financial Statements from the date of acquisiion and up
to the date of disposal respectively A subsidiary 1s an entity where the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies so as to obtain benefit from its acuvities The principal subsidianes compnse wholly owned companies and
near wholly owned investment holding lirmited partnerships set up by the Company through which investments are made
and through which external borrawings for investment purposes are raised These are set out in Note 21 The holdings in
investment holding imited partnerships and wholly owned investment holding companies are included in the consolidated
Financial Statements, on the basis that they are considered to be special purpose enuties of the Company, which have been
set up for the specific purpose of holding investments These investment holding imited partnerships and wholly owned
Investment holding companies are considered to be controlled by the Company under the interpretation of SIC 12°Special
Purpose Enties’as the Company enjoys predominantly all the nisks and rewards from therr activities All intra-group
transactions, balances, iIncome and expenses are eliminated on consolidation
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24 Basis of Accounting and Significant Accounting Policies continued

Investments

The Board have appointed Electra Partners LLP (“Electra Partners?), an independent investrnent manager, under a contract
of full discretionary management to manage the Investments of the Company This is effected through the Management
and Investment Guideline Agreement and the relevant imited partnership agreements of the investment holding mited
partnerships through which the Company makes its investments Under these agreements, Electra Partniers as Manager

has full power to exercise the voting nghts attaching to any of the Company’s investrnents without reference to the Board
Consequently, the Company does not have the pewer to participate in or govern the financial and operating policies of any
of its investments and therefore even where the holding is greater than 50% of the equity, or between 20% and 50% of the
equity, Investments are not consolidated or accounted for using the equity method respectively

Purchases and sales of listed investments and floating rate notes are recognised on the trade date where a contract exists
whose ierms require delivery within a time frame deterrined by the relevant market Purchases and sales of unlisted
investments are recogrised when the contract for acquisition or sale becomes unconditional Investments are designated at
fair value through profit or loss (described in the Financial Statements as investments held at far value) and are subsequently
measured at reporting dates at farr value The fair value of direct unguoted investments 1s calculated in accordance with the
Principles of Valuaton of Investments below Changes in the fair value of investments are recognised in the Income
Statement through the capital column

Panciples of Valuation of Investments

(1) General
In valuing investments, Electra Partners (the "Manager”) values investments at Far Value at the reporting date, in accordance
with 1AS 39 and IPEV guidelines

Fair Vaiue represents the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s
length transaction In estimating Fair Value, the Manager uses a methodology which 1s appropriate in light of the nature, facts
and arcumstances of the investment and its materiality in the context of the total investment portfolio Methodologies are
applied consistently from cne pericd to ancther except where a change results in a more accurate estimate of Fair Value

(1) Unhsted Investments
The principal methodologies applied in valuing unlisted investrnents include the following

Earmings muitiple

Price of recent investment

Net assets

Discounted cash flows
Industry valuation benchrmarks
Exit price

In assessing whether 2 methodology 1s appropriate the Manager will be biased towards those methodologies that draw
heavily an market based measures of nsk and return, favouring those that rely on observable market data rather ihan
assumptions

Typically an earnings multiple basis will be used In applying the earmings multiple methodology, the Manager applies a
market based muluple that 1s appropnate and reasonable to the maintainable earnings of the portfolio company In the
majority of cases the Enterprise Value of the underlying business is denved by the use of an earnings multiple applied to the
current year's earnings where these can be forecast with a reasonable degree of certainty and are deemed to represent the
best estimate of mantainable earmings Where this is not the case, historic earnings will generally be used in their place
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24 Basis of Accounting and Significant Accounting Policies continued

m The Enterpnise Value of the underlying business will be calculated using the earmings multiple or other appropriate
basis (as above),

m The Enterpnse Value of the underlying business will then be adjusted for surplus assets, in particular surplus cash
or excess liabilines to arrive at an Enterprise Value for the portfolio company, and

m The valuation of Electra’s investment will be calculated from the Enterpnse Value for the portfalio company after
deduction of prior ranking debt and other financial instruments

The Manager will normally derive the earnings multiple by reference 1 current market based multiples reflected in the
vatuations of quoted comparable companies or the price at which comparable companies have changed ownership
Differences between the comparator multiple and the unguoted company being valued are reflected by adjusting the
multiple for points of difference The reasons why such adjustments may be necessary include the following

Size and diversity of the entities

Rate of growth of earnings

Reliance on a small number of key employees

Diversity of product ranges

Civersity and quality of customer base

Level of borrowing

Risks anising from the lack of marketability of the shares
Any other reason the quality of earnings may differ

Where a recent investrent has been made, either by Electra or by a third party in one of Electra’s investments, after
considening the background of the underlying investment, this price will generally be used as the estimate of Fair Value,
subject to consideration of changes in market conditions and company specific factors Other methodalogies, as detalled
above, may be used at any time if this 1s deemed to provide a more accurate assessment of the Fair Value of the investment
The indicators that the price of recent investment may no longer be appropnate include

s Significant under/over achievement of budgeted earnings

s Concerns with respect to debt covenants or refinancing

® Sgnificant movements in the market sector of the Investment
m Regulatory changes in the industry

The Company’s valuation model for debt instruments 1s the net present value of estmated future cash flows based on

a discounted cash flow model The discount rate used by the Cempany 1s based on the risk-free rate of the econamic
environment in which portfolio companies operate and 1s adjusted in relation 10 other factors such as iquidity, credit
and market nisk Similar to the earnings muluple model the cash flows used in the discounted cash flow model are based
on projected cash flow or earnings of the portfolio companies

(i) Listed Investments

The fair value of financial nstruments traded 1in active markets 1s based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date
A market s regarded as active If quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, ndustry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurmnng market transactions
on an arms length basis The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group 1s the cuirent bid price

{(v) Liruted Partnershup Funds

Limited partnership funds are those set up by a third party where the Company does not hold a majonity share and are at
fair value, typically using the third party manager’s valuaton after adjustment for purchases and szles between the date
of the valuatuon and current financial year end

(v) Other Investments
Liguidity funds are held at the current Fair Value of the note
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24 Basis of Accounting and Significant Accounting Policies continued

(v1) Subsidhary Undertakings
Investments In subsidiaries are stated in the Company Balance Sheet at the Fair Value of the subsidiary

Accrued iIncome
Acerued income s included within investment valuations

Derivative Financial Instruments

Dervative financial instruments are used by the Group to manage the nisk assoctated with changes in interest rates on its
borrowings This 1s achieved by the use of interest rate swaps and interest rate caps All denvauve financial instruments are
held at fair value

Dervative financial instruments are recegnised imtially at fair value on the contract date and subsequently re-measured
at far value at each reporting date The fair value of currency swaps and interest rate swaps 15 determined with reference
to future cash flows and current interest and exchange rates All changes in the fair value of financial instruments are
accounted for in the Income Statement

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash comprises cash at bank and short term depasits with an onginal matunty of less than three months

Foreign Currencies

The Group's presentational currency and the Company’s functional and presentational currency is pounds sterling
('sterling™, since that s the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates Transactions in
currenctes other than sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions Foreign
currency assets and liabiliies are translated into the funcuional currencies of the Group's respective entities at rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date Exchange differences ansing are recognised through the Income Statement At each
balance sheet date assets and liabiliies of foreign operations are translated into sterling at the rates prevailing on the
batance sheet date Foreign exchange differences ansing on retranslation of the equity and reserves of subsiciaries with
functional currencies other than sterling, are recogrised directly in the Translation Reserve in equity Fereign exchange
differences ansing on the retranslation of non-monetary items carned at fair value are included in the Income Statement
for the period

Investment Income

Dividends recevable from equity shares are accounted on the ex-dividend date or, where no ex-dividend date i1s quoted,
are accounted when the Group's nght to receive payment s established Fixed returns on non-eguity shares and debt
secunues are recognised an a time apportianment basis so as to reflect the effective yreld when 1t 1s probable that
economic benefit will flow to the Group Where income accruals previously recogrnised, but not receved, are no longer
considered to be reasonably expected to be received, either thraugh investee company restructunng or doubt over 11
receipt, then these amounts are reversed through expenses

Income distnibutions from hmited partnership funds are recognised when the nght to distribution is established

Expenses

All expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis Expenses are charged thiough the revenue column of the Income
Statement except for expenses in connection with the disposal and acquisition of non-current asset Investments, which
are deducted from the disposal proceeds and added to acquisition costs of invesiments

Finance Costs

Costs of borrowings are expensed as revenue items through the Income Statement as they accrue on an effective interest
rate basis Any costs incurred which were not directly related to the borrowing facility are expensed in the revenue account
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24 Basis of Accounting and Sigrificant Accounting Policies continued

Prionity Profit Share

The majonity cf the investments are made by the Company through investment holding limited partnerstups managed
by Electra Partners Under the terms of the relevant limited partnership agreements the general partner is entitled to
approprnate, as a first charge on the net income or net capital gains of the limited partnerships, an amount equivalent to
1ts prionty profit share In penods in which the investment holding Imited partnerships have not yet earned sufficient net
income or net capital gain to satisfy this prionty profit share the entitlernent is carned forward to the foliowing penied

In all Instances the cash amount paid to the general partner in each penod 1s equivalent to the prionty profit share

The priority profit share 1s charged whally to the revenue column of the Income Statement

Taxation

The tax effect of different items of income/gain and expense/loss Is allocated between capital and revenue on the same
bass as the paroicular item to which it relates, using the Company’s effective rate of tax for the accounung penod Deferred
tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habilities
in the Financial Statements and the corresponding tax basis used 1N the computation of taxable profit, and 15 accounted for
using the balance sheet iabiity method Deferred tax liabilives are recognised for all temporary differences and deferred
1ax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be availlable against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised

Zero Dividend Preference Shares

Zero Dividend Preference Shares which exhibit the characteristics of debt are recognised as habilities in the Batance Sheet
in accordance with IAS 32 After initial recognition, these liabilives are measured at amortised cost, which represents the
initial net proceeds from the ssuance after 1ssue costs plus the accrued entitlernent to the balance sheet date

The accrued enutlement 1s calculated as the difference between the proceeds on the 1ssue of these shares and the
redemption amount at matunty and 1s charged as interest expense over the life of these shares using the effective interest
methcd [n accordance with the AIC SORP this Interest expense 15 allocated to the capital column of the Income Staternent

Convertible Bonds

The Bond, In accordance with IFRS, has been treated as 2 compound financial instrument that contains both a hability and
an equity component The economic effect of 1Issuing the instrument 1s substantially the same as 1ssuing both a debt
instrument with an cbligabion to payment of interest and principal (assuming it 1s not converted) and an equity Instrument
(2 wnitten call option granting the holder the night for a specified penod of time to convert into a fixed number of ordinary
shares) The proceeds from issuing Convertible Bonds are spiit on Eiectra’s balance sheet into its constituent parts of debt
and equrty in accordance with the requirement of IFRS

The farr value of the debt element of the band has been calculated by using a market rate of interest for a similar borrowing
that does not Include an equity component or a conversion option The rate used for these purposes was 9 9%, which,
using discounted cash flow, gives a fair value for the debt component of £81 5 milion The fair value of the equity element
Is calculated by deducting the fair value of debt from the issue value of the Bond

Finance costs are taken 1o the Income Statement and are calculated as the yield to matunity of the fair value of the debt
component of the Bond On conversion the value of the Bonds converted will be debited to long-term liabilities The
nominal value of the ordinary shares 1ssued on conversion will be credited to share capital and the balance representing
the excess of conversion proceeds over nominal value of the shares will be credited to the share premium account

On conversion, the fair value of the equity element will be credited 1o the revenue reserve and debiied to other reserves
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24 Basis of Accounting and Significant Accounting Policies continued

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation of uncertain tming or amount as a result of past events
and 1t 15 probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estmate of that obligation can be
made The provisions are measured at the Directors’ best estimate of the amount to settle the obligation at the balance
sheet date Changes In prowvisions are recognised in the Income Statement

The provision for the incentive schemes 15 based on the valuation of investments as at the balance sheet date The incentive
scheme 15 charged to the capital column of the Income Statement as a direct cost

Revenue and Capital Reserves
Net Capital return 1s taken to the Capital Reserve in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity The net revenue
return is taken to the Revenue Reserve

Bank Loans

Bank loans are inially recogrwsed at the fair value of the consideration receved net of 1ssue costs associated with the loan
After initial recognition, these are subsequently measured at amornsed cost using the effective interest methoed, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the liabilities Amorused costis
calculated by taking into account any 1ssue costs and any discount or prermium on settlement

Trade recevables

Trade recewvables are recognised iniially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
Interest method, less provision for impairment A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there
15 objective evidence that the group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginal terms of the
recewvables Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor wall enter bankruptey or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency In payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the
trade recevable is impaired The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate The carrying amount of
the asset 1s reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss 1s recognised 1n the income
staterment within ‘selling and marketing costs’ When a trade receivable 1s uncollectible, it s written off against the
allowance account for trade receivables Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously wntten off are credited against
‘selling and marketing costs'in the income statement

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the crdinary course of business
from supphers Accounts payable are classified as current hiabibtres if payment 15 due within one year ar less {or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer) If not, they are presented as non-current labilities

Trade payables are recogrised ininally at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effecuve
Iinterest method
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24 Basis of Accounting and Significant Accounting Policies continued

Share Capitat

Crdinary shares 1ssued by the Group are recagnised at the proceeds or fair value recerved with the excess of the amount
receved over nominal value being credited to the share premium account Directissue costs net of tax are deducted from
equity

Key Estimates and Assumptions

Estimates and Judgements used 1n prepanng the financial information are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable The resulting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results

The key estimates and assumptions that have a significant nisk of causing a matenal adjustment 10 the carrying amounts of
assets and habilities relate to the valuation of unquoted investments These are valued by Electra Partners in accordance
with 1AS 39 Judgement 1s required in order to determine the appropriate valuation methodolagy under this standard and
subsequently in determining the inputs into the valuation model used These judgements include making assessments of
the future earnings potential of portfolio companies, appropnate earnings multiples to appely, and adjustments to
comparable multiples

See Note 24 for Principles of Valuation of Investments on pages 90 to 97
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of
Electra Private Equity PLC

Report on the financial statements

Our opinion

In cur opirion

® Electra Private Equity PLCs group financial statements and company finanaial statements (the "financial statements”)
give a true and fair view of the state of the group’ and of the parent company’s affairs as at 30 September 2014 and
of the group’s profit and the groug's and the parent company’s cash flows for the year then ended,

m the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRSs") as adopted by the Eurcpean Union,

m the company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with Internationat Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRSs™) as adopted by the European Union and as apphied in accerdance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006, and

m the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and,
as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation

What we have audited

Electra Private Equity PLC's financial statements comprise

u the Consohdated and Company Balance Sheets as at 30 September 2014,

the Consolidated Income Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income for the year then ended,
the Consolidated and the Company Cash Flow Statements for the year then ended,

the Consohdated and the Company Statements of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounung policies and other
explanatory information

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statemenits 1s applicable law
and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the company financial statements, as applied in accordance
with the provisions of the Cempanies Act 2006

Our audit approach
Overview

Matenality
» Overall group matenality £21 million which represents 1 75% of net assets

Audit scope

m The pnncipai activities of the group compnse investing in a portfolio of private equity investments

® The group is based solely In the UK and the financial statements are a consolidation of the parent company and
a number of subsidiaries which hold the private equity investments

m We have audited the financial statements of the two significant subsidianes, the parent company and the investments
held by a number of imited partnerships controlled by the group {which themselves do not require an audit)

Our areas of focus comprise

m Valuation of unlisted investments

w Riskof fraud in the recegnition of investment income and net gains
m Calculation of incentive schemes and prionty profit share

The scope of our audit and our areas of focus
We conducted our audit In accardance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISAs (UK & Ireland)?)

We designed our audrt by determining matenality and assessing the nisks of materal misstatement in the financial statements
In parucular, we looked at where the drectors made subjective judgements, for example in respect of significant accounting
estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain As in all of our zudits,
we also addressed the nisk of management overnde of internal controls, including evaluating whether there 1s evidence of bias
by the directors that may represent a nsk of matenal misstaternent due o fraud
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The risks of matenal misstatement that had the greatest effect on our audit, including the allocation of our resources and
effort, are identified as “areas of focus™in the table below together with an explanation of how we tailored our audit 10
address these specific areas This is not a complete list of all nsks identfied by our audit

Area of focus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Valuation of unlisted investments

Refer to page 124 (Report of the Audit
Committee), page 92 (Basis of Accounting
and Significant Accounting Pohicies) and
page 72 (Notes of the Accounts)

The Group holds investments in unksted
private equity vehicles as well as vanous
private equity funds and hsted companies

The valuation of the unlisted investrents s
complex and requires significant jJudgement
by the directors The unlisted investmenis
are valued on a basis considered most
appropriate by the directors dependent on
the nature of the underlying business which
has been invested in This :ncludes

n Applying a multiple to earnings,
m Using recent transaction prices, and
! m Using underlying asset valuations

Both determining the valuation
methodology and determining the inputs
to the valuation are subjective This,
combined with the significance of the
unhsted investments balance to the balance
sheet, meant that this was an area of focus
for our audit

The unlisted investments are initially valued by the independent
Investment manager (the "Manager” and then subyect 10 review by the
Group's Valuations Commitiee We attended the Valuations Committee
meeting to observe this process and assess the level of challenge and
rngour in the valuaiions process This also enabled us to discuss with and
challenge the Manager as to the appropriateness of the valuations using
our knowledge of the Investments and the International Private Equity
and Venture Capital Valuation guidelines

The majority of the unhsted investments have been valued based on
a multiple of earnings We tested the technigues that the Manager used
to value these unlisted investments as follows

m We obtained the Manager's valuation model containing earnings,
trading multiples for Iisted comparable companes and the muluple
used to value the investment

m We checked the mathemaucal accuracy of the model

m We corroborated the earnings being used in the model using
management information and other data including budgets
and forecasts In relation to the portfolio company being valued
We assessed the appropnateness of the earmings being used
based on aur understanding of the financial position of the
portfalio companies

w We independently sourced trading multiples for comparable
companies including, where applicable, considering other
comparable companies which may be relevant

® We challenged management on the discount taken to these
comparable multiples 1o arrive at the multiple used in therr
valuatuon This included considening changes in the discount since
the deal date and how this compared relative to the performance
of the pertfolic company against the relevant industry sector

Where a recent transaction has been used as a source to farr value
wvestments, we challenged the Manager on whether there had been
any changes in facts and circumstances since the deal date which may
indicate that a change in valuation would be appropnate This included
a review of financial information 1o assess performance of the company

Where underlying asset valuations were used we corroborzted these
1o supporting documentation such as third party valuation reports
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Area of focus (continued) How our audit addressed the area of focus {continued)

Recognition of Investment income and We tested investment Income receipts to supporting documentation
net gains by performing procedures, including

See page 94 1o the financial statements for

the directors disclosures of the related ® agreeing amounts 1o bank statements, and

accounting policies, jJudgements and m re-calculaung accrued interest based on the terms of investment
pohicies and page &8 for further information agreements

Investment (ncome comprises mainly We recalculated unrealised net gains based on the valuation movement
dividends and interest received from N investments over the year These gains are supported by the work we
Investments have performed over investment valuations as outhned above

Net gains represent far value increases in We recaiculated realised gains based on the difference between the
the value of tnvestments over the financial value of the Investment at the date of disposal and the proceeds

year and gains made on the disposal of received as per supporting documentabon such as sales agreements
investments Fair value movements are and bank staterments

cnrealised and are based on the change in
investment valuations which in themselves | We also assessed the appropriateness of the allocation of investment

are subjective as noted above Income and net gains between income and capital based on the
requirernents of the Association of Investment Companies Statement
Investment incame and net gains 15 the of Recommended Practice

measure used to calculate returns being
achieved by the group and so there 15

a potential Incentive for management to
overstate this figure in order to enhance
results

This, combined with the size of the balance,
made this an area of focus

104 Electra Private Equity PLC | Report and Accounts 2014




Area of focus (continued)

How our audit addressed the area of focus (continued})

Calculation of incentive schemes
provisions and prionty profit share charges
See pages 95 and 96 to the financial
statements for the directors’disclosures of
the related accounting policies, jJudgements
and policies and note 22 for further
information

Incentive scheme provisions comprise
amounts payable 10 certain members of the
Manager 1o compensate them for therr
services In a way which aligns their
remuneration with investment performance
There are a number of different schemes in
place and the calculations are relatively
complex which increases the risk of error

The incentive scheme provisions are
calculated based on a percentage share
of a combinaton of

m The gross value of investments held,

® Total profits and returns of the
investments, and

m Profits realised on the sale of
Investments

In some instances the percentages are
vanable based an when certain returns
are achieved This, together with the
dependency on investment valuations
means that scme of the calculations are
based on subjective judgernents

In addition, the Manager 1s paid a priority
profit share based on a percentage of the
value of investments at each guarter end
Similarly to the incentive schemes, the
investment valuations are a key Input (@
the calculation and these are subjective
In nature

The nature of both the sncentive scheme
provisions and priorty profit share charges
means that there is a related party
relationship and there may be an incentive
for these to be overstated

We recalculated the amounts due to the Manager based on the
methodology and fee rates outlined in management agreements
We tested the methodologies applied for each of the separate
schemes based an the underlying scheme docurnentation

Where applicable, we checked inputs o the calculation back to
suppoerting documentauon such as

m Agreeing gains recognised on the sale of investments to the work
we performed over net gains,

m Agreeing the gross value of investments to the work we perfermed
over the fair value of iInvestments,

m Agreeing total profits and returns to the work we performed over
Investment Income,

We also recalculated the returns achieved to ensure that the conditions
of the Incentive scheme agreements had been met before the
Incentives were paid

Fer the priortty profit share we have recalculated the amounts paid
each qguarter and agreed the inputs to the calculation to the underlying
accounting records We have also ensured that the calculation was
consistent with the underlying pricrity profit share agreement and was
mathematically accurate

How we tailored the audit scope

We tallored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed encugh work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking into account the geographic structure of the group, the accounting processes and controls,

and the industry in which the group operates
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The Group has one line of business which 1s to make investments, primaniy 1n the private equity sector The objecive of
the group 15 to Increase the value of these investments over the long-term in order to deliver retusns to shareholders
The Group comprises a number of subsidiary companies, including limited partnerships which hold the investments
The Manager of the investments is not part of the group All accounting 1s performed by a finance function in the UK

Audit work has been performed in respect of the two significant subsicharies for which we are also the auditor, together
with the parent company The limited partnerships which hold the investments do not require an audit, however we have
audited the investments held by them This, together with procedures performed over the consolidation, has provided the
evidence we needed for our opinion on the Group financial staternents as a whole

Materiality

The scope of our audit1s iInfluenced by our application of matenality We set certain quantitative thresholds for matenality
These, together with qualttaiive considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, iming and
extent of our audit procedures and to evaiuate the effect of misstaiements, both indwidually and on the financial
statements as a whole

Based on our professional judgement, we determined matenality for the financial statements as a whole as follows

Overall group matenality £21 million (2013 £18 million)
How we determined it 175% of net assets
Rationaie for benchmark applied We believe that net assets is the most appropriate benchmark because

this1s the key metric of interest to investars 1t1s also a generally accepted
measure used for companies in this industry

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above £1 million
{2013 £900k) as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons

Going concern
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the directors’statement, set out on page 109, in relation 10 going
concern We have nothing te report having performed our review

As noted in the directors’staternent, the directors have concluded that it 15 appropnate to prepare the financial statements
using the going concern basis of accounting The going concern basis presumes that the group and parent campany have
adequate resources te remain in operation, and that the directors intend them to do so, for zt least one year from the date
the financial statements were signed As part of our audit we have concluded that the directors’use of the going concern
basis s appropriate

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, these statements are not a guarantee as 1o the
group’s and parent company's ability to continue as a going concern

Other required reporting
Consistency of other information

Companies Act 2006 opinions
Incur opinion

= the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 15 consistent with the financial statements, and

® the information given in the Corporate Governance Statement set out on pages 119 te 12310 the Annual Report with
respect to internal control and nsk management systems and about share capital structures is consistent with the
financial staiements
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ISAs (UK & Ireland) reporting
Under 15As (UK & Ireland) we are required to repert to you If, in our opinion

m Information in the Annual Report is We have no exceptions to report arising
- matenally inconsistent with the informauon m the audited financial | from this responsibility
statements, Of
- apparently materially incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent
with, our knowledge of the group and parent company acquired 1n
the course of performing our audit, or
- 15 otherwise misieading

m the statement given by the directors on page 126, In accordance with We have no exceptions to report ansing
provision C 1 1 of the UK Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”, that | from this responsibihity
they consider the Annual Report taken as a whole to be fair, balanced
and understandable and provides the information necessary for
members 1o assess the group’s performance, business model and
strategy 15 matenally inconsistent with our knowledge of the group
acguired in the course of performing our audit

m the section of the Annual Report on page 124, as required by provision | We have no exceptions to report ansing
C 38 of the Code, describing the work of the Audit Committee does from this responsitility
not appropriately address matters communicated by us to the
Audit Committee

Adeguacy of accounting records and information and explanations received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report tc you If, In our opinion

m we have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or

® adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been receved from branches not visited by us, or

m the parent company financial staternents and the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited are not
In agreement with the accounting records and returns

We have no exceptions te report arising from this responsibility

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration report - Companies Act 2006 opinion

In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneraton Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, in aur opinmion, certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law are not made We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility

Corporate governance statement

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report 1o you If, In our opinicn, a corporate governance statement
has not been prepared by the parent company We have no exceptions 1o report ansing from this responsibibty

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the part of the Corporate Gavernance Statermnent relating to the parent

company’s compliance with nine provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code We have nothing to repert having
performed our review

Electra Private Equity PLC | Report and Accounts 2014 103

Overview

Financial statements Managers'Review ‘ Strategic and business review

Governance

Further information




Responsibihiies for the financial statements and the audit

Qur responsibihities and those of the directors
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities set out on page 126, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Qur responsibility 15 10 audit and express an opinion an the finanoal statements in accordance with applicable law and 15As
(UK & Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, Including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company s members as 2 body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no ather purpose We do not, in giving these opinions, accept
or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or Into whose hands

It may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent inwriting

What an audit of financial statements involves

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This inctudes an assessment of

s whether the accounting policies are approprate o the group’s and the parent company’s crcumstances and have
been consistently apphed and adeguately disclosed,

m the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and

& the overall presentation of the financial statements

We primanly focus our work in these areas by assessing the directors’ jJudgements against available evidence, forming our
own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements

We test and exarmine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary
1o provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions We obtain audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of
contrgls, substantive precedures or a combination of both

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to idenufy matenal inconsistencies
wath the audited financial statements and to idenufy any information that 1s apparently matenially incorrect based on, or
matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us In the course of performing the audit If we become aware

of any apparent materiai misstatemnenits or Inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

/}(\\A o Mo
Alisan Morns (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London
26 November 2014

(a) The maintenance and integnty of the Electra Private Equity PLC website 1s the responsibility of the directors, the work carried out by
the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly the auditers accept no responsibility for any changes
that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were inmally presented on the website

(b) Legislation in the United Kingdom gaverning the preparation and disserminanion of financial statements may differ from legislanion
In other junsdicuons
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Objective and Investment Policy

Electra has been guoted on the London Stock Exchange since 1976 Electra is managed as an HM Revenue and Customs
approved investment trust and invests pnmarnly in the private equity mid-market

The business and affairs of Electra are managed on an exclusive and fully discretionary basis by Electra Partners, an
independent private equity fund manager with over 25 years expenience in the mid-market

Electra’s objective 15 to achieve a rate of return on equity of between 10-15% per year over the long-term by investing in &
portfolio of private equity assets

Electra Partners aims to achieve this target rate of return on behalf of Electra by utiising a flexible investment strategy and

m exploiting a track record of successful private equity investment,

m uthising the proven skibls of its management team with a strong record of deal flow generation and long-term presence In
the private equity market,

m largeting private equity opportunities (including direct investrnent, fund investments and secondary buyouts of portfolios
and funds} so that the perceved risks associated with such investments are justified by expected returns,

w investing in a number of value creating transactions with a balanced risk profile across a broad range of investment sectors
through a varety of financial instruments, and

m actively managing its capital position and levels of geanng in ight of prevailing economic condiions

The investment focus 15 principally on Western Europe, with the majonity of investments made i the Unned Kingdem where
Electra Partners has hustorically been most active There 1s an emphasts on areas where Electra Partners has speafic knowledge
and experuse In crreumstances where Electra Partners feels that there 1s merit In gaining exposure to countries and sectors
outside its network and expertise, consideration 1s given to invesung in specific funds managed by third parties or co-investing
with private equity managers with whom it has developed a relatonship

In implemenung Electra’s flexible investment strategy, Electra Partners typically targets investments at a cost of £40 million to
£100 million in companies with an enterprise value of up to £300 million

Electra Partners atternpts to mitigate risk through porifolio diversification Invesiments will therefore be made across a broad
range of sectors and industries At the time of investment, nat maore than 15% of Electra’s wotal assets will typically be invested
In any single investment if Electra acquires a portfolio of companies in a single transaction, this imitation shall be applied
indvidually to each of the underlying companies purchased and not to the portfolic as a whole

Electra has a policy to maintain total geaning below 40% of 1ts total assets

Unless required to do so 1o maintain Electra’s investment trust status, it 1s the policy of the Directors not 1o pay dividends
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Report of the Directors

To the Members of Electra Private EQuity PLC
The Directors present the audited Accounts of the Group for the year ended 30 September 2074 and their Report on 1ts affairs

In accordance with the requirement for the Directors to prepare a Strategic Report and an enhanced Directors Remuneration
Report for the year ended 30 Septemnber 2014, the following information, sorme of which has been previously included within
the Directors'Report, 15 set out in the Strategic Report on pages 7 10 13 a review of the business of the Company including
detalls about its objective, strategy and business model, details of the principal nsks and uncertainties associated with the
Company's actvities, information regarding community, social, employee, human nghts and environmental 1ssues and the
Company s policy regarding Board diversity Information about Directors’interests In the Company’s ordinary shares and or
subordinated converuble bonds is included within the Annual Report on Remuneration section of the Directors’ Remuneration
Reporton pages 11410 118

Results
Arevenue profit attributable to sharehelders of £19,996,000 (2013 loss of £8,974,000) was transferred to Revenue Reserves
No dividend 15 proposed in respect of the year ended 30 September 2014 (2013 nil)

Management Arrangements

Electra Partners 1s appointed as the Manager of the Company under a management agreement dated 12 October 2006 and as
amended on 11 July 2014 1o faciitate compliance with AIFMD regulations The agreement may be terminated by ether party
gving notice of not less than 12 months Whatever nouce period 1s worked, Electra Partners will be entitled 1o receve
additionat compensation equwvalent to 12 months’ prienty profit share (determined by reference to the previous 12 months’
prionty profit share)

If Electra Partners terminates the management agreement, Electra may pay compensation in lieu of any part of the notice
period but Electra Partners s not entitled to any addinonal compensation

During the year the Company continued 10 operate carmned interest and co-investment schemes for executives of Electra
Partners and details of these schemes are contained in Notes 22 and 23 of the Notes to the Financial Statements

As detalled in the Corporate Governance Statement, the Board reviews the activities of Electra Partners on an ongoing basis
and believes that the continuing appointment of Electra Partners on the terms agreed 1s In the best interests of shareholders
as a whole

Electra Partners 1s responsible for the Investment management of a number of mited partnership funds to which the
Company has subscribed Electra Partners manages the Company's investments in accerdance with guidelines determined by
the Directors and as specified in kmited partnership agreements and the management and investment guideline agreements

Share Capital

On 29 Decermnber 2010 the Company 1ssued £100 million of 5% Subordinated Converuble Bonds due 29 December 2017 at an
1ssue price of 100 per cent and with an initial conversion price of 2,050p Bendholders may convert their bonds into ordinary
shares of the Company from 7 February 2011 up to and including the date falling seven business days prior to 29 December
2017 The conversion price of 2,050p will be adjusted to deal with certain events which would otherwise dilute the canversion
of bondholders These events include dividends paid to ordinary shareholders, share nghts and share related secunties issued
to shareholders, 1ssue of other securities to shareholders, demergers and other events detalled in the Prospectus for the Bond

During the year, 3,392 Subordinated Convertible Bonds were converted into 165,45 ordinary shares (2013 39 Subordinated
Converuble Bonds were converted into 1,901 ordinary shares)

Al 30 September 2014 there were 35,507,751 ordinary shares of 25p each in 1ssue The Company does not hold any shares
in treasury

Since the year end and prior to 21 November 2014 (being the latest practicable date before the signing of this Directors’
Report) & further 1,069 Subordinated Convertible Bonds have been converted into a total of 52,141 ordinary shares
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Authonty to Make Market Purchases of Shares

As at 30 Septemnber 2014, the Company had authonty to purchase for cancellation up 1o 5,297,860 shares This authority will
fapse at the 2015 Annual General Meeung when a Special Resolution will be proposed to renew the Company’s authcrty to
make market purchases of its own shares

During the year the Company did not purchase any shares for cancellation

Multi-Currency Loan Facility
At 30 September 2014 borrowings under the £195 million (2013 £195 milhan) multi-currency revoiving credit facihty
amounted to £151,912,000 (2013 £158,340,000)

During the year 1¢ 30 September 2013, the repayment date of the facility was extended from June 2016 to December 2017

Directors
The current Directors of the Company are listed on pages 128 and 129 Mr R Yates, Dame Kate Barker, Ms F Barnes,
Mr G Culinan, Mrs J Gold and Mr R Perkin served as Directors throughout the year ended 30 September 20714

Dr C Bowe retired as a Director and Chairman of the Company at the Annual General Meeting in 2014
No other person was a Director of the Company dunng any part of the year
All of the Directors will retire at the Annual General Meeting in 2015 and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election

Directors’ Conflicts of Interest

Directors report on actual or potenual conflicts of interest at each Board meeting The Board has agreed that the Remuneration
and Nomination Committee 1s respensible for considenng and reviewing conflicts of interest Any Director or Directors with 2
potential canflict would be excluded from such a review After consideration, If required, the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee would subsequently make a recemmendation to the Board of Directors

Directors’indemnity

Directers’and Officers' Liabilty insurance cover has been put in place In addition, the Company’s Articles of Association
provide, subject to the provisions of applicable UK legislation, an indemnity for Directors in respect of costs incurred (n the
defence of any proceedings brought against them by third parties ansing out of their positions as Directors, in which they are
acguitied or Judgemnent Is given In therr favour

Substantial Interests
The Company has received the following notificaucns of interests of 3% or maere in the voung nghts attached 1o the
Company's ordinary shares

*Percentage of

Voting Rights Voting Rights

Notified Indirect Direct Indirect

Direct No No 9% 9%

Prudential PLC Group of Companies 3,907,208 1825 1099 -
Sherborne Investors Management {Guernsey) LLP and its associates - 7.087,485 - 1993
investec Wealth & Investrment Limited - 1,761,217 - 495
Aviva plc & its subsidiaries 1,088,628 - 306 -

*Percentage shown as a percentage of 35,559,892 orcinary shares, being the number of shares in 1ssue at the latest practicable date before
the publication of this Cirectors' Report

Global Greenhouse Gas Emisstons for the Year ended 30 September 2014

Electra has no greenhouse gas emissions ta report from the operations of the Company, nor does 1t have responsibility for any
other emissions producing sources under the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors Reperts) Regulations 2013,
including those within 1ts underlying investment portfolio
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Staternent of Disclosure of Information to Auditors

Each of the Directors confirms that so far as they are aware, there 1s no relevant audit Information of which the Company’s
Audrtors are unaware and they have taken all steps they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and 1o establish that the Company's Auditors are aware of that information

Independent Auditors

A resolution to re-appont PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Auditors to the Company will be proposed at the Annual General
Meeting A separate resolution will be proposed at the Annual General Meeung authansing the Crrectors to determine the
remuneration of the Auditors

The Auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. have indicated their willingness ta contunue in office

Going Concern
The Company’s business actvities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position
are described in the Chairman’s Statement, the Investment Highiights, the Portiolo Review and the Strategic Report

Al each Board meeting, the Cirectors review the Company s latest financial infermation The Board reqularly considers
commitments to private equity investments, long-term cash flow projections for the Company and the use of geanng

After due consideration of the balance sheet and activities of the Company and the Company’s assets, iabiliues, commitments
and financial resources, the Directors have concluded that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operation for
the foreseeable future For this reason, they consider W appropnate to continue 1o adopt the gong Concerm Hasis n prepanng
the Accounts of the Carmpany

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting will be held on Monday 16 March 2015 In addition to the ordinary business, the following special
business will be considered

Authonty to Purchase own Shares (Resolution 11}

A special resolution will be proposed to renew the Board's authonty to purchase its own shares, so as to permit the purchase of
up to 5,330,427 of the Company’s crdinary shares (ar such lesser number of shares as 1s equal to 14 999% of the total number of
ardinary shares in1ssue at the date of the passing of the resolution) subject to the constraints set out In the special resolution
The Directors would intend to use this authority 1o purchase shares only if this would result In an Increase in net asset value

per share and would be In the best interests of shareholders generally Should any shares be purchased under this authaorty,
1t1s the intention of the Board that such shares be cancelled

The Directors believe that the renewal of the Board's authonty to purchase shares, as detalled above, 15 1n the best interests
of sharehclders as a whole and therefore recommend shareholders to vote in favour of Resolution 11

Additional Information for Shareholders

Set out below (s a summary of certain provisions of the Company's current Articles of Association {the *Articles”) and applicable
Enghish law concerning companies (the Companies Act 2006 ({Companies Act™) This 1s a summary only and the relevant
provisions of the Articles or the Campanies Act should be consulted if further information 1s required

Alteration of Articles of Association
Any change to the Company's Articles of Association needs to be approved by shareholders by means of a special resolution

Share Capital

The Company has a single class of share capital which 15 dwvided into ordinary shares of 25 pence ezch The shares are 1n
registered form
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Dividends and Distnibutions

Subject to the prowisions of the Companies Act, the Company may by ordinary resolution from time to time declare dwidends
not exceeding the amount recommended by the Board The Board may pay intenm dvidends whenever the financial position
of the Cempany, 1n the opinion of the Board, justifies such payment

The Board may withhold payment of all or any part of any dividends payable in respect of the Company’s shares from a persan
with a 0 25% interest of a class of shares if such a person has been served with a notice after failure to provide the Company
with information concerning interest in those shares required to be provided under the Companies Act

Voting Rights

Subject to any rights or restrictions attached to any shares, on a show of hands, every member who 1s present in person has
one vote and every proxy present who has been duly appointed has one vote However if the proxy has heen duly appointed
by meore than one member entitled to vote on the resclution, and s Instructed by one or more of those members to vote for
the resolution and by one or mare others to vote agamnst it, or 1s instructed by one or more of those mernbers 1o vote In one
way and 1s given discretion as to how to vote by one or more others (and wishes to use that discretion 1o vote in the other
way) he has one vote for and cne vote against the resclution Every corporate representative present who has been duly
authorised by a corporation has the same voting nghts as the corporaticn would be entitled to On a poll every member
present in person or by duly appointed proxy or corporate representative has cne vote for every share of which he i1s the
holder of In respect or which his appointment as proxy or corporate representative has been made

A member, proxy or corporate representative entitled to more than one vote need not, iIf he votes, use all his votes or cast all
the votes he uses the same way

In the case of jornt holders the vote of the senior who tenders a vote shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the
other joint holders, and senionty shall be determined by the order in which the names of the helders stand in the register of
members

A member is entitled 1o appoint another person as his proxy 1o exercise all or any of his nghts to attend and to speak and vote
at a meeting of the Company The appointment of a proxy shall be deemed also to confer authonty to demand of join I
demanding & poll Delivery of an appointment of proxy shall not preclude a member from attending and voting at the
meeting or at any adjournment of it A proxy need not be a member A member may appaint more than one proxy in relation
to a meeting, provided that each proxy 1s appointed to exercise the nghts attached to a different share or shares held by hm

Restrnictions on Voting

No member shall have the nght to vote at any general meeting or at any separate meeting of the holders of any class of
shares, either in person or by proxy, in respect of any share held by him unless all amounts presentiy payable by him in respect
of that share have been paid In addiion if a person with a 0 25% interest of a class of shares has been served with a notice
after failure to provide the Company with information concerning interest in those shares required 1o be provided under the
Companies Act 2006 the member shall nat be entitled to vote

Deadlines for exercising Voting Rights

Votes are exercisable at a general meeting of the Company in respect of which the business being voted upen 1s being heard
Votes may be exercised In person, by proxy, or in relatien 1o corporate members, by corporate representative The Articles
provide a deadline for submussion of a proxy form in hard copy and electronic form of not less than 48 hours before the ume
appointed for the holding of the meeting or adjourned meeting In the case of a poll taken subseguently to the date of the
meeung or adjourned meeting, the proxy form must be received not less than 24 houwrs (or such shorter ume as the Directors
may determine) before the uime appointed for the taking of the poll
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Variation of Rights

The Arucles specify that If the capital of the Company 1s divided into different classes of shares, nights attached 1o any class may
be varied, erther in such manner {if any) as may ke provided by those nghts, or in the absence of any such provision, with the
consent in writing of the halders of three-quarters in nominal value of the 1ssued shares of that class (excluding any shares of
that class held as treasury shares), or with the sanction of a special resclution passed at a separate meeting of the holders of
the shares of that class, but not otherwise At every such separate meeting other than an adjourned meeting ihe guorum shall
be two persons together holding or representing by proxy at least one-third in norminal value of the issued shares of the class
in question {excluding any shares of that class held as treasury shares) At an adjourned meeting, the quorum shall be two
persons holding shares of the class in question (other than treasury shares) or his proxy

Transfer of Shares

Thenstrument of transfer of a share in certificated form may be 1n any usual form or in any other form which the Directors
approve and shall be executed by or on behalf of the transferor and, where the share 1s not fully paid, by or on behalf of the
transferee Where any class of shares 15, for the time being, a participating secunty, title to shares of that class which are
recorded on an operator register of members as being held m unceruficated form may be transferred by means of the relevant
system The transfer may not be in favour of more than four transferees Transfers of shares in uncertificated form are effected
by means of the relevant system

The Direciors may, 1n their absclute discretion, refuse to register the transfer of a share in certificated form which 1s not fully
pad provided that If the share 15 listed on the Official List of the UK Lisung Authonity such refusal does not prevent dealings
In the shares from taking place on an open and proper basis

The Directors may also refuse 1o register a transfer of a share in certificated form (whether fully paid or not) unless the
instrument of transfer

(a) 15 lodged, duly stamped, at the Office or at such other place as the Directors may appoint and (except in the case of a
transfer by a financial Institution where a certificate has not been 1ssued in respect of the share) 1s accompanied by the
certificate for the share to which it relates and such other evidence as the Directors may reasonably require 1o show the
rnight of the transferor to make the transfer,

(0} 15 inrespect of only one class of share, and
{c) 15 1n favour of not more than four transferees

If the Directors refuse to register a transfer of a share, they shall as soon as practicable and in any event within two manths
after the date on which the transfer was lodged with the Company (in the case of a transfer of a share in certificated form) or
the date on which the Operator-instruction was recelived by the Company (In the case of a transfer of a share in uncertificated
farm to a person wha is to hold it thereafier in ceruficated form) send to the transferee notice of the refusal together with
reasons for the refusal The Directors shall send such further information about the reasons for the refusal to the transferee as
the transferee may reasonably request

Nothing in the Articles shall preclude the Directors from recogrising a renunciation of the allotment of any share by the
allottee in favour of some other person
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Appointment and Replacement of Directors
Unless otherwise determined by the Company by crdinary resolution the number of Directors (disregarding alternate
Directors) shall not be less than three nor more than fifteen

At the annual general meeting In every year all Directors who held cffice at the ume of each of the two preceding annual
general meetings and who did not retire at either of them shall retire from office by rotation and such further Directors (if any)
shall retire by rotation as would bring the number retinng by rotation up to one-third of the number of Directors in office at
the date of the notice of the meeting (or, If therr number is not 2 multiple of three, the number nearest to but not greater than
one third} The additional Directors to retire shall be those who have been longest in office since therr last appointment or
reappomntment, but, as between persons who became or were last reappointed Directors on the same day, those to retire shall
(unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot Any non-executive Cirector (other than the chairman)
who has held office as a non-execuuve Director for nine years or mere shall retire from office at each annual general meeting
and shall be eligible for reappointment A Director who retires at an annual general meeting may be rezppointed If he 1s not
reappointed or deemed to have been reappointed, he shall retain office until the meeting elects someone in his place or, If it
does not do so, until the close of the meeting

If the Company, at the meeting at which a Director retires under any provision of the Articles, does not fill the vacancy the
retinng Director shall, f willing to act, be deemed to have been reappointed unless at the meeung 1t s resolved not to fill the
vacancy or a resolution for the reappointment of the Director 1s put to the meeting and lost

The office of a Director shall be vacated if a Director
{) becomes bankrupt or compounds with his creditors generally,
{1 15 prohibted by law from being a Director,

() has a court order made in respect of his mental health which wholly or partly prevents him from exercising powers or
nghts which he would otherwise have,

{v) sends a notice to the Cempany that he 1s resigning or retiring from his office and such resignation or retirement has taken
effect,

{v) sees his appointment {at an executive office) terminated cr expiring and the Cirectors resalve that he should cease 1o ‘
be Director,

{vi} 15 absent without permissicn of the Board from meetings of the Board for six consecutive months and the Board resolves
that the office 1s vacated, or

(vn) nouice 13 served upon a Director in witing by all other co-Directors

Powers of the Directors
Subject to the Articles, the Comparnies Act and any directions given by special resolistion, the business of the Company will be
managed by the Board who may exercise all the powers of the Company

The Directors shall restrict the borrowings of the Company and exercise all powers of control exercisable by the Company in
relation to its subsidiary undertakings so as to secure that the aggregate principal amount (including any premium payable on
final repayment) outstanding of all money borrowed by the Company and its subsidianes shall not at any tme, save with the
previous sanction of an erdinary resclution of the Company, exceed (i) the amount paid up or credited as paid up on the share
capital of the Company or (1) the totaf of any credit balance on the distnbutable and undistributable reserves of the Company
and 1ts subsidianes, subject to certain adjustments

112 Electra Private Equity PLC | Report and Accounts 2014




The Company may by ordinary resolution declare dividends 1n accordance with the respective rights of the members, but no
diwidend shall exceed the amount recormmended by the Directors Subject to the provisions of the Articles and to the nghts
attaching to any shares, any dividends or other monies payable on or in respect of a share may be pad in such currency as the
Drectors may determine The Directors may deduct from any dividend payable to any member all sums of meney (if any)
presently payable by him 1o the Company on account of calls or otherwise 1n relation to shares of the Company The Directors
may retain any dividends payable on shares on which the Company has a lien, and may apply the same 1n ar towards
satisfaction of the debts, habilines or engagements i respect of which the lien exists

Significant Agreements Change of control

If there 1s a no fault termimation by the Corpany of the Management Agreement (between the Company and Electra
Partners), dated 12 October 2006 and as amended on 11 July 2014 to facilitate comphance with AIFMD regulations, within 24
months of a change of effective control of the Company, 100% of the carned interest which has accrued as at the date of
termination will be payable to the members of Electra Partners over three years and any future additional carry on existing
investments will vest at 80% and will be paid on the realisation of investments when it becomes due in the ordinary course

b Capild Lbp

By order of the Board of Directors

Frostrow Capital LLP. Company Secretary

Paternoster House, 65 5t Paul's Churchyard, London, EC4M 8AB
26 November 2014

Electra Private Equity PLC | Report and Accounts 2014 113

‘ Overview

Strategic and business review

Financial statements Managers' Review ‘

Governance

Further information




Directors’ Remuneration Report

Statement by Chairman of the Remuneration and Nominatton Committee

This 1s the second reporting period that we have reported in accordance with the Large and Medium-sized Companies and
Groups (Accounts and Reports) (Amendment} Regulations 2013 This Remuneraticn Report includes the Annual Report on
Remuneration required by the Regulations and also, for information only, the Remuneration Policy which was approved by the
Company’s members at the Annual General Meeting in March 2014

The Arnual Report on Remuneration sets out annually how the Remuneration Policy has been implemented, including a
single figure for the total remuneration of each of the Directors in the financial year to 30 Septernber 2014

The Annual Repori on Remuneration 15 subject to the approval of the members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

The vote wiil be advisory but if the Company fails 1o pass a resolution in a year where the Remuneration Policy was not put to

a members'resolution this will tngger the need for the Cornpany to put the Remuneration Policy to a vote of its members the

following year '

The Remuneration Policy sets out how the Company pays the Directors, including each element of remuneration to which the
Directors are entitled and how this supports the Company's long-term strategy and performance The policy also includes
detalls of the Company's approach to recruitment and loss of office payments

The Remuneration Palicy was subject to the approval of the members at the 2014 Annual General Meeting and following the
approval by the members s binding on the Company The Remuneratien Policy must be put 1o a shareholder resolution at
least every three years and if the Company wishes 1o make any changes to the Remuneration Policy it will have 1o put the new
policy 1o a vaote of ts members at a general meetng

There have been no substantial changes in the Company’s approach 1o the remuneration of its Directors during the year and
the Remuneration and Nomination Committee did not consider i1t necessary to recommend any changes 1o the existing
Directors'fee arrangements guring the year

Remuneration Policy

The Diwectors prepared this policy in accordance with the requirements of the Large and Medium-sized Companies and

Groups (Accounts and Reports) (Amendment} Regulations 2013 An Ordinary Resolution for the approval of this palicy was put

to members at the 2014 Annual General Meeting and following the passing of the resclution the policy tock effect from the

date of the Annual General Meeting All provisions of this policy are expected to remain in effect until the Annual General

Meeting in 2017 when the Company 1s next required to submit its pohcy on the remuneration of ts Directors to the members
|
|
[
I

Future Policy Table
The fee levels paid to the Company's Directors are determined by the Remuneration and Nomination Committee

The Company’s policy 1s that the remuneration of nen-executive Directors shou!d be farr and sufficient to oversee the affairs of
the Company and should reflect the specfic circumstances of the Company, the duties and responsibiities of the Directors
and the vaiue and amount of ime committed to the Company's affairs The policy 1s to pay a basic fee to each Director and to
pay additional fees 1o the Chairman of the Company, the Chairmen of the Board’s Committees and the Senior Independent
Director as set cut in the future policy table below Fees may be increased in ine with inflation from time to time

The Remuneration and Normination Committee may consider paying additional fees to a Director or Directors in the event that
they carry out addinenal work for the Company, except that non-executive Directors are nat eligible to receive bonuses,
pension benefits, share options or other benefits and are subject 1o the requirement that the total rermuneration of the
Directors 15 determined by the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association and by shareholder resolution
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Components of Remuneration Package Current Level of Fee
Basic Cirector’s Fee £35,000
Additonal fee for Chairman of Company £65,000
Additenal fee for Chatrman of Audit Committee £6,000
Additignal fee for Chatrman of Valuations Cormittee £6,000
Addional fee for Charrman of Management Engagement Commuttee £6,000
Additicnal fee for Charrman of Remuneration and Nomination Commiitee £3,000
Addinonal fee for Senior Independent Director £6,000

The Company’s remuneration policy for its non-executve Directors as descnbed above is considered by the Board 1o be
effective in supporting the short and long-term strategic objectives of the Company by ensuring that the Company continues
to be able to recrurt Directors who are suitably qualified and expenenced to supervise the Company’s affairs

Statement of Principles of the Company's Approach to Recruitment Remuneration

1} Remuneration of non-execuiive Directors should be fair and sufficient to enable Directors propeily 1o oversee the affairs
of the Company and sheuld reflect the specific circumstances of the Company, the duties and responsibitities of the
Directors and the value and amount of time committed to the Company's affairs

2)  Non-executive Directors are not eligible to recerve bonuses, pension benefits, share options or cther benefits

3} Thetotal remuneration of the Directors 15 determined by the provisions of the Company's Articles of Association and by
shareholder resolution

4)  The basic Director’s fee will be paid to each Director with an additional fee per annum for the Chairman of the Company
An additicnal fee per annum will be paid to the Chawrman of each of the Audit, Valuations, Management Engagement,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees and to the Chairman of any other Commitiees that the Company forms and
1o the Senior Independent Director

5)  Directors are not entitled to any vanable remuneration

Service Contracts

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company No arrangements have been entered inta, nor 1s 1t proposed
that arrangements be entered into, between the Company and the Directors to entitle any of the Directors to remuneration or
cempensaton for loss of office which 15 not disclosed elsewhere in this policy

Notice Period and Loss of Office Payment Policy
The Directors are subject to a notice period of one month [t1s the Company’s pelicy not ta enter Into any arrangement with
any of the Directors 1o entitle any of the Directors to compensation for loss of office

Statement of Consideration of Conditions elsewhere in the Company

The Company has no employees and therefore the Company cannot take Into account the pay and employment conditions of
its employees when setting the remuneration policy For similar reasons the Company cannot consult with 1ts employees
when setting the palicy for Directors’ Remuneration of use comparison metrics or other specific infarmation comparnng its
employees remuneration when determining Directors’' Remuneration
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Statement of Consideration of Shareholder Views

The Company places great importance on communication withits shareholders The Company has had regular dialogues with
institutional sharehelders and City analysts throughout the year to 30 September 2014 and at the Annual General Meeting
held in 2014 and can confirm that it 1s not aware of negative views being expressed by shareholders in relation to its policy on
Directors' Remuneration

Annual Report on Remuneration

The Directors are subrmtting this report In accordance with the requirements of the Large and Medium-sized Comparies and
Groups {Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013 An Ordinary Resolution for the approval of this report will be
put to members at the forthcoming Annuat General Meeting

The law reguires the Company's Auditors to audit certain of the disclosures provided Where disclosures have been audited
they are indicated as such

Remuneration and Nomination Committee

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee comprses all the non-executive Directors of the Company | am Chairman of
the Committee The Board considers it appropriate, given the number of non-executive Directors that all Directors should be
members of the Committee

The Committee met twice In the year, to consider the appointment of Mr Yates as Chairman of the Company and as Director
and Chatrman of Electra Private Equity Investments PLC and to review Directors’ remuneration

The Committee did not consider 1t necessary to recormnmend any changes 1o the existng fee arrangements duning the year
which are set out In the Future Pohicy Table of the Remuneration Policy

The Company has no employees

Single Total Figure Table for the Year (Audited)

Fees/total Fees/total

305ept 2014 30 Sept 2013

Director £000 £00¢
R Yates (appointed Chairman 11 March 2014) 71 35
Dame Kate Barker* 47 44
F Barnes {appointed 7 March 2013) 35 20
G Cullnan 41 41
1 Gold {appointed 12 September 2013) 35 2
RK Perkin 41 41
C Bowe (retired 11 March 2014) 45 100
L Webber (retred 7 March 2013) - 16
Total 315 302

*i have waived the £3,000 payable as Chairman of the Remuneranon and Nomination Committee
The Directors were not enuitled to any taxable benefits i the year ended 30 September 2014 (2013 £nl)
The Directors were not entitled to any pension benefits in the year ended 30 September 2014 (2013 £nil)

The Directors were not entitled to any vanable pay based on the achievement of performance conditions in future penods in
the year ended 30 September 2014 (2013 £n1l)
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No payments were made to any person who was not a Director of the Company at the time the award was made but had
previously been a Director of the Company, other than sums disclosed in the Single Tota! Figure Table for the year ended 30
Septernber 2014 (2013 £rul)

No loss of office payments were made to any person who served as a Director of the Company at any time dunng the year
ended 30 September 2014 (2013 £nul)

As the Company does not have a Chief Executive Officer or any employees apart from its Directors 1t 1s not possible to compare
the percentage increase in remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer with that of all the employees of the Company as
awhole

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay
2014 2013
Spend £000 % £000 %

Profit retained 161,845 10000 113,645 10000
Overall expenditure on Directors’ Fees 315 019 302 027

Spend £000

175000
150000
125000
100000
75000
50000
25000

0 302

Profit retained @ Overall expenditure on Directors Fees

The Directors consider it approprate to compare the overzll expenditure on Directors'fees with the profit retained to
demonstrate the relative scale of these figures to each other 1t1s not meaningful to compare the overall expenditure an
Cirectors' fees with the amounts distributed by dividend or share buybacks and with employee remuneration as these
amounts were nil for the current and previous financiat years

Total Shareholder Return
The Directors consider that, since the Company invests in a broad range of commercial sectors, the FTSE All-Share (ndex 1 the

most appropriate Index against which 1© compare the Company’s performance

Electra Private Equity Total Shareholder Return versus FTSE All-Share Index As at 30 September

%

220

305ept 2008 30Sept2009  305ept2010  30Sept2031  305ept2012  30Sept2013 30 Sept 2014

— Electra s Total Shareholder Return —— FTSE All Share Index
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Statement of Directors' Shareholdings and Share Interests (Audned)

The interests of the Directors (including connected persons} in the ordinary shares and 5% Subordinated Converuble Bonds of
the Company are shown below There is no reguirement for the Directors to own secunties of the Company No share options
or other share scheme interests, with ar without performance condiians, are awarded to the Directors Save as disclosed, no
Oirector had any neufiable interest in the securities of the Company or of any subsidiary of the Company There have been no
changes in the interests of any of the Directors in the ordinary shares and 5% Subordinated Convertible Bonds of the Company
between 1 October 2014 and 26 November 2014

305ept 2014 305ept2014  30%ept 2013 30Sept 2013

Shares Bonds Shares Bonds
R Yates 2,000 - — _
Dame Kate Barker 1,500 - 1,500 -
F Barnes 500 - - -
G Cullinan 1,500 - 1,500 -
J Gold 500 - - -
RK Perkin - 42 - 42

Staternent of Shareholder Voting
At the Annual General Meeting held or 11 March 2014 an Ordinary Resolution to approve the Remuneration Policy was
passed on a poll with the following votes cast

m Votes for 16,442,446 (99 65%), Votes against 57,998 (0 35%), Votes withheld 1,704,340

Also at the Annual General Meeting an Ordinary Resolution to approve the Annual Report on Remuneration was passed on a
poll with the following vetes cast

a Votes for 16,453,581 {99 72%), Votes against 46,685 (G 28%;), Votes withheld 1,704,514

The Directors did not consider that there were substantial sharehalder votes against either resclution

Mt L L

Dame Kate Barker, Charrman of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee
Paternoster House

65 St Paui’s Churchyard, London EC4M 8AB

26 November 2014
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Corporate Governance

The Board of the Company has considered the principles and recommendatons of the AIC Code of Corporate Governance (“AIC
Code”) by reference to the AIC Corporate Governance Guide for Investment Companies ("AIC Guide™) both of which were issued
In February 2013 The AIC Code as explained by the AIC Guide, addresses all of the principles set out in the UK Corporate
Governance Code, which was 1ssued in September 2012, as well as setting cut additional principles and recommendations on
1ssues that are of specific relevance to the Company

The Board considers that reporting against the principles and recommendaucns of the AIC Code and by reference to the AIC
Guide (which incorporates the UK Corporate Governance Code), will provide better information to shareholders

The Company has complied with the recommendations of the AIC Code and the relevant provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Cede dunng the year to 30 September 2014 except as set out below

The UK Corporate Governance Code includes provisions relating to the role of chief executive, executive directors’ remuneration
and the need for an internal audit funcien For the reasons set out In the AIC Guide, and as explained in the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the Board considers these provisions are not relevant to the position of the Company as 1t 1s an externally
managed 1nvestment company The Company has, therefore, not reported further in respect of these provisions

The Board of Directors

The Board comprised six Directors as at 30 September 2014, all of whom were non-executive Mr Yates succeeded Dr Bowe as
Chairman of the Company following the retirement of Dr Bowe as Chairman and Director after the Annual General Meeting on
11 March 2014 The Board has nominated Dame Kate Barker as the Senior Independent Director The Directors' terms of
appoeintment are avallable for inspection on request from the Company Secretary

It is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that there 1s effective stewardship of the Company's affairs The Board has agreed a
schedule of matters reserved for its specific approval, which includes a regular review of the Company’s management
arrangements with Elecira Partners

Management agreements between the Company and Electra Partners set out the matters for which Electra Partners 1s
responsible and thase over which Electra Partners has authornity in accordance with the policies and direcuions of the Board
Regular Board meetings are held to consider, as appropnate, such matters as overall strategy, iInvestment performance,
gearing, share price performance, share price discount, the shareholder profile of the Company and communication with
shareholders The Chairman 1s responsible for setting the Board's agenda and ensuring that adeguate tme 1s avarlable for
discussion on gll agenda items, in particular strategic issues The Board considers that i meets sufficently regularly to discharge
its duties effectively

The number of meetings of the Board and Commuittees of the Board held dunng the year and the aitendance of the indwidual
Directors at those meetings 1s shown in the table below Ali the Directors attended the 2014 Annual General Meeting
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Dhrectors’ Attendance at Meetings of the Board and Committees of the Beard

Remuneration Management

Audit  and Nomination Valuations Engagement

Board Committee Committee Committee Committee

Number of Meetings 13 3 2 2 1
R Yates* 13 1/t 1 11 1
C Bowe™* 3/3 - 2 - -
Dame Kate Barker*** 13 3 2 2 -
G Cullinan 13 3 2 2 1
RK Perkin®## /s 13 3 2 1 -
F Barnes 13 3 2 2 1
JGold 13 3 2 2 1

*

Mr Yates ceased to be a member of the Audit Valuations and Management Engagement Committees fallowing his 2ppointment

as Chairman

Dr Bowe was not a member of the Audit, Valuations or Management Engagement Committes

*** Dame Kate Barker and Mr Perkin were not members of the Management Engagement Committee during the year

**** In the current year, due to an unavoidable conflict with a previously arranged meeting, Mr Perkin was unable to attend the May meeting
of the Valuations Committee However he thoroughly reviewed all relevant documentztion, submitted questions and chellenges, and
receved a full response thereto

*n

The Board receves information that it considers to be suffictent and appropriate to enable it to discharge its duties Oirectors
recewe board papers several days in advance of Beard meetings and are able to consider in detall the Company's performance
and any I1ssues to be discussed at the relevant meeting

The Directors believe thai the Board has an appropriate balance of skills and experience, independence and knowledge of the
Company to enable it to provide effective strategic leadership and proper governance of the Company {nformation about the
Directors, including therr relevant experience, can be found on pages 128 and 129

Independence of the Board

Mr Yates was appointed as a non-executive Director of Electra Private Equity Investments PLC on 26 November 2013 and Mr
Perkin and Mr Cullinan were non-executive Qirectors of that company throughout the year Or Bowe retired as 2 Director of
Etectra Private Equity Investrnents PLC on 11 March 2014 Electra Private Equity Investments PLC 1s a wholly-owned subsichary
of Electra which was established solely for the purpose of issuing and redeeming Zero Dividend Preference shares

The Board has carefully considered the independence of each Director under the provisions of the AIC Code and,
notwithstanding the cross-directorships detalled above, has concluded that each Director 1s wholly independent on the basis
that the Board firmly believes that Independence is a state of mind and the character and judgement which accompany this
are distinct fram and are not compromised by cross-directarships

The Board carnes out a formal appraisal process of its own operations and performance and those of its Committees each year
In 2012, the Board commissioned Boardroom Review to carry out an externally-facilitated evaluation of its operations and
performance and those of its Commuttees Issues covered included Board compositton, meeting arrangements and
communication Boardroom Review presented a detalled report 10 the Board on the conclusians of its evaluation and these
were discussed with the Board The report did not identify any matenat weaknesses or concerns Both the former and current
Chairmen have led on implernenting those changes recommended by Boardroom Review that the Board considered should
be made The Board considered that it was not necessary to carry out an externally-facilitated evaluation of its operations and
performance and those of its Committees in 2014 but carned out the appraisal through questionnaires which were completed
by Directors, the results of which were discussed by the Board The process was considered by the Board to be constructive in
identifying areas for improving the functioning and performance of the Board and its Committees The Board concluded that
its performance and that of its Committees was sausfactory
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The Chairman carned out a formal appraisal of each of the Directors during the year and the Board, under the leadership of the
Senior Independent Directer, similarly appraised the Chairman Relevant matters considered included attendance and
partcipation at Board and Committee meetings, commitment to Board activities and the effectiveness of the contribution
made by the relevant Director As a result of this process, the Chairman has confirmed that each of the Direciors being
proposed for election or re-election continues to be effective and that each of them cenuinues to show commitrent to his or
her role The Senior Independent Director has also confirmed the continuing effectiveness and commitment of the Charman

Directors'Terms of Appointment

The Cormpany’s Articles of Association require that Direciors shall retire and be subject to appointment by shareholders at the
first Annual General Meeting following their appointment by the Board and be subject to re-election at least every third year
thereafter Directors who have served for more than nine years and who wish 1o continue in office are required to submit
themselves for re-elecuon annually The Board does not believe that length of service disqualifies a Director from seeking
re-election

The AIC Code's provisions on re-election of Directors state that all Directors of FTSE 350 companies should be subyject to annual
re-election by shareholders Previously, the Board did not consider it to be in the interests of shareholders that all Directors
should be re elected annually However, the Board has decided that rt should change its policy so that all Directors are
re-elected each year This change of pclicy wiil take effect wath effect from the Annual General Meeting 10 be held

in 2015

Re-election of Directors

In accordance with the Boards policy on Directors Terms of Appointment, all the Directors will retire at the Annual General
Meeting to be held in 2015 and offer themselves for re-election Biographical details of the Directors are set out on

pages 128and 129

Independent Professional Advice
Indimvidual Directors may seek independent professional advice in furtherance of their duties at the Company’s expense within
certain parameters All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary

Company Secretary
Frostrow Capital LLP acted as the independent Company Secretary in addition to its role as Board Advisor durning the year
under review

The Audit Committee

The 8oard 15 supported by the Audit Committee which comprised &l the Directors dunng the year, other than Mr Yates who
ceased to be a member of the Commuttee following his appaintment as the Chairman of the Board and Dr Bowe prior to her
retrement Mr Perkin is Chairman of the Committee The Committee met three times in the year under review and the report
of its activities 1s contained in the Report of the Audit Committee on pages 124 to 125 The Commitiee has written terms of
reference which are available on the Company’s website

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee comprises all the Directors of the Company, all of whom are considered to be
independent The Board considers 1t appropriate, given the number of Directors, that the Committee should comprise all
Directors The Remuneration and Nominauon Cammittee was chaired by Dame Kate Barker throughout the year

The Committee met twice in the year under review The report of i1s actvities 1s contained in the Drrectors’ Remuneration
Report on pages 114 to 118 The Commuttee has written terms of reference which are available on the Company’s website

The Committee’s duties In refation to remuneration include determining and agreeing with the Board the policy for
remuneration of the Directors Where appropnate, the Comritiee will consider both the need to judge the position of the
Company relative to other companies regarding the remuneraticn of Directors and the need to appoint external remuneration
consultants The Comrmuttee’s duties in relation to nomination inciude identfying and nominating, for the approval of the
Board, candidates to fil! Board vacancies based on ment and agamst objective criteria and with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board including gender
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The Valuations Committee

The Valuations Comrmittee adds a further level of oversight to the valuation process carned out by Flectra Partners under its
contractual arrangements with the Company The Valuations Committee 1s chaired by Dame Kate Barker and comprised all the
Cirectors duning the year, other than Mr Yates who ceased to be a member of the Commitiee following his appoimtrment as the
Chairman of the Board and Dr Bowe prior to her retirement The Committee met twice duning the year

Management Engagement Committee

The Management Engagement Commuttee 1s chared by Mr Cullinan Mr Cullinan, Ms Bames and Mrs Gold were members of
the Committee throughout the year Mr Yates was a member of the Commuttee until his appointment as Chairman of the
Board in March 2014 The Committee has wnitten terms of reference which are available on the Company's websiie

The Commuittee’s duties are to review the terms of the Management Centract to ensure that they are competitive and sensible
for shareholders by satisfying iself that the investment management of the Company’s portfolio 1s in accordance with the
Objective and Investment Policy, satisfying itself that all ether duties of the Manager are being performed, reviewing the
overall performance of the Manager, and deciding, at the intervals prescribed by the Management Agreement, on the
continuation or termination of the agreement and by agreeing the terms and fees of any ongoing agreement The Committee
met once during the year to discuss these matters

Induction and Training

New Directors are provided with an induction programme which is taillored to the particular arcumstances of the appomtee
and which includes being briefed fully about the Company by the Chairman, senior executives of Electra Partners and the
Company Secretary Following appointment, the Chairman regularly reviews and agrees with Directors their training and
development needs as necessary tc enable them to discharge ther duties

The Company’s Relationship with its Shareholders

The Company places great importance on communication with its shareholders The Company, in conjunction with Electra
Partners, endeavours tc provide the fullest infermation on the Company to its shareholders, maintaining a regular dialogue
with institut:onal shareholders and City analysts, as well as making a number of presentations and visits threughout the year
Meetings are held with principal sharehelders to discuss relevant issues as they anise

At the Annual General Meeting all shareholders are welceme 10 attend and have the oppertunity to put questions to the
Board and hear a presentation from Electra Partners covenng the investment performance duning the last financial year

The notice of the Annual General Meeting and releted papers are sent to shareholders at least 20 working days before the
meetng A separate resolution 1s proposed on each substantially separate 1ssue including receipt of the annual report and
accounts All proxy votes are counted and, except where a poll 1s called, the level of proxies lodged for each resolution 1s
announced at the Meeting and 1s published on the Company’s website The Chairmen of the Audit, Remuneration and
Nemination, Valuations and Management Engagement Cammittees are normally avallable to answer questions at the Annual
General Meeting each year

The Chairman and the Senior Independent Director can be contacted either through the Company Secretary, Frostrow Captal

LLP, at 25 Southampton Buitdings, London WC2A 1AL or at the Company’s registered office at Paterncster House, 65 5t Pauts
Churchyard, London EC4M 8AB
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Internal Control

The appointment of the Manager as AIFM of the Company under the AIFMD means that 1t i1s now responsible for risk
management and the ongaing process of identifying, evaluating, monitoning and managing the risks facing the Company 1n
accordance with the requirements of AIFMD The Board keeps the Manager's performance of these responsibiliies under
review as part of its overall responsibility for the Company's internal controls

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal control for the year ended 30 September 2014
This review encompasses all controls including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management The
system of internal controi s designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the nisk of falure to achieve business objectives and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against matenial rmisstatement or loss

The Company’s consolidated annual Financia! Staternents, aleng with the half-yearly Financial Statements and interim
management statements are prepared n accordance with applicable regulatory requirements

Since investment management, custody of assets and miany adrministrative systems are provided or arranged for the Company
by Electra Partners, the Company's system of internal control mainly comprises the monitoring of the serwices provided by
Electra Partners, including the operating controls established by them to ensure they meet the Company’s business objectives
As part of this process Electra Partners 1s respensibile for submituing performance statistics, investment valuations and
management accounts to the Board The key elements designed to provide effective intermal control are as follows

a Financial Reporting - regular and comprehensive review by the Board of key investment and financial data, including
management accounts, revenue projections, analyses of transactions and performance comparnisons

® Investment Strategy — regular review by the Board of the Company’s Objective and Investment Policy, including
commitments ta new funds

| Management Agreements and investment Performance - the Board regularly monitors the performance of Electra Partners
1o ensure that the Company’s assets are managed in accordance with the Company’s Objective and Investrment Policy

The Board keeps under review the effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal contral by momiternng the operation of
the key controls of Electra Partners as follows

w The Board reviews the terms of the management agreements and receives regular reports from Electra Partners executives

w The Board reviews the cernificates venfying compliance with decumented controls provided by Electra Partners on a six
monthly basis

m Addionally, the external auditors perform certain agreed upon procedures regarding these controls

Voting Policy
Under the investment management arrangements Electra Partners has complete discretion in relauon 1o all voung 1ssues in
respect of the Company’s investments

Electra Partners has adopted the UK Stewardship Code and has made disclosures regarding its policies on stewardship on its
wehsite www electrapartners com Electra Partners' policies on stewardship have been reviewed and endorsed by the Board

Other Information in the Report of the Directors

Other information regarding voting rights of shares, restnctions on voting, deadlines for exercising voting rights, appointment
and replacement of Directors, powers of Directors, authonty to make market purchases of shares, substantial Interests in the
Company’s shares and details concerring alteration of the Articles of Association of the Company 1s contained in the Repori of
the Directors
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Report of the Audit Committee

The Board 1s supported by the Audit Committee which compnsed all the Directors duning the year, ather than the Chairman of
the Board, Roger Yates | am Chairman of the Audit Cormmittee The Board has taken note of the requirement that at least one
member of the Audit Committee should have recent and relevant financial experience and is satisfied that the Audit
Committee 15 properly constituted In this respect, as ! am a former partner at Ernst & Young LLP and a chartered accountant

The Audit Committee’s autharity and duties are clearly defined in 1ts written terms of reference which are available on the
Company’s website

The Audit Committee’s responsibilities include

m monitoning and reviewing the integnty of the Financial Statements, the internal financial conirols and the independence,
objectivity and effectiveness of the external auditors,

® making recommendations to the Board 1n relation to the appointment of external auditors and appraving their
remuneration and the terms of their engagement,

® developing and implementing the Company's policy on the provision of non-audit services by the external auditors,

m reviewing the arrangements in place within Electra Partners whereby therr staff may, 1in confidence, raise concerns about
possible improprieties (in matters of financial reporting or other matters insofar as they may affect the Company,

m considering annually whether there i1s a need for the Company 10 have its own internal audit function,

m providing advice to the Board on whether the annual Financial Statements, taken as a whale, are fair, balanced and
understandable and provide the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s performance, business
model and strategy

The Audit Committee met three times duning the year under review The main matters discussed at those meetings were

review and approval of the annual plan of the external auditors,

discussion and approval of the fee for the external audit,

detailed review of the Annual and Half Year Report and Accounts and recommendation for approval by the Board,
discussion of reports from the external auditers following therr audit,

assessment of the effectiveness of the external audit process as described below,

review of the Company's key risks and internal contrals,

cansideration of the 2012 UK Corporate Governance Code, 2013 AIC Cade of Corporate Governance, Guidance on Audit
Committees and 2012 UK Stewardship Cede and the impact of these on the Company

The most significant risk in the Company’s accounts 1s whether its investments are fairly valued and this issue 1s considered

carefully when the Audit Committee reviews the Company's Annual and Half Year Accounts The Manager provides detalled

explanations of the rationale for the valuation of each investment and these are discussed in detaill with Electra Partners and .
the auditors at a meeting of the Valuations Commitiee which 1s normally attended by all members of the Audit Commuttee

The key areas of focus in the review and challenge by the valuations Commuttee are the overall methodology and underlying |
business performance/EBITDA of investee companies, multiples and discounts used where valuations derive from an earnings
basis The Auditors separately report on their procedures and the canclusions fram their work This 1s more fully described in
therr report on pages 98 to 104 The Audit Committee concluded that the year-end valuation process had been properly
carned out and that the investments have been farrly valued

correctly provided for in the Accounts due to the sensitive nature of these amounts The Audit Committee ensures that the
auditors have checked that the amounts are consistent with the management agreement, are correctly catculated and
properly attributable to the underlying valuations The auditors confirmed to the Audit Commuttee that they had not identified
any issues relating to thesr work 1n this area and the Audit Commitiee concluded that the figures are favly stated

|
|
The Audit Committee 15 also keen to ensure that the Manager’s prionity profit share and incentive scheme provisions are ‘
I
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I report to the Board after each Audit Commuttee meeting on the main matters discussed at the meeting

The Audit Cormmittee annually reviews the perfermance of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP the Company's external auditers In
doing so the Audit Commwtiee considers a range of factors including the quality of service, the auditers’ specialist expertise
and the level of audit fee The Audit Committee remains satisfied with their effectiveness and therefore has not considered 1t
necessary, to date, to require the auditors to tender for the audit work The auditors are reguired to rotate the audit partner
every five years and the current partner has been in place for three years There are no contractual obligations restricting the
chaice of external auditor Under Company law the reappointment of the externai auditors 1s subject 1o shareholder appraval
at the Annual General Meeting

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and its predecessor firms have been the auditors of the Company since its isting 1n 1976 and the
audit has not been put out to tender during that uime The Financial Reporting Council has stated that FTSE 350 companies
should put the audit services contract out to tender at least once every ten years, to enable the audiz committee to compare
the quality and effectiveness of the services provided by the incumbent auditor with those of other audit firms Under the
transiional arrangements, companies may defer the first tendenng process to coincide with the five-yearly rotation of audit
partner The Company intends to put the audit out to tender, at the latest, following the completion of the audit for the
accounts for the year ending 30 Septernber 2016 The Audit Committee keeps under review the ongoing legislation proposals
on audit tendenng and rotation from the EU and the Competiton and Markets Authority

The Audit Commuittee has reviewed the provision of non-audit services and believes them to be cost-effective and not an
Impediment to the external auditors objectvity and independence It has been agreed that | must approve all non-audit waork
to be carried out by the external auditors for the Company and that any special projects must be approved i advance

The non-audit services include the provision of taxation advice and agreed upon procedures performed in respect of Electra’s
Internal Controls Monitering Report as reported below

It1s the Group's practice to employ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties
where ther expertise and expernence with the Group are important, principally tax advice and compliance matters, or where
they have been awarded assignments on a competitive basis These services are services that could be provided by a number
of firms Work s allocated to the auditors only if 1t does not impact upon the independence of the audit team

It 15 of note that, under their fully discretionary mandate over investment activities, Electra Partners may engage
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP without reference to the Audit Commutiee in relation 1o investment transactions Given the
separation of responsibilities and reportng lines as between the role of external auditors t6 the Company and advisors 1o
Electra Partners and the use of entrely separate teams, the Audit Committee 1$ sausfied that this work does not compromise
their independence as external auditcrs

Following the review carried out by the Audit Commuttee as to whether there 1s @ need for the Company to have its own
internal audit function, the Board has cansidered and continues 1o believe that the internal control systems in place within
Electra Partners and the internal control reports provided by it give sufficient assurance that a sound system of internal control,
which safeguards shareholders’investment and the Company’s assets s maintained In addition, the work of the external
auditors 1s extended to include agreed upon procedures which test certain of Electra Partners’ internal controls The Audit
Committee considers, therefore, that an internal audit function specific tc the Company 1s unnecessary

Mr Roger Perkin, Chairman of the Audit Commuttee
Paternoster House

65 St Paul's Churchyard, London EC4M 8AB

26 November 2014
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report, the Directors' Remuneration Report and the Financial
Staterments in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors ta prepare Financial Statements for each finanaal year Under that law the Directors have
prepared the Group and Parert Company Financial Statements in accordance with Internatonal Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union Under company law the Directors must not approve the Financial Statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the
profit or loss of the Group for that period In preparing those Financial Statements, the Directors are required to

m select suitable accounting palicies and then apply them consistently,

m make Judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

m state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained in the Financial Statements,

a prepare the Financizl Statements on the going concern basis, unless it 1s Inapproprate 1o presume that the Company will
continue In business

The Financial Statements are published on www electraequity com, which 1s a website maintaned by Electra Partners The
maintenance and integrity of the website, so far as 1t relates to the Company, 15 the respansibility of Electra Partners The work
carned out by the Auditors does not iInvolve consideration of the maintenance and integnity of this website and, accordingly,
the Auditars accept no responsibility for any changes that have occurred to the Financial Statements since they were imtially
presented on the website Visitors to the website need to be aware that legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of the Financial Staternents may differ from legislation in other junisdictions

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the Group and
enable them to ensure that the Finanaial Statements and the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act
2006 and, as regards the Group Financial Staterments, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They are also responsible for safegquarding
the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregulanities

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed in the Board of Directors section of the Annual Report, confirms
that, to the best of their knowledge

m The Group Financial Statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and
far view of the assets, habilities, financial position and profit of the Group, and

m The Strategic Report contained in the Annual Report Includes a fair review of the development and performance of the
business and posiuon of the Group, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces,

m 5o faras each Director 1s aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and

m They have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a2 Director in order 10 make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Company’s Auditors are aware of that information,

m The Group Financial Staternents, taken as a whole are farr, balanced and understandable, and provide the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's performance, business model and strategy

By order of the Board of Directors

M\\M

Roger Yates, Chairman, Paternoster House
65 St Paul’s Churchyard, London EC4M 8AB
26 Novermnber 2014
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Board of Directors

Roger Yates (Chairman)

Mr Yates has 30 years experience as an investment professional and a business manager
in the fund management industry having begun his career with GT Management Limited
In 1981 He was Chief Executive of Henderson Global Investors fram 1999 to 2003 and
then, following the company s listing, of Hendersen Group Plc until 2008 Prior to that he
was Chief Investrnent Officer of invesco Global and Morgan Grenfell Investment
Management Limited He 1s currently non-executive Chairman of Ploneer Global Asset
Management, part of the UniCredit Group, and a non-executive direcior of JP Morgan
Elect ple, IG Group Holdings ple and St James' Place plc and was, from 2009 to 2010,
non-executive director of F&C Asset Management plc

Mr Yates was appeinted a Director in 2012 and Chairman in 2074

Dame Kate Barker

Dame Kate 15 a non-executive director of Taylor Wimpey PLC and the Yorkshire Buiiding
Society, a non-executive member of the Office for Budget Responsibility and a sentor
adwiser to Credit Suisse She 1s alse Chairman of Trustees for the British Coal Staff
Superannuation Scheme She was, untl May 2010, a member of the Monetary Policy
Committee of the Bank of England, on which she served for three terms, and has held a
range of ather senior posiions, Including chief economic adviser to the Confederation of
British Industry from 1594 to 2001

Dame Kate was appeinted a Director 1n 2010 She 1s Chairman of the Valuations
Committee, the Remuneration and Normination Cemmittee and the Senior Independent
Director |

Francesca Barnes

Ms Barnes recently retired from a 27 year career in finance, the last seven of which were
spent as Global Head of Private Equity for UBS She worked for Chase Manhatian for 11
years In the UK and US then Swiss Bank/UBS working in restructuring, loan portfolio
management and uttimately running the global private equity business Ms Barnes is
now a non-executive director of Coutts and Co, non-executive director of Capwis private
equity, Chair of Governors of the Bridge Academy Hackney and Charr of Trustees of Penny
Brohn Cancer Care

Ms Barnes was appointed a Director in 2013

Geoffrey Cullinan

Mr Cullinan was a Director of Bain & Company from 1997 10 2005 He was the founder
and leader of their private equity business in Europe and continues 10 be an Adwiser to
Bain He was formerly Chief Executive of Hamleys plc (1996) and senior non-executive
director of Datamonitor plc {1994 to 2002) Prior to that he was the managing partner of
QC&C Strategy Consultants, which he co-founded in 1986

Mr Cullinan was appointed a Director In 2011 He)s Chairman of the Management
Engagement Committee
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Josyane Gold

Mrs Gold has 32 years'experience as a lawyer in corporate practice in the City For 25
years she was a partner of 5J Berwin where she was a founder of its private equity and
investment funds practices She continues 1o act as a consuitant to the firm (now King &
Wood Maliesons 5J Berwin)

Mrs Geld was appointed a Director in 2013

Roger Perkin

Mr Perkin 1s a former senior partner at Ernst & Young with extensive global accounting
experience and financial services experuse He spent 40 years at Ernst & Young and 1ts
predecessor firms, Including over 30 years as a Partner, working with a wide range of
clients before specialising in financial services He s a director of Nationwide Bulding
Society, Friends Life Group Limited and Tullett Prebon pic

Mr Perkan was appointed a Director in 2009 Mr Perkin is Chairman of the Audit
Committee
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Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive

AIFMD Articie 23 - Supplemental Disclosure

As Electra Private Equity Pl (the *Company”or “Electra”) and its alternative investment fund manager, Electra Partners LLP {the
"AlFM” or the "Manager”) are each domiciled in the United Kingdom, the FCA Handbook rules require that, among other things,
the AIFM makes available the following information to exisung shareholders of Electia, in order to supplement the information
provided to them before they invested, pursuant te Arucle 23 of Directive 2011/61/EU of the European Parliarnent and of the
Counail on Alternative Investment Fund Managers and its implementing measures (the "AIFMD") and to noufy them of any
material change to information previously provided

In cases where the AIFM has determined that the requisite information 1s already set forth in the Annual Report or in any cther
source document which existing shareholders have access to or may request, this supplemental disclosure contains
information with respect to the relevant source matenals In cases where the AIFM has determined that the requisite
information has not been provided to exisung shareholders, this supplement contains additional disclosure items

Investment Policy, Leverage and Liquidity (AIFMD 23(1)(a}(b)(h))

The investment strategy and objective of Electra, the types of asset it may invest in and the investment techniques it may
employ, associated nsks and any investment restrictions are laid out in the Objective and Investment Policy, Strategic Report
and The Manager sections of the Company’s 30 September 2014 Annual Report

For information about the circurnstances in which the Company may use leverage, the types of sources permitted and the
assouated nsks and any restrctions on the use of leverage and any collateral and asset re-use arrangements, sharehalders are
directed to the disclosures contained 1n the Objective and Investment Policy and the Strategic Report of the Company's 30
September 2014 Annual Report as well as specific AIFMD related disclosures further below

Under the UK Listing Authority listing rules to which the Company Is subject It needs the prior approval of its sharehaclders 1o
make a material change to its Investment Policy

Since the Company Is closed-ended without redermnption nghts, iquidity nsk management 1s Iimited te the iquidity required
to meet the Company's obligations in relation to 1ts financing arrangements and on 1its ability to meet calls on unfunded
habihties 1o third party funds and other investments The Manager utilises varnous nsk assessment methods tc measure the risk
of portfolio liguidity to meet the Company’s obligations This measurement enables the provision of management
information to the Manager and the Board of the Company to enabie these risks 1o be monitored and managed

Legal Relationship with Investors (AIFMD 23(1) (¢)}

The Company 1s a public imited company listed on the Londan Stock Exchange The Company 1s incorporated under the laws
of England and Wales The constitutional document of the Campany 15 11s articles of assaciztion (“Articles”} which may only be
amended by way of a special resclution of its shareholders Upon the purchase of shares, an investor bacomes a shareholder of
the Company A shareholder’s iability to the Company will te limited to the amount uncalled on thewr shares The Company
has one class of share, namely crdinary shares, with standard rights as to voting, dvidends and payment on winding-up and
no special nghts and obligations attaching to them Transfers to US persons are restricted but otherwise, there are ne matenal
restrictions on transfers of shares No redemption nghts attach to the ordinary shares in the Company

As the Company 1s Incorporated under the laws of England and Wales, it may not be possible for a shareholder located outside
that junsdiction to effect service of process within the lecal junsdiction in which that shareholder resides upon the Cormpany
All or a substanual portion of the assets of the Company may be located outside alocal junisdiction in which a shareholder
resides and as a result, it may not be possible to satisfy a jJudgement against the Company in such local jurisciction or to
enforce a jJudgement abtained in the local jurnsdiction’s courts against the Company
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AlFM and 1ts Delegates (AIFMD 23(1}(d), (e} and (f)}

The Mznager 1s a imited liability partnership with its registered office at Paternoster House, 65 St Paul's Churchyard, London
EC4M 8A8 and which 1s authorised and requlated by the Financial Conduct Authority (FRN 455358) It has been appointed by
the Company to manage the Company under a management agreement dated 12 October 2006 as amended on 11 July 2014
1o faciitate compliance with AIFMD regulations (the "Management Agreement”) The Manager 15 responsible for portfolio
management and rsk management and monitoring of the assets of the Company and has full discretionary authority over the
acquisition and disposition of the Company’s assets, with power 1o give guarantees and undertake other transactions on
behalf of the Company subject to the provisions of the Maragement Agreement The Manager 1s also responsible for ensunng
complhiance with the AIFMD The Marager's duties under the Management Agreement are owed to the Company as a whole
rather than directly to the shareholders, whether indnadually or in groups The Board of Electra is responsible under the
Management Agreement for representing the Compary in its dealings with the Manager

In accordance with the Management Agreement, the habilty of the Manager and any officer, partner or employee of them or
any of therr Assaciates or Nominated Director ("Indemnified Persons™ 1s imited and subject ta certain irmitations they are
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company

The Marager maintains appropriate additional own funds to meet its obligations under AIFMD, including in relation to
prafessional liability nsks The Manager has not delegated the performance of any of 1ts functions

Depositary and its Delegates (AIFMD 23(1){d) and (f})

Ipes Depositary (UK) Limited (the “Depositary”) has been appointed as the Depositary of the Company under a Depositary
Agreement agreed in accordance with AIFMD reguirements The Depositary is a company incorperated in England (registered
number 08749704) whose registered office 15 at 10 Lower Grosvenor Place, London SW1W QEN It 1s authorised to act as a
Depositary by the FCA (FRN 610203) The Depositary is responsible for safekeeping of the Company's investments, including
hotding in custody those investments which are reguired to be heid in custody and verfying ownership (on the basis of
evidence provided by the AIFM) and keeping records of the Company’s other investments, and for cash monitoring

The Depositary’s duties under the Depositary Agreement are owed to the Cormpany as 2 whole and not directly to the
shareholders, whether iIndividually or in groups

Most of the investments of the Company are not of a kind required to be held in custody by the Depositary The Depositary
has appeinted a custodian, RBC Investor Services Trust, in respect of the holding of custody assets belonging to the Company

Independent Auditors (AIFMD 23(1)(d))
The Independent Audrtors of the Company are PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Under the terms of their engagement the acditors are responsible for assessing the appropniatenass, application and
disclosure of the Company’s accounting policies and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates and the overall
presentaticn of the Finanaal Statements The auditors’duties are owed to the Company as a whole They have a statutory
responsibility to report to the members of the Company as a whaole In relation to the truth and fairness of the Company’s state
of affairs and profit or loss

Valuation (AIFMD 23(1)(g))

The Manager values the assets of the Company in accordance with the provisicns set out In the Principles of Valuation of
Investments as set out on pages 92 and 94 of the Notes to the Finanaial Statements in the 30 September 2014 Annual Report
of the Company The Valuations Committee of the Company adds a further level of oversight to the valuation process as set
out on page 122 of the Corporate Governance section of the Annual Report
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Fees and Expenses (AIFMD 23(1)(1))

The Manager receives an annual prionity profit share of 1 5% calculated on the grass assets of the Company In addition the
Company operates carried Interest and co-investment schemes for executives of the Manager and details of these schemes
are contained in Notes 22 and 23 of the Notes to the Financial Statements in the 30 September 2014 Annual Report of

the Company

The finance costs in respect of the Company's bank faclity, convertible bend and zera dividend preference shares are
contained in Note 7 of the Notes to the Financial Statements in the 30 September 2014 Annual Report of the Company

In addiion the Company incurs costs in the form of depositary fees, custodian fees, bank fees and charges, marketing fees,
auditors' fees, lawyers'fees and other fees

Given the nature of all these fees and expenses it 1s not possible 1o provide a maximum fee payable

Fair Treatment of Investors and Preferential Treatment (AFMD 23(1}()})
No preferentral nghts have been granted 10 any existing shareholder

The Manager and the Board of the Company are committed to ensuring that all shareholders are treated fairly and in
accordance with UK Company Law They have not and will not enter into any arrangement with one sharehoider which would
resultin any overall matenal disacvantage to the other shareholders

Issue and Redemption of Shareholder Interests in the Company ((AIFMD 23 (1){)))
The Fund 15 closed-ended and does not prowide for redemption or repurchase of the interests of ordinary shareholders at their
request

Reporting and Performance (AIFMD 23(1)(k), 23(1){m) and 23(1}(n))
The historic performance of the Company, to the extent avallable, has been disclosed to shareholders in the Company’s
Annual Reports, the latest of which covers the year to 30 September 2014 and which will be sent to shareholders

The latest NAV of the Company 1s putlished in the latest Annual or Half Yearly report

Prime Broker (AIFMD 23(1)(0))
The Company does not have a pnme broker

Method of Making Ongoing/Penodic Disclosures (AIFMD 23(1)(p), 23(4}, 23(5)

Information about the Company’s nisk profile and risk management, total leverage and any matenal change to the
arrangements for managing the Company's lquidity, the proportion of assets (f any) subject to special arrangements arising
from liquidity, the maximum permitted leverage or the grant of rights of re-use of collateral or guarantees in relation to
leverage will be provided in the Company’s Annual Reports
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Risk Profie and Risk Management {AIFMD 23(4)c)

The appointment of the Manager as the AIFM of the Company under the AIFMD means that It I1s now responsible for nsk
management and the ongeing process of identifying, evaluating, monitoring and managing the nsks facing the Company
In accordance with the requirements of the AIFMD The Board of the Company keeps the Manager's performance of these
responsibilities under review as part of 1ts overal! responsibility for the Company’s internal controls

The principal nsks of the Company are set out 1 the Strategic Report and in Note 19 of the Notes to the Financial Statements
The Manaqger’s risk management system incorporates regular review of these risks and the establishment of appropriate nisk
himuts and internal control processes to mitigate the nsks The sensitivity of the Cormpany to relevant risks 1s further detalled in
Ncte 19 of the Notes to the Finanaial Staterments

The nsk lirmits currently put in place for the Company by the Manager are In relation to the parameters for diversity of
investment set out In the Objective and Investment Policy, for Credit Risk set out in Note 19 of the Notes to the financial
Statements and the imits on the Company's leverage set out below These risk imits have not been exceeded in the year
ended 30 September 2014 and the Manager daes not currently consider it ikely they will be exceeded

Restrictions on the Use of Leverage and Maximum Leverage (AIFMD 23(5))

As specified in the Objective and Investment Palicy in the Company's 30 September 2014 Annual Report, the Company has
a policy 1o maintain total gearing below 40% of 1ts total assets and the Manager oversees the use of leverage 1o ensure that
the use of borrowing and denvatives 1s consistent with this requirement The Company does not have any asset re-use
arrangements in relation to collateral and has not granted any guarantees

Under AIFMD the Company 1s required to calculate leverage under the two methodologies specified by the Directive, the
‘Gross Method'and the 'Commitment Method' the difference being that the Commitment Methed allows certain exposures
to be offset or netted

Leverage s calculated using gross assets, with various adjustments, divided by net assets

The Manager has currently set a limit of 230% on the use of leverage based on the Gross Method and a limit of 230% on the
use of leverage based on the Commitment Methed which the Manager considers consistent with the gearning Iimit set out In
the Objective and Investment Policy as at 30 September 2014 The Company’s leverage calculated at 30 September 2014
under the methods stipulated by AIFMD was 135% under the Gross Method and 162% under the Commitment Method
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Information for Shareholders

Financial Calendar for 2015

Annual General Meeting 16 March 2015
Half-year Results announced May 2015
Annual Results announced November/December 2015

Website and Electra News via Email
For furtner infarmaton on share and Bond prices, regulatory news and other information, please visit www electraequity com

If you would like ta receive emall notice of our announcements please wisit the Electra website at www electraequity com and
click on the *Subscribe to receve news alerts”logo on the Horme page Registering for email alerts will not stog you receving
Annual Reports or any other documents you have selecied to receive by post

Shareholder Enquines
In the event of quenes regarding your ordinary shareholding please contact the Company’s registrar, Equiniti Lirmited, who will
be able to assist you with

registered holdings

balance queries

lost certficates

change of address noufications

Equinii Limited’s full details are provided on page 143 or please visit www equiniti Ccom

If you are an existing shareholder and wish to buy more/sell your shares in Electra

Aninternet and telephone dealing service has been arranged through Equini, which provides a simple way for UK
shareholders of Electra to buy or sell Electra’s shares For full detalls and terms and conditions simply log onto www shareview
co uk/dealing or call 0871 384 2351 Please note that ines are open 8 30am te 5 30pm Monday tc Friday (excluding bank
holidays) and calls to this number cost 8p per minute pius network extras

The service 1s only available to shareholders of Electra who hold shares in their own name, with a UK registered address, who
are aged 18 and over

Shareview Dealing 15 provided by Equiniti Financial Services Limited Equiniti Financial Services Limited 1s authorised and
regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority of 25 The North Colonnade, Canary Wharf, London E14 5HS (FCA reference
468631) Equiniti Financial Services Limited 1s registered in England and Wales with number 6208699

If you are not an existing shareholder
We recommend you seek your own personai financial advice from an zppropriately qualfied independent adviser or
alternatively contact your own broker Electra Private Equity’s shares are histed on the London Stock Exchange as ELTA

Please note The above information 1s not a recommendation to buy or sell shares The value of shares and any income from
them can fluctuate and you may get back less than the amount invested If you have any doubt over what acticn you should

take, please contact an authornised financial adviser

Dividend pohcy
It1s the policy of the Directors not to pay dividends unless required to do so to maintain Electra’s investment trust status
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Shareholder total return performance for £1,000 invested As at 30 September 2014
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The above index, prepared by Morningstar UK Limited, reflects the performance of 19 private equity vehicles excluding Electra, listed on
the London Stock Exchange
** 18 year period only

Trading Information — Ordinary shares

Listing Lendon Stock Exchange
ISIN GBO0G3085445

SEDOL 0308544

Ticker/EPIC code ELTA

Blocmberg ELTALN

Reuters ELTAL

Convertible Bond
What 15 a Convertible Bond?
A convertible bond is a tradable debt that can be converted into a predetermined amount of the company's equity during its life

In the case of Electra, £100 million of Convertible Bonds were raised in December 2010 Each bond was priced at £1,000
per bond and generates 5% interest per annum payable sermi-annually in eguat instalments in arrears on 29 june and
29 December in accordance with the terms of the Prospectus

Bondholders can convert thair bonds inte Electra shares at any time within the life of the bond (expires 2017) in accordance
with the terms of the Prospectus The conversion price in effect immediately upon issue of the bands 1s 2,050p The
Convertible Bond 15 listed on the London Stock Exchange and can be traded like other listed securines

The Company has the option to convert all of the Bonds to ardinary shares on or after 29 December 2015 This option 15
exercisable providing that on each of at least 20 dealing days in any pencd of 30 consecutive dealing days the Parity Value
shall have exceeded 130% of the principal amount of the Bond Panty Value 1s the number of ordinary shares each Bond will
convert Into multiphied by the volume weighted average price of an ordinary share This eption 1s additionally exercisable if
85% or more of the cnginal pnnapal amount of the Bonds have been redeemed/converted

in the unlikely event of Electra winding up, the Bondhelders would rank above the ordinary shareholders in terms of being
entitled to the capital of Electra

For further information please visit our website www electraeguity com/convertible

Trading Information - Convertible Bond

Listing Londen Stock Exchange
ISIN GBCOBSBONWG4

SEDGCL BSBONWS

Ticker/EPIC code ELTC

Bloomberg ELTALNS 12/29/2017 Corp
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Zero Dvidend Preference Shares

What 15 a Zero Dividend Preference Share?

ZDPs are a class of share with a imited life They provide no annual income or dividend but instead wiil pay out a fixed amount of
caputal (known as the “final capital entitlerment”) at a specific date in the future (known as the ‘redemption date™) In the case of
Electra Private Equity Investments PLC, £46 million of ZDPs were raised 1in 2009 and have a redemption date of 5 August 2016

In the uniikely event of Electra winding up, the holders of ZDPs would rank above both the holders of Convertible Bonds and the
ordinary shareholders in terms of being entitled 1o the capital of Electra

For further information please visit our website www electraeguity com/Eltz

Share Fraud Warning

We are aware that In the past a number of shareholders have received unsolicited phone calls or correspondence concerning
Investment matters These are typically from overseas based ‘brokers’ who target UK shareholders, offening to sell them what often
turn out to be worthless or high nsk shares These operations are commaenly known as 'Boiler Room'scams

Please be very wary of any such calls or correspondence Ask for the name and organisation of the person calling you and checiaf
they can be found on the FCA Register If they are not listed, please report it directly to the FCA using their consumer helpline
{0800 111 6768) or at www fca org uk/consumers/scams You may also wish to advise us by telephoning 020 7214 4200 or
emailing w@electrapartners com

It1s very unlikely that either the Company or the Company’s Registrars, Equiniti, would make unsolcited telephone calls to
sharehclders Such calls would only relate to official docurmentation already airculated to shareholders and never be in respect of
Investment ‘advice’

Please remember that if you use an unauthorsed firm to buy or sell shares, you will not be eligible to receve payment under the
Financial Services Compensation Scheme if things go wrong

Other Useful Websites

LPEQ
Electra 1s a founder member of LPEQ, a group of private equity investment trusts and similar vehicles isted on the London Stock
Exchange and other major European stock markets, formed to raise awareness and increase understanding of Iisted private equity

LPEQ provides information on private equity in general, and the listed sector 1n particular, undertaking and publishing research
and working to improve levels of knowledge about private equity among investors and ther advisers

For further information visit www lpeq com

Association of Investment Companies (AIC)

Electra 1s a member of the AIC, the trade organisatien for closed-ended investment companies The AIC represents a broad range
of closed-ended investment companies, Including Investment trusts, offshore investment companies and venture capital trusts
which are traded on the London Stock Exchange, Alternative Investment Market, Special Financials Market, Euronext and the
Channel Islands Stock Exchange

For further information visit www theaic co Lk

British Private Equity & Venture Capital Association (BVCA)

Elecura 1s a member of the BVCA, the industry body and public policy advocate for the private equity and venture capital industry
in the UK The BVCA's am s to aid understanding around the activities of its members, promote the private eguity and venture
capital industry to entrepreneurs and investors as well as 1o Government, the EU, trade unions, international media and the
general pubhc They communicate the industry’s impact and reinforce the crucial role 1its memibers play in the global economy as
a catalyst for change and growth

For further information visit wwaw bvca co uk
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Ten Year Record

Ten Year Record of Net Assets, Share Price and Earnings

Diluted Net Diluted Basic Dividends Share pnice’ Share price'
Asset Value earnings eamings paid per asat5Apnl  asat 30 S5ept
Net Assets per share per share per share share per share per share
As at 30 Sept £'000 p p P p ] p
2005 520,883 1,197 22 - 6409 - 93100 1,11300
2006 91598,292 1,545 07 - 2058 w2000 1,326 00 1,371 00
2007 51745506 20012 - 2460 © 1700 1,605 00 1,680 00
2008 " 540,949 1,800 64 - {1338) ®2500 1,57000 1,23500
2009 5 607,953 1,720 36 - 3405 - 63250 1,224 00
2010 724,531 205025 - 441 - 1,361 00 1,368 00
201 821,492 222478 2300 1190 - 1,414 00 1,360 00
2012 616,304 247310 (646) {24 29) - 1,720 00 1,77000
2013 1,025,902 2,763 61 657) {25 39) - 2,30500 2,23000
2014 1,195101 3,174 34 6642 5655 - 263200 2,65000
Notes

The net asset value per share for 2005 to 2014 have been prepared on an IFRS basis as explained in the Basis of Accounting

W0~ h b W N —
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Middle market price at close of business on 5 Apnil or 30 September or if appropriate, previous business day in each case
Curing the year ended 30 Septernber 2005 3,238 000 shares were repurchased for cancellation {cost £29 677 000)
During the year ended 30 September 2006 4,785,000 shares were repurchased for cancellation {cost £64,257,000)
Includes special dwvidend of 20 00p per share paid in March 2006

During the year ended 30 September 2007 1,470,000 shares were repurchased for cancellation {cost £22 304 000)
Includes special dvidend of 17 00p per share paid in March 2007

Curing the year ended 30 September 2008 1657,000 shares were repurchased for cancellauon {cost £26,492,000)
Includes special dvidend of 25 00p per share paid in March 2008

Duning the year ended 30 September 2006 257 000 shares were repurchased for cancellation {(cost £2,096000)
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Glossary

Carned interest
The Incentive arrangements, which are similar 1o arrangements found elsewhere in the private equity industry, are designed to
align Electra Partners’interests with Electra shareholders' These arrangements are typically referred 1o as “carried interest”

The carried interest payable 1o the members of Electra Partrers s based on three year pools of investments Under the terms of
this arrangement all qualifying investments in a three year peniod are aggregated into a separate pool Electra must first receive
back the aggregate cost of all the investments In the pool, plus related prionity profit share (see below) and an 8% compound
return (this 1s often referred to as the "hurdle”) Once Electra has receved sufficient cash to pay the amounts as described above
the members of Electra Partners will be entitled 10 a carned interest of 18% of the profits Consequently, they will recerve the next
18/82 of the hurdle so that they will have an amount equal to 18% of the profits on the pool up to that point (this is referred to as
a"catch up’} Thereafter, Electra and the members of Electra Partners will share future cash flows in the ratio of 82 18

Below 1s an example to illustrate in principle how the above described arrangements work

£m Assumptions
Amount invested 500 Amount invested and prnonty profit share
Amount realised 1,000 Realised after vear five
Pool profit 500
Hurdle 210 8% per annurn compound
Catch up 45 18/82 of the hurdle
Balance 44 The amount over the hurdle to get tc an aggregate 18% of the pool profit
Total carry 90 18%
Electra 369 82%

Commitments
Legal obligation to provide capital for future investment in a private equity fund or in relation to a single investment

Discount

Investment trust shares frequently trade at a discount to NAV This occurs when the share price 15 less than the NAV In this
clrcumstance, the price that a shareholder would pay or recerve for a share would be less than the value atinbutable to 1t by
reference to the underlying assets Tradmionally expressed as a percentage

Earnings multiple
This s normally referred to as a price earnings (P/E) ratio It 1s the ratio of a company’s valuation compared to 1ts earnings

EBITDA
Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciaticn and Amortisation Often used to compare the profitability of similar companies

EBITDA margin
EBITDA expressed as a percentage derved by dividing EBITDA by net sales

EV (enterpnise value)
This 1s the aggregate value of a company's entire 1ssued share capital and net debt

Gearing

This is the level of a company’s debt related ta 1ts equity capital and 1s usually expressed in percentage form It shows the
extent to which a company 1s funded by lenders as opposed o shareholders

Hedging

Hedging 15 an investment technique designed to offset a potenual loss on one investment by purchasing a second investment
that 1s expected 1o perform in the cpposite way
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IPO (inttial public offering)
An offering by a company of its share capital to the public with a view to seeking an admission of its shares to a recognised
stock exchange

IRR (internal rate of return}

Is the annualised return on an investment calculated from the cash flows ansing from that investment taking account of the
tming of each cash flow Itis derived by computing the discount rate at which the present value of all subsequent cash fiows
ansing from an investment are equal to the onginal amount invested

Listed company
Any company where the shares are freely tradable and are listed ¢r traded on a recognised stock exchange

LTM™
Last twelve months

NAV
This s the value of alt the Company’s assets minus current and long-term habiliies Can also be referred 10 as ‘shareholders funds'

NAY per share
This 15 the value of the Company’s assets atinbutable to one Ordinary share 1115 calculated by dividing 'shareholders funds’ by
the total number of Ordinary shares inissue

Permanent Capntal
Aninvestment entity that manages capital for an unhirmited time honzon

Prionty Profit Share
This is a share of profits equivalent to @ management fee It1s calculated at 1 5% of the gross value of the Company’s
investment portfolio including cash

Return on Equity (ROE)
This1s the total return divided by opening shareholder funds Electra’'s ROE has been calculated by taking the percentage
change in diluted NAV per share and adding back dvidends paid per share

Total return
The total return to shareholders 1s the aggregate of income and capital profits of the investment portfolic for the year less

all costs

Unlisted company
Any company whose shares are not fisted or traded cn a recognised stock exchange
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice 15 hereby given that the eightieth Annual General Meeting of Electra Private Equity PLC will be held at 12 00 noon on
Monday 16 March 2015 in The Livery Hall at The Grocers' Hall, Princes Street, Londen, EC2R BAD for the following purposes

Ordinary Business
1 Torecewve the reports of the Directors and Auditars and the Group Accounts for the year ended 30 September 2014

2 TJoapprove the Annual Report on Remuneration as set out in the Directors Remuneration Repert for the year ended 30
September 2014 which 15 set out in the Annual Report and Accounts of the Company for the year ended 30 September 2014

3 Tore-elect Mr RYates as a Director cf the Company

4 Tore-elect Dame Kate Barker as a Director of the Company
5 Tore-elect Ms F 8arnes as a Oiector of the Company

6 Tore-elect Mr G Cullinan as a Director of the Cormnpany

7 Tore-elect Mrs ) Gold as a Director of the Company

8 Tore-elect Mr R Perkin as a Director of the Company

9 Tore-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Auditors of the Company to nold office unul the conclusion of the next
general meeting at which accounts are laid before the Company

10 To authonse the Directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditors

Special Business
As Special Business, ta consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as a Special Resolution

11 Special resolution to renew share buyback authoniy

That the Company be and 15 hereby generally and unconditionally authensed in accordance with Section 701 of the
Companies Act 2006 to make market purchases (within the rmeaning of Section 693(4) of the said Act) of ordinary shares of 25
pence each, provided that

() the maximum number of ordinary shares hereby authornsed to be purchased 15 5,330,427 or such lesser number of shares
as1s equal to 14 99 per cent of the total number of ordinary shares in 1ssue as at the date of the passing of this resclution,

(1) the minimum pnice which may be paid for an ordinary share shall be 25 pence,

() the maximum pnce, exclusive of any expenses, which may be paid for an ordinary share shall be an amount equal to 105
per cent of the average of the middle market quotations for an ordinary share taken from and calculated by reference to
the Londen Stock Exchange Dally Official List for the five business days immedately preceding the day on which the
crdinary share 1s purchased,

(iv) any purchase of ordinary shares will be made 10 the market for cash at prices below the prevailing net asset value per
ordinary share (as determined by the Directors), and

{(v) unless renewed, the authonity hereby conferred shalt expire on the ezrlier of 16 june 2016 or the conclusion of the
Company’s Annual General Meeting in 2016 save that the Company may, prior 1 such expiry, enter Into a contract to
purchase ordinary shares which will or may be completed or executed whally or partly after such expiry

v o &W:u Lip

By order of the Boa rectors

Frostrow Capital, Company Secretary

Paternoster House, 65 5t Paul's Churchyard, London, EC4M 8AB
26 November 2014
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Notes

1 Members of the Company who are entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting are entitled to appoint one or more proxies to
exercise all or any of their nights 1o attend and o speak and vote at the Meeting A member may appoint more than one
proxy in relation to the Meettng provided that each proxy 1s appointed to exercise the nghis attached to a different share or
shares held by that member A proxy need not be a member of the Company

2 Amember may vote at the Annual General Meeting subject to being on the Register of Members as at 6pm on 12 March 2015

3 AForm of Proxy 1s enclosed To be effective, the Form of Proxy and any power of attorey under which it is executed (or a
duly certfied copy of any such power) must reach the Company’s Registrars, Eguiniti Limited, Aspect House, Spencer Road,
Lancing, BN99 6DA, not less than 48 hours, excluding non-working days, before the time of the Meeting {1e 12 00 noon on
12 March 2015) or adjourned Meeting or (In the case of a poll taken otherwise than at or on the same day as the Meeting or
adjourned Meeting} for the taking of the poll at which 1t 1s to be used Completion and return of the Form of Proxy will not
prevent a member from attending and voting at the Meeting Replacement forms of proxy may be cbtained from the
Cornpany’s Registrar

4 Inaccordance with Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001, only those holders of ordinary shares
entered on the Register of Members of the Company as at 6pm on 12 March 2015 (“the Specified Time®) shal! be enutled 1o
attend and vote at the Meeting 1n respect of the number of ordinary shares registered in therr name at that tme Changes to
entnes on the register of members after the Specfied Time shall be disregarded in determining the nghts of any person 1o
attend and vote at the Meeting If the Meeting 15 adjourned 1o & time not mare than 48 hours after the Specified Time
applicable to the onginal Meeting, that time will also apply for the purposes of deterrmining the enutlement of members to
attend and vote (and for the purposes of determining the nurmber of votes they may cast) at the adjoumed Meeting If
however, the Meeting 1s adjourned for a longer period, then to be so entitled, members must be entered on the Company's
register of members at 6pm on the date two days prior to the adjourned Meeting

5 CREST members wha wish 1o appoint a proxy or proxes through the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do so
for the Annual General Meeting 1o be held on 16 March 2015 and any adjournment(s) thereof by using the procedures
described in the CREST Manual CREST personal members or other CREST sponsored members, and thase CREST members
who have appointed a voting service provider(s), should refer to their CREST sponsar or voting service provider(s), who will
be able to take the appropnate action on their behalf For a proxy appointment or instruction made using the CREST service
10 be vald, the appropnate CREST message (a CREST Proxy Instruction) must be properly authenticated in accordance with
CREST specifications and must contain the information required for such instructions, as described in the CREST Manual The
message, regardless of whether 1t constitutes the appeointment of a proxy or an amendment to the Instruction given to 2
previously appointed proxy must, in order to be valid, be ransmitted so as to be receved by the issuer’s agent (ID RA19) by
the latest time for receipt of proxy appointments specified 1n the notice of meeting For this purpose, the time of receipt will
be taken 1o be the time (as determined by the imestamp applied to the message by the CREST Appiications Host) from
which the 1ssuer’s agent 1s able to retrieve the message by enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST After this
time, any change of instructions to proxies appointed through CREST should be communicated to the appontee through
other means CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service providers should note that
Eurociear UK & Ireland Limited does not make available special procedures in CREST for any parucular messages Normal
system timings and imitations will therefore apply in refation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions It 1s the responsibility
of the CREST member concerned to take (or, if the CREST member 1s a CREST personal member or sponsored member or has
appointed a voting service provider(s), to procure that his CREST sponser or vouing service provider(s) take{s)) such action as
shall be necessary tc ensure that a message 1s transmitted by means of the CREST system by any parucular ime Inthis
cannection, CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service providers are referred, in
particular, to these sections of the CREST Manual concerning practical imitations of the CREST systern and tirmings (www
euroctear com) The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)
(a) of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001
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The night to appoint a proxy does not apply 10 persons whose shares are held on their behalf by another person and who
have been nominated to recelve communications from the Company in accordance with Section 146 of the Companies Act
2006 (‘nominated persons’) Nominated persons may have a nght under an agreement with the member who holds the
shares on their behalf to be appointed (or to have someone else appointed) as a proxy Alternatively, If nominated persons
do not have such a nght, or do not wish to exercise 11, they may have a nght under such an agreement to give Instructions to
the person holding the shares as to the exercise of voting rights

Shareholders are entitled to attend and vote at general meetings of the Company On a vote by show of hands, every
member and every duly appointed proxy who is present m person shall have one vote On a polt vote, every member who is
present in person or by proxy shall have cne vote for every share of which he 1s the halder

Any corporation which 1s a member can appoint one or more corporate representatives who may exercise on its behalf all of
Its powers as a member provided that they do not do sain relation to the same shares A membser that Is a company may
appoint either a proxy or a corporate representative Members wishing to appoint a corporate representative should
examine the Company’s Articles of Association and the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

Under Requlation 12, Section 319A of the Shareholder Rights Directive, the Company must answer any question relating

to the business being deait with at the Meeting put by a member at the Meeting However, the Company need not answer
if 3) to do so would interfere unduly with the preparation for the Meeting, b) 10 answer would involve the disclosure of
confidential information, ¢) the answer has already been given on a website in the form of an answer to a question, d) s
undesirable in the interests of the Company or the good order of the Meeting that the question be answered

Information about the Annual General Meeting 1s published on wwwelectraequity com

The followng documents will be available for inspection at the registered office of the Company during usual business haurs
on any weekday (Saturdays and public holidays excepted) from the date of this Notice until the close of the Annual General
Meeting, and will be available at the place of the Annual General Meeting from 11 45 am until the conclusion of the Meeting

{a) the current Articles of Association of the Cempany, and

(b) the terms and conditions of appointment of ali Directors

No Cirector has a service contract with the Company

Short biographical details regarding alf the Directors are to be found on pages 128 and 129

The total number of 1ssued ordinary shares/voting nghts in the Company on 25 Novernber 2014, which 1s the latest
practicable date before the publication of this document, 1s 35,559,892

Shareholders may require the Cormpany to place on i1s website a statement, made available also to the Company’s auditors,
setting out any matter relating to the audit of the Company's accounts, ncluding the Independent Auditor’s Report and the
conduct of the audnt, which sharehclders intend 1o raise at the Annual General Meeting The Company becomes required 10
place such a statement on the website once a) members with at least 5% of the total voting nghts of the Company or b) at
ieast 100 members who are entitled te vote and on whose shares an average sum per member of at least £100 has been
paid have submitted such a request to the Company Members seeking to do this shouid wnte to the Company providing
therr full name and address

You may not use any electronic address provided either in this Notice of Meeting or any related documents (including the
Form of Proxy) to communicate with the Company for any purposes other than those expressly stated

If you have sold or otherwise transferred all your shares in Electra Pavate Equity PLC, you should pass this document and other
relevant accompanying documents {(other than any persenalised form of proxy and/or letter) o the purchaser or transferee or 1o
the stockbroker, bank or other agent through whom the sale transfer was made for transmission to the purchaser or transferee
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Contact Details

Board of Directors

Roger Yates (Chairman)

Darne Kate Barker

Francesca Barnes

Geoffrey Cullinan

Josyane Gold

Roger Perkin

Telephone +44 (0)20 7214 4200
www electraeguity com

Secretary

Frostrow Capital LLP

25 Southampton Buldings
London WC2A 1AL

Telephone +44 (0)20 3008 4910

Registered Office
Paterncster House
65 St Paul’s Churchyard
London EC4M 8AB

Company Number
303062

Manager

Electra Partners LLP

Paterngster House

65 St Paul's Churchyard

London EC4M 8AB

Telephone +44 (0)20 7214 4200
www electrapartners com

Investor Relations

Andrew Kenny and Nichclas Board
Telephone +44 (0)20 7214 4200
Email ir@electrapartners com

Registered Independent Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants &
Statutory Auditors

7 More London Riverside

London SE1 2RT

Stockbroker
JP Morgan Cazenove

Depositary

Ipes Depositary (UK) Limited
10 Lower Grosvenor Place
London

SWI1W OEN

Registrar and Transfer Office
Eguiniti Limited

Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lancing

West Sussex BNGS 8DA
Telephone (UK) 0871 384 2351*
Textel/Hard of hearing line (UK)
0871 384 2255

Telephone ([Overseas)

+44 121 415 7047

*Calls to these numbers cost
8p per minute plus network
extras Lines open 8 30am to
5 30pm, Monday to Friday
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